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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Review of Results

We are pleased to present the results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (the “Year”). The Group recorded a
revenue of approximately HK$174.5 million as compared to
the revenue of approximately HK$228.1 million last period.
The revenue mainly comprised the brokerage and commission
income of approximately HK$150.1 million and interest income
from money lending business of approximately HK$31.6 million.
The net loss for the Year was approximately HK$67.1 million as
compared to the net profit of approximately HK$368.9 million for
the last period. Basic loss per share attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent for the Year was approximately HK$0.005
(31 December 2017: basic earnings per share of HK$0.033). The
Group’s net loss for the Year was mainly attributable to (i) the
impairment loss on investment in an associate of approximately
HK$51.3 million; (ii) the share of loss of an associate of
approximately HK$13.9 million; (iii) the impairment losses on
other financial assets and contract assets of approximately HK$17.3
million. The unrealized fair value loss on equity investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income (the “FVTOCI”) of the
Year of approximately HK$943.8 million and the share of other
comprehensive loss of an associate of approximately HK$108.7
million were taken to revaluation reserve account and resulted in a
decrease in the Group’s other comprehensive income and total net
assets.

Economy review

The Sino-US trade wars and midterm elections highlighted U.S.
economy in 2018 for investors. Since July 2018, U.S. imposed
tariffs on billions of dollars worth of Chinese products and China
retaliated in the same way. The trade war resulted in billions of
dollars of losses for both sides, hitting industries including autos,
technology and agriculture, etc. With the U.S. economy and the
equity market are in good shape, the U.S. economy advanced
2.9%, above 2.2% in 2017 and the highest growth rate since 2015.
Due to the escalation of the Sino-US trade war, the exchange rate
of Renminbi weakened against US dollar in the second half of the
year.

Driven by the consumer market, the GDP growth in Mainland
China reached 6.6% for 2018. The unemployment rate remained
stable, and consumer prices increased modestly. Urban and rural
residents continued to experience income growth. In light of
the stable economic development, the consumer goods market
generally maintained a steady growth. Despite the above, Chinese
consumers worried about a weaker global economy, and the
lingering Sino-US trade war has affected China’s economy.
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

Hong Kong’s economy expanded by 1.3% vyear-on-year in real
terms in the fourth quarter of 2018, after the growth of 2.8% in
the preceding quarter. For 2018 as a whole, Hong Kong's GDP
grew by 3% in real terms that was faster than the trend growth
of 2.8% over the past ten years for the second year. Despite the
good performance in economy, Hong Kong, as the world’s freest
economy, was greatly affected by the global environment. With the
unsatisfactory performance in the global and China market, during
the Year, the Hang Seng Index has a largest decline since the global
financial crisis. The property market perform well in the first half of
2018, driven by low interest rate and limited supply. The property
market then entered into a moderate consolidation phase in the
second half of 2018 surrounded by external uncertainties.

Business Review

Brokerage and Placing Commission

Brokerage & margin financing

The business are carried on through Instant Achieve Limited (“IAL"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, which in turn owned
100% equity interest in Central Wealth Securities Investment
Limited (“CWSI”) and Central Wealth Futures Limited (“CWEF”).
CWSI and CWF are incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability
and are carrying on business in type 1 (dealing in securities), type
2 (dealing in futures contracts), type 4 (advising on securities) and
type 5 (advising on futures contracts) regulated activities under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance.

During the Year, the commission income from securities and futures
dealing was approximately HK$21.0 million and the interest
income from the securities margin financing was approximately
HK$31.4 million. The Group will maintain its prudent credit
policy and risk management approach with a view to achieve a
sustainable business environment.

Debt capital market business

The business are carried on through IAL, which in turn owned
100% equity interest in CWSI. CWSI is incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability and are carrying on business in type 1 (dealing
in securities) and type 4 (advising on securities) regulated activities
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis
FEwE MEIE BT kT

The Group through CWSI has been providing debt capital market
(“DCM”) service to support debt financing need of China domiciled
companies since July 2017. The Company has so far participated
in 24 debt issues with roles of joint global coordinator, joint
book-runner, joint lead manager or placing agent with an aggregate
issue size of approximately US$3,602 million as at 31 December
2018. The debts are issued through either private or public offerings
with coupon rates ranging from 5% to 10% per annum. According
to the information published on Bloomberg as of 26 March 2019,
CWSI ranked as the 64th manager in the issuance of offshore China
bonds in the year of 2018 based on the issuance volume credited to
each involved party. During the Year, the provision of DCM service
has recorded an income of approximately HK$97.7 million. The
Group will continue to strengthen our services in the coming year
and broaden our service range with an aim to provide one stop
service to our customers.

Asset management

The business are carried on through IAL, which in turn owned
100% equity interest in Central Wealth Asset Management Limited
(“CWAM”). CWAM is incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability and are carrying on business in type 9 (asset management)
regulated activities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

During the Year, the Group has kicked off the asset management
business through CWAM. The asset management engages in
provision of investment management services on diversified and
comprehensive investment products including private funds and
discretionary accounts to individual, corporate and institutional
clients. Currently, our investment funds mainly focus on the
China’s bond market as it is the third largest in the world and offers
attractive yield opportunities. It is expected that the market will
continue to grow and transform with the rest of the economy, which
the Group believes will become more capital market oriented
and open to foreign investors. The assets under management have
reached approximately US$197.1 million as at 31 December 2018.
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

Property Investments

The Group principally focuses on the luxury property investments
in Hong Kong market and currently holds one luxury property
located at No. 2 Lincoln Road, Kowloon Tong in Hong Kong (“No.
2 Lincoln Road Property”). The Group has disposed of a property
located at No. 1 Lincoln Road, Kowloon Tong in Hong Kong (“No. 1
Lincoln Road Property”) to Future World Financial Holdings Limited
(“FWF") for the consideration shares of approximately HK$342.5
million and recorded a gain of approximately HK$65.6 million
during the Year. For details, please refer to the announcements
dated 29 December 2017, 22 January 2018, 12 February 2018,
12 March 2018, 16 March 2018 and 25 April 2018 and the circular
of the Company dated 21 March 2018. During the Year, the rental
income from No. 2 Lincoln Road Property was approximately
HK$5.4 million. The Group will continue to monitor its property
portfolio with an aim to generate the stable rental income and the
capital appreciation.

Financial Investments and Services

Financial investments and trading

During the Year, the Hang Seng Index was volatile with fluctuations
between 24,585 points and 33,154 points. Due to the unsatisfactory
performance of global equity market, in particular the U.S. stock
market, the Group recorded realized losses on disposal of equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
HK$14.4 million.

Money lending business

During the Year, the interest income from the money lending
business was approximately HK$31.6 million. The net balance of
loan book recorded a decrease of approximately HK$177.3 million
to approximately HK$299.5 million as compared to approximately
HK$476.8 million as at 31 December 2017. The money lending
business charged annual interest rates at a range from 5% to 12%
(31 December 2017: range from 5% to 12%). The Group will
continue to maintain its prudent credit policy and risk management
approach with a view to achieve a sound financial management
and sustainable business environment.

Prospects

Looking ahead, with the implementation of the belt and road
initiative, the development of Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau
Greater Bay Area and the completion of several major infrastructure
projects like the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge and the Express
Railway Link in the coming years, Hong Kong has great potential
to create synergy with countries and cities nearby. Further, The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited has announced new rules to
encourage the new listings of biotech companies and companies
with weighted voting rights structure. It is expected that Hong Kong
will benefit from the new listing regime.
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis
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In the longer run, the listing platforms of the Mainland and Hong
Kong will complement and supplement each other more on the
back of the development of the Greater Bay Area, rise of more
Chinese unicorns driving the new economy forward, and greater
connectivity between the two capital markets.

Nonetheless, continuing political and economic uncertainties
remain on a number of fronts. Trade tensions between the U.S. and
China, as well as uncertainty of President Trump’s policies could
derail the global economic recovery. Besides, we shall not overlook
the downside risks due to the expectation of US interest hike and
the threat of geopolitical tension which continue to cloud the
global economic recovery.

In the early 2019, the situation began to improve as the U.S.
and China start to reach a compromise on the trade deal and the
China’s authorities had already announced stimulus measures.
These include a series of tax cuts and lower the bank reserve
requirement to boost small businesses and consumption.

In light of these macroeconomic challenges, the Group will
continue to be stay alert, but positive, to pursue its prudent
investment strategy in developing its existing and new businesses.

Financial Review

The Group for the Year recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$174.5 million as compared to the revenue of approximately
HK$228.1 million last period. The Group’s revenue principally
comprised the interest income from money lending business of
approximately HK$31.6 million, commission income from provision
of DCM service of approximately HK$97.7 million, the commission
income from securities and futures dealing of approximately
HK$21.0 million, interest income from securities margin financing
of approximately HK$31.4 million and property rental income of
approximately HK$6.7 million.

The Group’s net loss for the Year was mainly attributable to (i) the
impairment loss on investment in an associate of approximately
HK$51.3 million; (ii) the share of loss of an associate of
approximately HK$13.9 million; (iii) the impairment losses
on other financial assets and contract assets of approximately
HK$17.3 million. The Group recorded total comprehensive loss of
approximately HK$1,119.2 million for the Year compared to the
total comprehensive income of approximately HK$950.1 million for
last period.
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s net asset value was
approximately HK$1,848.8 million compared to the net asset
value of approximately HK$2,723.9 million as at 31 December
2017. The consolidated net asset value per share of the Group as
at 31 December 2018 was approximately HK$0.13 (31 December
2017: HK$0.21). The Group’s total assets and total liabilities
were approximately HK$2,890.9 million (31 December 2017:
HK$4,228.6 million) and approximately HK$1,042.1 million
(31 December 2017: HK$1,504.7 million). The decrease are mainly
due to the fair value loss through other comprehensive income and
share of other comprehensive loss of an associate.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the Year, the Group generally financed its operation
with internally generated cash flow, overdrafts, bank and other
borrowings and other fund raising activities. The Group’s cash
and bank balances as at 31 December 2018 were approximately
HK$100.9 million (31 December 2017: HK$123.4 million).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had bank overdrafts of
approximately HK$45.1 million (31 December 2017: HK$59.5
million), interest-bearing bank borrowings of approximately
HK$298.7 million (31 December 2017: HK$331.8 million),
interest-bearing other borrowings of approximately HK$472.2
million (31 December 2017: HK$525.9 million) and non-current
notes payable of approximately HK$86.6 million (31 December
2017: HK$86.6 million).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s current ratio was
approximately 1.14 times (31 December 2017: 1.65 times) based
on current assets of approximately HK$914.4 million (31 December
2017: HK$2,072.5 million) and current liabilities of approximately
HK$799.1 million (31 December 2017: HK$1,254.0 million).
As at 31 December 2018, the Group has no capital commitment
(31 December 2017: Nil). The Group also had no other contingent
liabilities (31 December 2017: Nil).
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis
FEwE MEIE BT kT

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s gearing ratio was
approximately 48.82% (31 December 2017: 41.33%). Gearing
ratio equals total borrowings divided by net asset value as at the
end of the reporting period. The total borrowings of approximately
HK$902.5 million includes bank and other borrowings, bank
overdraft and notes payable.

The Group’s bank balance, borrowings and interest payment are
mainly denominated in Hong Kong and United States dollars. Most
of the Group's revenue are made in Hong Kong dollars. Therefore,
the exchange risks that the Group is exposed to are insignificant.

In June 2018, the Company placed a total of 2,000,000,000 shares
at HK$0.1 per placing share representing 15.73% of its total issued
capital at that time. The proceeds of HK$200.0 million was used
for the repayment of loan. Detailed information was set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 21 May 2018 and 7 June 2018
respectively.

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy
liquidity position throughout the Year. The Group strives to reduce
exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit assessments
and evaluations of the financial status of its customers. To manage
liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity
position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group's assets,
liabilities and other commitments can meet its funding requirements
from time to time.
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Significant Investments

Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis
TEWMENEEENwm MO

As at 31 December 2018, the Group maintained a portfolio of
equity investments including equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income with total carrying amount of
approximately HK$1,296.2 million. The details of the portfolio of
equity investments as at 31 December 2018 are respectively set out

as follows:

31 December 2018

Percentage of

Percentage of the fair value of

EARE

RN—E—NF+-_A=+—B AEEHEERT
#R{E%1,296,200,0008 T 2 IR A& EHE (B
EREMEANSZZAFEINERZBRAKLE) -
RZZE-NE+-_A=1+—BHRAKREHE
RIS

—E-N\Ft+=A=+-—H

shareholding  the investment Carrying Fair value
in the listed in listed Fair value of value of the gains/(losses) of
securities  securities to  the investment investment  the investment  Realised gain/
held by the  total assets of in listed in listed in listed (loss) for the
Group as at the Group as at  securities as at ~ securities as at ~ securities as at year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
Stock Code  Name of the investees 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
R
“E-N\F R
R tZA=t- i3 S —B-N\§ BE
ZEB-0\F B —B-N& ZB-N\F tZA=t- ZE-N\F
tZA=t- FKEzE® +=ZA=t- +ZA=t- R t=A=t-
RF&EfE  BFREZ = B AL =
IhE%z DVELEE ZLHES ZLTES REZDTFE LEECER
BRHRE REHKEH BREESL #HEZEINL REZLTE REZREE WE/(F8) W&/ (F8)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TET THT
Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
ERHEM2ARERATENRRARE
1004 China Smarter Energy Group Holdings Limited 0.26% 0.68% 19,757 40,528 (20,771) (40,872)
PEERRREEERERAF
1141 CMBC Capital Holdings Limited 8.23% 44.15% 1,276,397 1,415,427 (139,030) (4,607)
RPEFEREBR AR
Total 1,296,154 1,455,955 (159,801) (45,479)
ait
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis
FEwE MEIE BT kT

Performance and prospects of the investees

1.

12

China Smarter Energy Group Holdings Limited (“China
Smarter”)

China Smarter together with its subsidiaries (the “China
Smarter Group”) are principally engaged in (i) clean energy
business and (ii) investment business. As mentioned in its
interim report for the six months ended 30 September 2018,
the China Smarter Group recorded a total revenue and other
income amount to approximately HK$800 million for the
period. The China Smarter Group’s reported a net loss of
approximately HK$163 million attributable to shareholders
of China Smarter. The basic and diluted loss per share are
HK1.74 cents for the period. As at 30 September 2018, the
unaudited consolidated net asset value of the China Smarter
Group was approximately HK$1,688 million. No dividend
was received during the Year.

The Paris Agreement came into effect in November 2016,
which meant that the development of new energy will be
further accelerated. The construction of a green, recycling
and low-carbon energy system has become necessary for
the social development, which provided a favorable social
environment and a broad market for the development of
renewable energy. The Company is optimistic about the
long-term development of the clean energy industry, and thus
is optimistic on the future prospect of China Smarter. The
Group may realize the investments from time to time where to
do so is to be in the best interests of the Group or where the
terms on which such realization to be particularly favorable to
the Group.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group held 24,696,000
shares of China Smarter. China Smarter closed at HK$0.8
as at 31 December 2018 as compared to HK$1.0 as at
29 December 2017.
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

CMBC Capital Holdings Limited (“CMBC")

CMBC together with its subsidiaries (the “CMBC Group”) are
principally engaged in (i) securities business, (ii) investment
and financing and (iii) asset management and advisory
business. As mentioned in its interim report for the six month
ended 30 June 2018, the CMBC Group recorded a total
revenue and other income of approximately HK$344.1 million
for the period. The CMBC Group’s reported a net profit of
approximately HK$100.4 million attributable to shareholders
of CMBC. The basic and diluted earnings per share were both
HKO0.22 cents. As at 30 June 2018, the unaudited consolidated
net asset value of the CMBC Group was approximately
HK$1,096.2 million. No dividend was received during the
Year.

In May 2017, China Minsheng Banking Corp. Ltd. became the
ultimate controlling shareholder of CMBC and since then the
CMBC Group started its rapid development. Subsequently in
August 2017 and October 2017, the CMBC Group acquired
the entire issued share capital of CMBC Capital Finance
Limited and CMBC International Capital Limited, respectively
and as a result, the CMBC Group is licensed to engage in type
1 (dealing in securities), type 2 (dealing in futures contracts),
type 4 (advising on securities), type 6 (advising on corporate
finance) and type 9 (asset management) regulated activities,
as well as the licensed money lending business and has all
material licenses required for services expected to be required
by most of its potential clients at current stage.

Leveraging on the strong reputation, expertise and capability
of the China Minsheng Bank, and the licenses it possesses,
the CMBC Group has achieved rapid growth in its financial
performance. The Company has strong confidence in the
experienced and competent management team of CMBC that
they can lead CMBC to perform much better in the future
and improve the earnings. The management of the Group
considers the investment in CMBC is for long term purpose.
However, the Group would not rule out the possibility of
realizing the investments from time to time where to do so
is to be in the best interests of the Group or where the terms
on which such realization to be particularly favorable to the
Group.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group held 3,927,375,829
shares of CMBC. CMBC closed at HK$0.325 as at
31 December 2018 as compared to HK$0.53 as at
29 December 2017.

TEWMENEEENwm MO
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis
FEwE MEIE BT kT

Details of Charges on Assets

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had pledged certain
listed equity investments of approximately HK$1,276.4 million
(31 December 2017: HK$1,925.7 million) to secure the other
borrowings. As at 31 December 2018, the Group had pledged its
investment properties with a carrying amount of approximately
HK$435.0 million to secure the bank borrowings (31 December
2017: HK$830.0 million).

Material Acquisition and Disposal

Acquisition of Interest in FWF and Disposal of No. 1 Lincoln
Road Property

During the year, the Group disposed of its entire interest in
Goodview Assets Limited, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, to FWF for the consideration shares of approximately
HK$342.5 million. The sole asset of the disposal company is No.
1 Lincoln Road Property. The disposal was completed on 25 April
2018. Upon completion, the Group has acquired 18.78% interest in
FWF and treated FWF as investment in an associate. Details of the
acquisition and disposal were set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 29 December 2017, 22 January 2018, 12 February
2018, 12 March 2018, 16 March 2018 and 25 April 2018, and the
circular of the Company dated 21 March 2018.

Events after the Reporting Period

Change of Company Name and Stock Short Name

To better reflect the current status of the Group’s business and its
direction of future development, the Company’s English name has
been changed to “Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited” and
the Company’s secondary name in Chinese has been changed to
“HRESEERAMR NG, Shares have been traded on the Stock
Exchange under the new stock short name “CENTRALWEALTHGP”
in English and “FFZEKBEZEA" in Chinese, with effect from
11 February 2019. The stock code of the Company remains
unchanged as “139”.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 29 November 2018, 27 December 2018 and 1 February
2019, and the circular of the Company dated 30 November 2018.

Employment, Training and Development

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 78 employees.
The Group is committed to staff training and development and
structured training programs for all employees. Remuneration
packages are maintained at a competitive level and reviewed on a
periodic basis. Bonuses and share options are awarded to certain
employees according to individual performance and industry
practice.
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The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries during the year consisted
of securities and futures dealing business, financial investments,
property investments and money lending business.

Business Review

A review of the Group’s business during the year, which includes
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the
Group, particulars of important events affecting the Group that
have occurred since the end of the year ended 31 December
2018, an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business, an analysis of the Group’s performance using financial
key performance indicators and discussion on the Company’s
environmental policies and performances and the relationships with
its key stakeholders, are included in the “Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate Governance
Report” and “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this
annual report. The review forms part of this directors’ report.

Results and Dividends

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 December 2018 and the
financial position of the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 66 to 228.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year.

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited
financial statements, is set out below. This summary does not form
part of the audited financial statements.

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors

ESEWmE

Results

Revenue WA

(Loss)/profit before tax BEA (B8) /&M

Tax HE

(Loss)/profit for the year/period ATREREE /B
attributable to (B8) /&M
Owners of the parent SYNGE 2PN
Non-controlling interests RIS

Assets and liabilities

Total assets EEAE

Total liabilities BEAR

Net assets BEFE

E
For the period
from
Year ended 1 April to
31 December 31 December Year ended 31 March
BEz A-HZ%
+=HR +=h
=t+-A =t-H
EEE LS| BE=A=1t-HILEE
2018 2017 2017 2016 2015
= —E—+f  ZE-tf CZZE-RE CZZ-IF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERr TET TER TER
174,454 228,055 (52,128) (472,438) 6,548
(58,875) 373,375 (156,397) (1,214,744) (1,274,973)
(8,186) (4,520) - (1 (166)
(67,061) 368,855 (156,397) (1,252,637) (1,266,154)
. - - 37,892 (8,985)
(67,061) 368,855 (156,397) (1,214,745) (1,275,139)
EEHEE
As at 31 December As at 31 March
R+=A=+-H R=A=+-H
2018 2017 2017 2016 2015
=Lt —E2-+f  C“ZE-t+f CZE-x§f CZZ-If%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TR TR TR TR
2,890,899 4,228,648 1,424,451 1,025,544 1,315,513
1,042,077 1,504,744 108,872 91,088 196,786
1,848,822 2,723,904 1,315,579 934,456 1,118,727
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Share Capital
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital are set out in
note 34 to the financial statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed

Securities of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2018, the Company had no reserves available
for cash distribution and distribution in specie. In addition, the
Company’s share premium account and capital reserve, with an
aggregate balance of approximately HK$4,672,045,000 may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year under review, operating income or revenue from
transactions with each external customer amounts to less than 10%
of the Group’s total operating income or revenue. The Group has no
major suppliers due to the nature of the Group's principal activities
of provision of trading in securities and futures contracts services,
financial investment, property investments and money lending.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their close
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
had any beneficial interest in the above customer or supplier.

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors

ESEWmE

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report are as follows:

Executive directors:

Mr. Chen Xiaodong

Mr. Xu Ke (appointed on 27 February 2018)

Mr. Yu Qingrui

Ms. Lam Hay Yin

Ms. Lee Chau Man Ada (resigned on 23 November 2018)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong

Mr. Chen Youchun

Mr. Mai Qijian (resigned on 2 October 2018)
Mr. Wu Ming (appointed on 2 October 2018)

Pursuant to the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws, Mr. Chen
Xiaodong, Mr. Yu Qingrui and Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong shall retire at
the 2019 annual general meeting (the “2019 AGM”) and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the said meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from each of the independent non-executive directors of the
Company and the Company still considers them to be independent
as at the date of this report pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

Directors’ Biographies
Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on
pages 55 to 57 of the annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of Mr. Chen Xiaodong, Mr. Xu Ke, Mr. Yu Qingrui and Ms. Lam
Hay Yin has a service contract with the Company without any fixed
term.

Each of Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong, Mr. Chen Youchun and Mr. Wu Ming
has been appointed for a fixed term of one year.

All directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the annual general meeting in accordance with the bye-laws of the
Company.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment, other than statutory compensation.
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Indemnity of Directors

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of the
Company is currently in force and was in force throughout the year.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

Directors’ Remuneration

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s
board of directors with reference to directors” duties, responsibilities
and performance and the results of the Group.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,

Arrangements or Contracts

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”,
no director nor a connected entity of a director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.

Connected Transactions

Continuing Connected Transactions: Brokerage Services and
Margin Financing Agreement

On 17 August 2018, CWSI, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into the brokerage services and margin
financing agreement (the “Agreement”) with Mr. Xu Ke, an
executive director and the chief executive officer of the Company,
in relation to the provision of the brokerage services and the margin
financing by CWSI to Mr. Xu on a non-exclusive basis commencing
from 17 August 2018 to 31 December 2020. Pursuant to the
Agreement, Mr. Xu would pay brokerage fees and interests on the
margin financing to CWSI in respect of the provision of brokerage
services and the margin financing by CWSI. Details were set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 17 August 2018.
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Report of the Directors
EXgWmE

The annual caps for the brokerage fees, the maximum outstanding
amount of the margin financing; and the maximum interest amount
of the margin financing for each of the period commencing from
the date of the Agreement to 31 December 2018 and the two years

BZmZEESERBrE_—_E—N\FE+_A=1+—
AEtEEBE-_ZE_2F+_A=+—HIME
FEXEPH LB RKEETRAMERS S
ERffERESSMNEZFELRAT:

ending 31 December 2020 are as follows:

From
17 August For the year For the year
2018 to ending ending
31 December 31 December 31 December
2018 2019 2020
BE=Z-N\F¥
NA+tRE EBE-T-NF HE-Z-EF
-\ +=ZA=t+-B +=ZA=+—H
+=A=+-H LFE LHFE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT AT
Brokerage Fees RRE 500,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Maximum outstanding amount of AEEFRBERSSR
the Margin Financing 40,000,000 40,000,000 40,000,000
Maximum interest amount of HFREESESHS
the Margin Financing 2,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000

Total brokerage fees, maximum outstanding amount of margin
financing and maximum interest amount of the margin financing
during the period from 17 August 2018 to 31 December 2018 were
HK$52,440, HK$39,403,160 and HK$1,356,179 respectively.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions for the year ended
31 December 2018 and confirmed that the continuing connected
transaction related to the Agreement has been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing such
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company and the shareholders as a whole.
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The auditor of the Company was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor of the Company has issued his unqualified
letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the
aforesaid continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Listing Rule 14A.56.

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.

Equity-linked Agreements

Other than the share option schemes of the Company as disclosed
under the paragraph headed “Share Option Schemes” in this
directors’ report and note 37 to the financial statements, no equity-
linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements
that will or may result in the Company issuing shares were entered
into by the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the
year.

Share Option Schemes

The Company currently operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
(including but not limited to the directors and employees of the
Group) who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Details of the Company’s share option schemes are set out in note
37 to the financial statements.

After the expiry of the old share option scheme on 27 August 2013,
the Company adopted a new share option scheme on 27 September
2013 in order to provide incentives and rewards to the eligible
participants.

At the 2018 annual general meeting of the Company, the scheme
mandate limit was refreshed and approved by the then shareholders
such that the total number of shares which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of all share options to be granted under the share
option scheme and any other share option scheme(s) as may
from time to time be adopted by the Company must not exceed
1,271,665,046 shares. As at the date of this report, the total number
of shares available for issue under the share option scheme of the
Company was 1,271,665,046 shares, representing approximately
8.64% of the issued share capital of the Company. The Company
may refresh the scheme mandate limit with its shareholders’
approval provided that each such refreshment may not exceed 10%
of the shares in issue as at the date of the shareholders” approval.

Report of the Directors
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RARB ZZE—N\NFEREBFRE L ERFZ
BREHRAETEEE LR BUEERAQAR
BEREAESI R TRREM 2T E MR R
EEH 2R ETHER AT ZRG
EEINSHBIB1,271,665,0460% c AR SRS B HY -
BEARARBREFETFETZERNDRAEE
1,271,665,046% " HE R AR A E HITHRAL
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SHRE

A summary of the movements of the share option schemes of the

Company during the year is set out as follows:

Number of
share options
outstanding at

Number of share
options granted

Number of share
options
outstanding at
31 December

AR - R AT 2 B B2

Date of grant

Ftan T

Exercise price

Exercise period  of share options

Name or category of participant 1 January 2018  during the year® 2018 of share options of share options” (HK$ per share)
R=Z-N\F
RZB-NF TZA=t-H
—RA—-HERT REFERHZ i RITE 2 BRETHEE
SHEELZDEA EZBRERE BREREC BRERA BTRRERS BRETEHE (BRER)
Director
iz
Chen Xiaodong 89,600,000 - 89,600,000 20/02/2017 20/02/2017-19/02/2019 0.181
REER “T-tf-A-1+B —ZT-tF-A-tAZ
—F-NE-AtAhR
= 127,120,000 127,120,000 18/04/2018 18/04/2018-10/04/2020 0.1174
“Z2-\fWATNE ZE-N\FWATNEEZE
“Z-ZENATA
89,600,000 127,120,000 216,720,000
Xu Ke - 127,120,000 127,120,000 18/04/2018 18/04/2018-10/04/2020 0.1174
3ol “Z-\FMA+NR ZZ-\FHEATNRE
“E-RFNATA
Yu Qingrui 89,600,000 - 89,600,000 20/02/2017 20/02/2017-19/02/2019 0.181
REH F—tF-A+H ZEtF-A-tHE
“E-NEZAthA
- 127,120,000 127,120,000 18/04/2018 18/04/2018-10/04/2020 0.1174
“E-\FMATAR ZE-N\FEATNAEE
“Z-EFNATA
89,600,000 127,120,000 216,720,000
Lam Hay Yin — 127,120,000 127,120,000 18/04/2018 18/04/2018-10/04/2020 0.1174
R “Z-\FMATNE ZE-N\FEATNEEZE
“Z-ZFEA+H
Lee Chau Man Ada = 127,120,000 127,120,000 18/04/2018 18/04/2018-10/04/2020 0.1174
(resigned on 23 November
2018)
FIE “E-\FMATAR ZE-N\FEATNEE
(R=2-N\%¥ “RCRENAT+H
T—AZt=H&E)
Other employee
Hitg S
In aggregate 3,000,000 - 3,000,000 20/02/2017 20/02/2017-19/02/2019 0.181
= "B AF-A-FR B AF-A-THE
“EZ-A%-A+tAR
- 437,864,000 437,864,000 18/04/2018 18/04/2018-10/04/2020 0.1174
“Z-\FMATAR ZE-N\FEATNAEE
“Z-ZFEA+H
3,000,000 437,864,000 440,864,000
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Number of share

Report of the Directors
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Number of options
share options  Number of share outstanding at Exercise price
outstanding at  options granted 31 December Date of grant Exercise period of share options
Name or category of participant 1 January 2018  during the year® 2018 of share options of share options” (HK$ per share)
R-ZB-N\§
RZE-N\§ +=ZA=+—-H
—B-BHRT REFERHZ W RATHEZ BRETEE
SHEERZHER ErEREHA BREHE BREHA RYERERD BRETESRR (BR#ET)
Management personnel of
service providers
RERERZEEBAS
In aggregate 713,800,000 - 713,800,000 20/02/2017 20/02/2017-19/02/2019 0.181
Ch “Z—+FZR=+R ZZ—+F-ZAR=+RHE
“Z-nEZATNhH
Total 3t 896,000,000  1,073,464,000  1,969,464,000
Notes: B 5T

(1) The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until

the commencement of the exercise period.

(2)  The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before the

date of grant of share options on 18 April 2018 was HK$0.115.

(3)  No share options have been exercised/lapsed/cancelled during the

year ended 31 December 2018.

@)

3)

BRhEZzSBEASKLASAREETERAMS
Bk

ZEBRREREBH - N \FONA+N\BA
R FRGD W HE A0.1158 7T -

BEBERENEE_Z-—NF+_A=+—H
IR EATEE R T -
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E=EWE

Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2018, the interests of the directors of the
Company in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)), as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

(1) Long position in ordinary shares of the Company

§$%$Qﬂﬁﬁ&ﬁ@ﬁ62%

RZBE-N\F+-_A=+—H ARFEENAK
RE KA (EERESRBEGHH
(TBHEEEBEEMN)EXVE R ERAELR
ARBRIBEES KM E GG E352ATUER
ZERMz D IRELEMBETAESETE
FR MR EST A ([RLETR])AMNE AR A
R R P #Ezs N T

1 RELXFEBRZHR

Percentage* of

Number of the Company’s

ordinary shares issued share

Name of director Capacity interested capital

BEESEN (LHEAQFSBRT

EEsA =47 HERHYE RAB D>

Chen Xiaodong Beneficial owner 4,180,246 0.03%
PREEER ERBERA

Xu Ke Beneficial owner 1,125,701,571 7.65%
Gl ERBEAA

Yu Qingrui Beneficial owner 3,323,610 0.02%
REH ERBERA

Wu Ming Beneficial owner 3,990,000 0.03%
R EREAA

¥ The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares BOLERARAN T BREERAR

interested divided by the number of the Company’s issued
shares as at 31 December 2018.
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(2) Long position in underlying shares of the Company -
physically settled unlisted equity derivatives

Report of the Directors
EXEWRE

2 RAELXFEBERO2HFRE —BUEEHRL
TRATETAR

Percentage* of
the underlying
shares over
the Company’s
issued share

Number of
underlying shares
in respect of the
share options

Name of director Capacity granted capital
Rt BRE B IR A0
Fir% 1 AE BE RATE BT

BEEnA 55 RO EE BRAET DL *

Chen Xiaodong Beneficial owner 216,720,000 1.47%

PREE R EREAA

Xu Ke Beneficial owner 127,120,000 0.86%

R EmlEA A

Yu Qingrui Beneficial owner 216,720,000 1.47%

REH EREAA

Lam Hay Yin Beneficial owner 127,120,000 0.86%

NG EmlEA A

Details of the share options granted by the Company are set
out under the section “Share Option Schemes” in this report.

& The percentage represents the number of underlying shares
interested divided by the number of the Company’s issued
shares as at 31 December 2018.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he/she was deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or which were required to be entered into the register kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

BRAA DR R L B A 2 SIS S AN R
& [t E] —&-

* Bt A R e R R 2B BR AR
REAR_FE-N\F+-_A=+—HE#HT
PR &R

BREXAEEEN R N\FT_A=+—
B ARAzEFETHETETHRASRERA AR
SEEMABRZEE (ERREBSRPERIF
XV &F) 2 Bfn ~ MR B 5 H A E AR IE
EFMREGROEXV I FR7RESD FBAME N
NEIRBRAz SRR (BIRREEZ M
EHROIZZERTERERNEFRBEIERR
KE) RAMAXRRBREBEREF LB EKRIE
352 MAFE ZERMAXRIFFZETRIRER
MEARRE RBRZ T2 EIRE
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Report of the Directors
E=EWE

Directors” Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures
Save as disclosed under the headings “Directors’ Interests in
Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company” and “Share Option
Schemes” above and in the share option scheme disclosures in
note 37 to the financial statements, at no time during the year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company granted to any of the directors or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2018, the following parties had interests of
5% or more in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO, or as the Company is aware:

EERERODIES ZER

B bt [EERARA R RAABRD 2 ExE

KB E BT A RSB RERMFE37AEH
BREFIRBEEMMREEN RAFEAR
BERTMEFIAREZTALBEBIRARFFL
REAEBEARRRBRO HESFMEARN S
Z PR T F BT E AT R F A o

AREHEAERME R AW ET L EMRHE - B
FESANTMEMEABEEAZSERN-

FERRRAAFRE RAEBERD
Z

RZF—N\F+=A=+—R BEAATRE
% RGN E336HMEFE 2 B RMATH
RBARAE - FIIEHFRARDF 2R AR
B b B 5% A b2 M

Long position in ordinary shares of the Company REAREBRZHR
Percentage* of
Number of the Company’s
Name of substantial ordinary shares issued share
shareholder Capacity Note interested capital
BEERZZ (XA RERT
TERRESE B4 ik ZEREAE RAEB D+
Dragon Regal Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 2,000,000,000 13.59%
EREEFRAF EREAA
Huang Chuan Beneficial owner 8,610,000 0.06%
= BEBEAA
Other (1) 2,000,000,000 13.59%
Hith
2,008,610,000 13.65%
Chen Xiangru Beneficial owner 1,972,550,548 13.40%
BR A 2R ERFEAA
Future World Financial Holdings Interest held by a controlled (2) 1,070,621,316 7.27%
Limited corporation
ARERSHERARA R BERXEGARFAE 2R
Golden Horse Hong Kong Beneficial owner 1,070,621,316 7.27%

Investment Limited

EHBEREBRDA BaliA A
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(1) These shares were held by Dragon Regal Holdings Limited which was
controlled by Huang Chuan.

(2)  These shares were held by Golden Horse Hong Kong Investment
Limited which was controlled by Future World Financial Holdings
Limited.

* The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares interested
divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at
31 December 2018.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, no person, other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the section headed “Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company” above, had an interest or a short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this report, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float.

Directors’ Interests in a Competing Business

During the year and up to the date of this report, no director is
considered to have interests in a business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses
of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

As far as the directors are aware, during the year and up to the date
of this report, the Group has complied in material respects with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on its
business and operations.

Events after the reporting period
Details of the significant events of the Group after the reporting
period are set out in note 47 to the financial statements.

Corporate Governance

Details of the corporate governance practices of the Company are
set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in
this annual report.
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Auditors =B ED
Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for their re-appointment &K &I EHFTAIE M SR MA QAR
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the 2019 AGM. “E-NFREBFAGIRERER BEZ

FEH B E AN A A BED — B o

On behalf of the Board REREFE

Chen Xiaodong E

Chairman PBREER

Hong Kong e

26 March 2019 —E-NAF=A=+<H
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Corporate Governance Re

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board recognizes the importance of good corporate governance
to the Company’s healthy growth and has devoted considerable
efforts to formulating and implementing corporate governance
practices appropriate to the Company’s needs.

Throughout the year under review, the Company has complied
with the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, except for
the deviation from the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code. Key
corporate governance principles and practices of the Company
as well as the details of the foregoing deviation are summarized
below.

The Board

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board

Direction and control of Company business are vested in the
Board. The Board establishes policies, strategies and plans for the
development of Company business, and provides leadership in the
creation of value for shareholders. All directors have carried out
their duties in good faith, in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, taking decisions objectively and acting in the interests
of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the Company,
including approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, risk management and internal control
systems, material transactions (particularly those involving conflict
of interests), financial information, appointment of directors and
other significant financial and operational matters.

All directors have timely access to all relevant information as well
as the advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior
management of the Company, with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable laws and regulations are followed.
Any director may request independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expenses, upon
reasonable request made to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are led by the Executive Committee and senior
management of the Company. The Board has delegated a schedule
of responsibilities to these officers for implementing Board
decisions. The Board reviews the delegated functions and work
tasks regularly. The aforesaid officers have to obtain Board approval
prior to entering any significant transactions.
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Board Composition
The composition of the Board and the Board Committees as at the
date of this annual report is as follows:

Board of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Xu Ke (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Yu Qingrui

Ms. Lam Hay Yin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong

Mr. Chen Youchun

Mr. Wu Ming

Executive Committee

Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman)
Mr. Xu Ke

Mr. Yu Qingrui

Ms. Lam Hay Yin

Audit Committee

Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Youchun

Mr. Wu Ming

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong (Chairman)
Ms. Lam Hay Yin

Mr. Chen Youchun

Nomination Committee

Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman)
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong

Mr. Chen Youchun

The biographical details of the directors and the relationships
among the members of the Board are disclosed in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors” in this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board at all times
met the requirement of the Listing Rules of having a minimum of
three independent non-executive directors (representing at least
one-third of the Board) with one of them possessing appropriate
professional qualifications and accounting and related financial
management expertise.
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The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of
skills and experience appropriate for the business requirement
and objectives of the Group and for the exercise of independent
judgement.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all independent non-executive directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. To achieve clear division
of responsibilities between the management of the Board and
day-to-day management of the business and hence to ensure
balance of power and authority, there is separation of duties for
the Chairman and Chief Executive of the Company. The Group
had been recruiting the appropriate candidate for the post of chief
executive after the resignation of the former chief executive on
20 April 2015.

On 27 February 2018, the Company announced the appointment of
Mr. Xu Ke as an executive director and the chief executive officer of
the Company. The Board considered that such appointment would
achieve a separation of duties for the Chairman and Chief Executive
of the Company and ensure a balance of power and authority,
and hence strengthening the governance function and business
development of the Group.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The executive directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Chen
Xiaodong, Mr. Xu Ke, Mr. Yu Qingrui and Ms. Lam Hay Yin have
not been appointed for a specific term but they are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the Company’s annual
general meeting in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws. The
Company has also issued a letter of appointment to each of the
independent non-executive directors of the Company for a term of
1 year.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws, Mr. Chen
Xiaodong, Mr. Yu Qingrui and Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong shall retire
at the 2019 AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the 2019 AGM. The Board recommended the
re-election of the above retiring directors at the 2019 AGM.
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Training and Continuing Development of Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company.

All directors of the Company receive a comprehensive induction
on his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of
the business and operations of the Group and full awareness of
director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant statutory requirements. Such induction is normally
supplemented with visits to the Group’s key plant sites and/or
meetings with the senior management of the Company.

The existing directors are continually updated with legal and
regulatory developments, business and market changes to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Continuing briefings and professional development for directors are
arranged whenever necessary. In addition, reading materials on new
or changes to salient laws and regulations applicable to the Group
are provided to directors from time to time for their studying and
reference. All directors are encouraged to attend relevant training
courses at the Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company (i) has
organized briefings conducted by the Company Secretary for all its
directors on corporate governance and updates on the Listing Rules
amendments and (ii) has provided reading materials on regulatory
updates to all the directors for their reference and studying.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors of the Company (the “Own
Code”) on terms no less exacting than the Model Code. Specific
enquiry has been made of all the Company’s directors and all the
directors have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code and the Own Code throughout
the period from 1 January 2018 to the date of this report.

The Company has also established written guidelines on terms
no less exacting than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by relevant employees
of the Group who are considered to be likely to possess inside
information in relation to the Company or its securities. No incident
of non-compliance with the Employees Written Guidelines was
noted by the Company.

In case the Company is aware of any restricted period for dealings
in the Company’s securities, the Company will notify its directors
and relevant employees in advance.
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Directors’ Attendance Records

The attendance records of each director at the regular Board
meetings, Board Committee meetings and the general meetings of
the Company held during the year ended 31 December 2018 is set
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Attendance/Number of Meetings
HERE EERY
Audit ~ Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee Committee Annual General Special General
Board Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
BNZE® ¥HMZEREE REZEE
Name of Director EEps Ezged E g3 g% RRBEFAE RREIAE
Mr. Chen Xiaodong BERLE 4/4 - - 22 1n 02
Mr. Xu Ke (note 1) R (B 4/4 - - - 171 22
Mr. Yu Qingrui REHEE 4/4 = = = i 212
Ms. Lam Hay Yin M2+ 4/4 - 1n - 1n 12
Ms. Lee Chau Man Ada (note 2) A&z + (Fii2) 3/3 = = = 0/1 0/1
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong BEREE 4/4 2 1" 22 1n 12
Mr. Chen Youchun REFLE 4/4 22 171 22 171 22
Mr. Mai Qijian (note 3) EHREE (M:3) 3/3 22 = = 17 11
Mr. Wu Ming (note 4) R (F15T4) 11 = = = = 0/
Notes: Bt ot

Mr. Xu Ke was appointed as an executive director of the Company
on 27 February 2018. During the period from his appointment up to
31 December 2018, 4 Board Meetings, 1 Annual General Meeting
and 2 Special General Meetings were held.

Ms. Lee Chau Man Ada resigned as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 23 November 2018. During the period
from 1 January 2018 up to her resignation date, 3 Board Meetings, 1
Annual General Meeting and 1 Special General Meeting were held.

Mr. Mai Qijian resigned as an independent non-executive director
with effect from 2 October 2018. During the period from 1 January
2018 up to his resignation date, 3 Board meetings, 2 Audit Committee
meetings, 1 Annual General Meeting and 1 Special General Meeting
were held.

Mr. Wu Ming was appointed as an independent non-executive
director on 2 October 2018. During the period from his appointment
up to 31 December 2018, 1 Board meeting and 1 special general
meeting were held.

In addition, Mr. Chen Xiaodong, the chairman of the Board, held a
meeting with the independent non-executive directors without the
presence of executive directors during the year under review.
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Board Committees and Corporate Governance
Functions

The Board has established four Board committees, namely, the
Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees have been established with defined written terms
of reference, which are available on the Stock Exchange’s
website (www.hkexnews.hk) and on the Company’s website
(http://www.cwghl.com) (except for the written terms of reference
of the Executive Committee which is available to shareholders upon
request). All the Board committees should report to the Board on
their decisions or recommendations made.

Executive Committee

Currently, the Executive Committee comprises all the four executive
directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Chen Xiaodong, Mr. Xu Ke,
Mr. Yu Qingrui and Ms. Lam Hay Yin. The Chairman of the Board,
Mr. Chen Xiaodong, also acts as the Chairman of this committee.
The Executive Committee operates as a general management
committee under the direct authority of the Board to increase the
efficiency for business decision making. It monitors the execution of
the Company’s strategic plans and operations of all business units
of the Group and discusses and makes decisions on matters relating
to the management and day-to-day operations of the Group.

Audit Committee

Currently, the Audit Committee comprises of three members,
namely, Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong (Chairman), Mr. Chen Youchun and
Mr. Wu Ming, all of whom are independent non-executive directors.
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong possesses the appropriate accounting and
financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of
the Listing Rules. None of the members of the Audit Committee is a
former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to (i) review the
financial statements and reports and consider any significant or
unusual items raised by the financial officers of the Group or
external auditors before submission to the Board; (ii) review and
monitor the relationship with the external auditors by referencing
to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors; and
(iii) review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee
performed the following works:

- Review and discussion of the financial statements, results
announcements and reports for the period from 1 April
2017 to 31 December 2017 and for the six months ended
30 June 2018, the financial reporting, the related accounting
principles, practices and compliance procedures;

- Discussion and recommendation of the re-appointment of
external auditors; and

- Review of risk management and internal control systems of
the Group.

The external auditors were invited to attend the Audit Committee
meetings without the presence of executive directors to discuss with
the Audit Committee issues arising from the audit and financial
reporting matters. The Company’s annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2018 have also been reviewed by the Audit
Committee. There is no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee regarding the re-appointment of external auditors.

Remuneration Committee

Currently, the Remuneration Committee comprises both executive
director and independent non-executive directors of the Company,
namely, Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong (Chairman), Ms. Lam Hay Yin and
Mr. Chen Youchun.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are to (i) make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure and the remuneration packages of directors and
senior management (i.e. the model described in the code provision
B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code is adopted); (ii) review and approve
performance-based remuneration by referencing to corporate
goals and objectives; and (iii) establish a formal and transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure
to ensure that no director or any of his/her associates will
participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, the remuneration
of which will be determined with reference to the performance
of the individual and the Group as well as market practice and
conditions.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Remuneration
Committee has (i) generally reviewed and discussed the
remuneration policy and structure and the current remuneration
packages of the directors and senior management of the Group; and
(ii) recommended to the Board the remuneration packages regarding
the appointment of Mr. Xu Ke and Mr. Wu Ming as directors of the
Company.

The senior management of the Company are the directors of
the Company. Details of the remuneration of each director of
the Company for the year are set out in note 8 to the financial
statements contained in this annual report.

Nomination Committee

Currently, the Nomination Committee comprises both executive
director and independent non-executive directors of the Company,
namely, Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman), Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong and
Mr. Chen Youchun.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to (i) review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and recommend
any changes to the Board; (ii) identify qualified and suitable
individuals to become Board members and select and make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; (iii) assess the independence of
independent non-executive directors of the Company, having
regard to the requirements under the Listing Rules; and (iv) make
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to
the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors in particular, the Chairman and the Chief
Executive of the Company.
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The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at Board level as
an essential element in maintaining the Company’s competitive
advantage. A new Board Diversity Policy was adopted by the
Company during the year under review, pursuant to which the
Nomination Committee will review annually the structure, size
and composition of the Board and where appropriate, make
recommendations on changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy and to ensure that the Board
maintains a balanced diverse profile. In relation to reviewing and
assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee is
committed to diversity at all levels and will consider a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and regional and industry experience.

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives that are relevant to the Company’s business growth
and is also committed to ensuring that recruitment and selection
practices at all levels (from the Board downwards) are appropriately
structured so that a diverse range of candidates are considered. The
Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement the
Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to time
to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made
towards achieving those objectives.

During the year under review, in response to the amendment
to the CG Code effective on 1 January 2019, the Company has
also adopted the Director Nomination Policy. Such policy sets
out the selection criteria and process and the Board succession
planning considerations in relation to nomination and appointment
of directors of the Company, and aims to ensure that the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the Company and the continuity of the Board and
appropriate leadership at Board level.

The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the
suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed
candidate, including but not limited to the following: character and
integrity; qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy; diversity in all aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age (18 years or above), cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service; requirements of independent
non-executive directors on the Board and independence of the
proposed independent non-executive directors in accordance with
the Listing Rules; and commitment in respect of available time
and relevant interest to discharge duties as a member of the Board
and/or Board committee(s) of the Company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Nomination
Committee performed the following works:

- Considered and recommended the appointment of Mr. Xu Ke
and Mr. Wu Ming as directors of the Company;

- Reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board to
ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements for the business of the Group
and reviewed the Board diversity policy;

—  Considered and recommended the re-election of the retiring
directors standing for re-election at the 2018 annual general
meeting of the Company; and

- Assessed the independence of independent non-executive
directors of the Company.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board has reviewed
the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance
of the Model Code and Employees Written Guidelines, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Reporting
in Respect of the Financial Statements

The directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2018.
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The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory requirements.
The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness on
an ongoing basis. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Board is fully responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take to achieve
the Company’s strategic objectives, and for establishing and
maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the
Group's assets.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in overseeing the design
and implementation of the risk management and internal control
systems. The Company has developed and adopted different risk
management procedures and guidelines. Self-evaluation would be
conducted each year to confirm that the Company has properly
complied with the risk management and internal control policy.
All divisions would conduct internal control assessment to identify
risks factors with potential impact on the Group’s business. The
management would assess the likelihood of risk occurrence,
monitor the progress of risk management and report to the Board
and the Audit Committee on the findings and effectiveness of the
systems.
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The Group has developed its disclosure policy to provide a
general guide to the Company’s directors and relevant employees
in handling confidential information, monitoring information
disclosure and responding to enquiries.

The Company’s internal audit staff has performed independent
review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems. Key issues such as accounting
practices and all material controls were examined. The relevant
findings and recommendations are provided to the Board and the
Audit Committee.

The Board, as assisted by the Audit Committee and the
management, has reviewed the report from the management and
the internal audit findings, and reviewed the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, including the
financial, operational and compliance controls for the year ended
31 December 2018. The annual review also covered areas on
financial reporting, internal audit function, staff qualification,
experiences and relevant resources. The Board considered that such
systems are adequate and effective and ongoing review of the same
nature would be conducted in subsequent years.

External Auditors and Auditors” Remuneration

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the Company’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report. During the
year ended 31 December 2018 the remuneration paid/payable to
the Company’s external auditors, Ernst & Young, is set out below:
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Remuneration

Nature of Services (HK$)
RAEME M (BT)
Audit services B R 2,880,000
Non-audit services (Note) FEHF R (MFEE) 897,000
TOTAL: #et: 3,777,000

Note: The non-audit services provided mainly included other assurance
services, tax compliance and advisory services.
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Company Secretary

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Mr. Szeto Pui Tong,
Patrick, the Company Secretary, has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional trainings to update his skills and knowledge.

Communications with Shareholders and Investors
The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which
will enable shareholders and investors to make the best investment
decisions.

The Company maintains a website at “www.cwghl.com” as a
communication platform with shareholders and investors, where
information and updates on the Group’s business operations,
developments and financial information are available for public
access. Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or
requests to the Company using the below contact details:

Address: Unit 6706B-08A, Level 67, International Commerce
Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Department of Investor
Relations)

Fax: (852) 2865 4654

Email: info@cwghl.com

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee and, in their
absence, other members of the respective committees, will normally
attend the annual general meeting and other shareholders’ meetings
to answer questions.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains regular dialogue with institutional investors and analysts
to keep them posted of the Company’s developments.
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Policies Relating to Shareholders

The Company has in place a Shareholders” Communication Policy
to ensure that shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately
addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its
effectiveness.

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of
dividends. Depending on the financial conditions of the Company
and the Group and the conditions and factors as set out in the
Dividend Policy, dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the
Board during a financial year and any final dividend for a financial
year will be subject to the shareholders” approval.

Shareholder Rights

To safeguard shareholders” interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholder
meetings, including the election of individual directors. The
Company’s shareholders may convene a special general meeting or
put forward proposals at shareholders” meetings as follows:

(1) Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company at the date of deposit of the requisition
may request the Board to convene a special general meeting
pursuant to Clause 71 of the Company’s bye-laws by sending
a written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary at
the Company’s head office in Hong Kong. The objects of the
meeting must be stated in the written requisition.

(2)  Shareholder(s) representing not less than one-twentieth of
the total voting rights at the date of the requisition or not
less than 100 shareholders may put forward a proposal at a
shareholders” meeting, pursuant to the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda by sending a written requisition to the Board or
the Company Secretary at the Company’s head office in Hong
Kong. The proposal should be stated in the written requisition
and such written requisition should be submitted as early
as practicable to enable the Company to make necessary
arrangement (in case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution, not less than six weeks before the meeting; and in
case of any other requisition, not less than one week before
the meeting).
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(3) If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a
retiring director for election as a director of the Company at
a general meeting, the shareholder (other than the person
to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
general meeting shall send a written notice, duly signed by
the shareholder, of his/her intention to propose such person
for election and also a notice signed by the person to be
proposed of his/her willingness to be elected. These notices
should be lodged at the Company’s head office in Hong Kong,
or the office of the Company’s branch share registrar. The
period for lodgement of such notices shall commence on the
day after the dispatch of the notice of such general meeting
and end 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting.

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders” information may be disclosed as required by
law.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its bye-laws. An up-to-date version of the Company’s
bye-laws is also available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.cwghl.com).

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after each
shareholders” meeting.
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Environmental, Social and

Governance Report
RIBE-HERERKRE

Scope and Reporting Period

This is the third Environmental, Social, and Governance (“ESG”)
report of Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
and collectively with its subsidiaries referred as the “Group”),
highlighting ESG performance, with disclosure reference made to
the ESG Reporting Guide as described in Appendix 27 of the Listing
Rules and Guidance set out by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

The principal activities of the Group are engagement in financial
investments, trading and money lending business. This ESG report
covers the Group’s overall environmental and social performances
of its major business operations in its offices in Hong Kong and
Shanghai of the People’s Republic of China (with a total floor area
of 1,439 m?), from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018, unless
otherwise stated. Comparing with 2017, additional office in Hong
Kong and Shanghai were added in the reporting scope due to
business expansion.

Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality

In order to identify the most significant aspects for the Group to
report on for this ESG report, the Group regularly collects views
and discusses ESG matters with stakeholders through a variety of
channels, such as engagement sessions including routine meetings
and annual general meeting. During the reporting year, the Group
has specifically engaged board members, senior management,
frontline employees, business partners and media to gain further
insights on ESG material aspects and challenges, and have identified
the following top 5 material aspects:

1. Customer Service;

2. Occupational Health and Safety;
3.  Anti-corruption;

4. Product and Service Quality; and
5.  Data Privacy.

The Group aims to keep close communication with its stakeholders
for the identified aspects and continues to improve its ESG
performance and better management on ESG-related risks for
future business development. In alignment with the Group’s vision
on sustainability, business will continue to be operated with high
ethical standards and provide sustainable returns to stakeholders.
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Stakeholders’ Feedback

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Company welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on our
environmental, social and governance approach and performance.
Please give your suggestions or share your views with us via email

at info@cwghl.com.

A. Environmental
A1. Emissions

With the nature of the business, the Group’s operations
were office based and its related environmental impact
was very minimal. The Group did not note any cases of
material non-compliance relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharge into water and land, and the
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste as
required by the applicable laws and regulations.

Al.1 Air Emissions

The Group’s operation did not involve any
emissions related to gaseous fuel consumption or

vehicles.

A1.2 Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions

Scope of Greenhouse Gas
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Al.T FEEHERL
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Al.2 B EREHE
Emission (in
tonnes of carbon

dioxide equivalent Total Emission

Emissions Emission Sources “tCO,e") (in %)
P&
(M =& e BEENE
BEREHEREE PERUR =E) (B2L)
Scope 1
g1EN"
Direct Emissions NA NA NA
BN T iE A i A i@ A
Scope 2
EE2
Energy Indirect Emission Purchased Electricity 73.98 94
BE IR PR 4 BE 7K BEE
Scope 3
EE3
Other Indirect Emissions Paper Waste Disposal 4.32 6
H b A 3 BEAR BERESE
Business Air Travel 0.44
RIERITIRAR
Total 78.74 100
@it
Note: Emission factors were made reference to Mat: BREBRBIN FEREFT

Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules and their referred
documentation as set out by The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, unless stated otherwise.
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Al.3.

Al.A4.

There were 78.74 tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent greenhouse gases (mainly carbon
dioxide, methane and nitrous oxide) emitted
from the Group’s operations during the reporting
period, with an intensity of 0.05 tCO,e per m* of
total office area.

Hazardous Waste

During the reporting period, there were 26 pieces
of waste lamps and 24 pieces of waste printing
cartridges were generated from daily office
operation.

Non-hazardous Waste

The Group’s operations generated approximately
88.88 tonnes of non-hazardous waste, which
mainly included food waste and packaging,
newspaper and office waste paper.

Al.5. Measures to Mitigate Emissions

Al.6.

The Group’s operations resulted in insignificant
emissions. Nevertheless, the Group shall closely
monitor its indirect emissions related to electricity,
which will be further explained in later sections.

Waste Reduction and Initiatives

The Group generated very minimal hazardous
waste from its office operation. They were
generated only when replacement was needed.
Waste lamps were collected by the Management
Office and waste printing cartridges were sent
back to suppliers. Non-hazardous waste from
the Group is collected and handled by the
Management Office. Paper is used for daily
office operations such as documents printing and
deliverables packaging. Paper saving initiatives are
encouraged among employees, such as adopting
double-sided printing and printing with single-side
used paper.

Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited FZE£BZRERA A

KEBRREIR ZELEHE R
T78. 74 —_FLIREEZRE
FE(rEa-fith FEKL
SiLn®) R BREAEFTFA
K0.05ME — A LIREE -

Al3. EZEEY

RBER BAEHBEEE
261 BE 2 BB M24ERE 2

= o
m

Al 4 EZEZEY

REE L IEE £ 488.88M £ =
BEEY) TERERVEERE
2B NP AREL -

Al5 Jd DB 1 b

AEBZEEEENHBRLT
BERX-RAM AEREEEIER
HEBE H0OREHER AR
REEEE—SREE-

Al.6. BED 8 D R 5 Tt

AEBBERRELBEL L
BEREDERL EEAERTE
BN TEEEREY - BEER
HERRKERE BEEEIA
KO ERERE - EEEREYHA
SEERRKERE HERAR
BERADZEE  XHFHIENEA
mBE - AL BB 8 THRERES
WA fImR A& ED
RERCEERZERSIE-



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

With the principles of “reduce, reuse and
recycle”, the Group centralized stationary
supply to utilize stationaries and avoid wastage.
It returns used cartridges to suppliers and
purchases remanufactured toner cartridges for
its multi-functional devices. Reusable dishes
and tableware instead of disposable ones are
used in office. Other wastes including unneeded
computers and furniture are donated to Caritas
Hong Kong whenever possible.

A2. Use of Resources
The Group has not established policies on the efficient
use of resources, nevertheless, employees are reminded
of resource conservation practices in offices.

A2.1. Energy Consumption

The Group’s operations consumed electricity for
maintaining daily office operations including
lighting, office equipment and other miscellaneous
items. A total of 145,062 kWh was consumed at
offices in Hong Kong during the reporting period.
For the office in Shanghai, the electricity was
included in the management fee, hence no data
was collected.

A2.2. Water Consumption
Water supplies were included in the management
fee of all offices, thus no such data is being
presented in this report.

A2.3. Energy Use Efficiency Initiatives
Comparing with 2017, the increase in electricity
consumption was due to expanded reporting
scope. To reduce electricity consumption,
employees are reminded to turn off office lights,
computers, printers and air conditioners when
leaving office.
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A2.4. Water Use Efficiency Initiatives

Water was supplied and managed by the building
management of all offices and there was no issue
in sourcing water that is fit for purpose.

A2.5. Packaging Materials

The Group’s operations did not involve any
packaging materials.

A3. The Environment and Natural Resources
The Group is committed to conducting its business
responsibly, ensuring that its business does not
contribute to significant adverse impact to the
environment and society while bringing sustainable
growth and profit.

A3.1. Significant Impacts of Activities on the

Social

Environment

Although the Group’s business does not generate
significant adverse environmental impact as
compared with businesses in other sectors, the
Group is committed to reducing GHG emissions
and preserving natural resources. With electricity
consumption as its main source of GHG emission,
the Group frequently reminds employees to
practise energy-saving habits in office.

1. Employment and Labour Practices

BI1.

Employment

The Group continues to invest in capacity building
among local human resource, following local
and national laws and adopting best practices.
The Group did not note any cases of material
non-compliance in relation to employment during
the reporting period.
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The Group had a total number of 78 (2017: 63)
employees as of 31 December 2018, in which
all of them were employees from Hong Kong and
Mainland China. A total of 18 employees left
the Group during the reporting period (turnover
rate: 23.1%). The Group regularly reviews salary
remuneration and benefits to retain talents and
stay attractive and competitive in the market.

Workforce
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Competitive Compensation and Benefits

The Group abides by all applicable employment
and labour related laws of Hong Kong and
Mainland China. Employees are provided with
attractive salary with year-end double pay. Salary
is reviewed on a periodic basis with considerations
given to employees’ performance during the past
year, market rate of the related industry, profit
result and the projected earning ability of the
Group. Individual salary adjustment in respect of
promotion, confirmation, transfer, re-classification
etc. are recommended by the Department
Head in consultation with the Administration
Department. For certain job positions, the Group
pays commission and incentives in line with
trade practices and management policies. Various
types of leave are provided including annual,
sick, maternity, paternity and jury services leave.
Apart from the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
scheme, employees are entitled to medical benefits
scheme and employees’ compensation insurance.
The standard working hours are 8.5 hours per day
and 5 days per week.

There were no major changes in policies relating
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunities, diversity and anti-discrimination
during the reporting period.

Promotion, Transfer and Dismissal

The Group aims to provide channels of
promotion and promote employees based on their
performance, qualification, integrity and ability.
Promotion will be offered with considerations
of the Group’s operation, competence, potential
and interpersonal skills of the employee and
recommendations given by the employee’s
Department Manager. The Group reserves the right
to transfer any employee to other locations or
opportunities to perform jobs of similar nature if
necessary.
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B2.

Environmental, Social and Governance Refort

Employees who completed the probation period
and wish to resign must notify in writing to the
Department Manager with at least one month’s
notice. Specific notification periods for different
positions are stipulated in the appointment letters.
While employees who fall under circumstances
including redundancy, termination without
prejudice and termination with prejudice shall
have their employment terminated and provided
with one month’s notice or one month’s salary in
lieu of notice.

Equal Opportunity

The Group provides equal opportunities for
employees in respect of recruitment, training
and development, job advancement, and
compensation and benefits. Employees are
not discriminated against or deprived of such
opportunities on the basis of gender, ethnic,
background, religion, colour, age, marital status,
family status, retirement, disability, pregnancy or
any other discrimination prohibited by applicable
laws of Hong Kong and Mainland China.

Employee Communication

To enhance employees’ sense of belonging, the
Group regularly organizes gatherings with staff.
During the reporting period, the Group organized
an annual dinner and a Christmas party.

Employee Health and Safety

The Group is in compliance with the Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance, Chapter 509 of the
Laws of Hong Kong and Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases,
and no material non-compliance with related laws
and regulations was noted.
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B3.

B4.

As employees spend most of the time on computer
work, the Group installed protective screens
on monitors to reduce eye damage that may be
caused by computer screens. Employees were
also reminded to maintain appropriate viewing
distance between eyes and computer screens,
and good posture when working and conduct
stretching exercises during rest breaks. There were
no major changes in management practice in
relation to occupational health and safety during
the reporting period.

Development and Training

The Group continuously monitors employees’
job performance in order to identify training
needs. Employees are encouraged to participate
in work-related and personal development
trainings through on-the-job trainings and
external trainings. During the reporting period,
employees participated in duty-related courses or
seminars provided by external service providers.
The trainings covered topics such as accounting
standards, laws and regulations.

Labour Standards

Pursuant to the Employment Ordinance, Chapter
57 of the Laws of Hong Kong and Labour Law
of the PRC, there was no child nor forced labour
in the Group’s operation. All resumes, original
identification cards and relevant certificates of job
candidates are first checked by the Group during
interviews. Candidates’ preceded employers may
be contacted for provision of references.

2.  Operating Practices

B5.

Supply Chain Management

Only suppliers related to technology and financial
tools were engaged during the reporting period.
Despite the relatively low environmental and
social risks involved in the Group’s supply
chain, the Group encourages best practices in
supply chain management. There were no major
changes in practices in relation to supply chain
management during the reporting period.
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B6.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Product Responsibility
Confidential and Customer Information

As stated in the employment contract, employees
shall not at any time during the course of the
employment and after the termination of the
employment:

. use any confidential information for his/her
own purpose or for any purpose other than
that of the Group;

] divulge or communicate to any person any
confidential information except to those
of the employees or officials of the Group
whose province it is to know the same; or

e through any failure to exercise all due care
and diligence cause any unauthorized
disclosure of any confidential information
(including without limitation), relating to the
dealings, organization, business, finance,
transactions or any other affairs to the Group
or its clients or customers.

All notes, memoranda, records and writings made
by the employees in relation to the business or
concerning any of its dealings or affairs or the
dealings or affairs of any clients or customers of
the Group shall be handed over by him/her to the
Group from time to time on demand and in any
event upon his leaving the service of the Group
and the employees shall not retain any copy
thereof. A breach of the above provisions can be
subject to dismissal without notice and legal claim
for damages.

The Group is in compliance with all applicable
laws regarding confidential information and data
protection of the laws of Hong Kong and Mainland
China. No substantiated complaints concerning
breaches of client privacy, identified leaks, thefts,
or losses of customer information was received
during the reporting period.
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B7.

B8.

Anti-corruption

The Group abides by the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance, Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong
and applicable laws in Mainland China in relation
to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
There was no concluded legal case regarding
corrupt practices brought against the Group or its
employees during the reporting period.

Community Investment

The Group understands that engaging the
community in which it operates is an essential
corporate responsibility. The Group will consider
contributing to activities and organizations that
benefits the community in the future.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Executive Directors

Chen Xiaodong, aged 37, is an executive director, the chairman of
the Board of the Company, and the chairman of both the Executive
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company since
2 December 2016. He holds a bachelor degree of management
from Royal Holloway, University of London. He also holds a master
of science degree in process technology and business management
from University of Warwick. He has more than 10 years of
experience in bank and securities marketing and is familiar with
the local market and has strong capabilities in market exploration,
customer appraisal and risk management. He also has extensive
experience of regulations and rules of financial market in Hong
Kong and Mainland China, as well as certain corporate financial
analysis skill. Mr. Chen has resigned as an executive director and
chief executive officer of Future World Financial Holdings Limited
(a company listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, stock code: 572) with effect from 24 December
2018.

Xu Ke, aged 40, has been appointed as an executive director, the
chief executive officer and a member of the Executive Committee
of the Company on 27 February 2018. He holds a bachelor degree
in Economics from Shandong University of Finance and Economics,
a master degree in Economics from Carleton University and a
doctor degree in business administration from Business School
Netherlands. He has extensive experience in the financial and
securities sector. Mr. Xu has served as the deputy managing director
of Industrial Securities Co., Ltd since 2012 and is responsible for
the development and audit of bond financing projects as well as the
promotion and marketing of certain bond projects. Mr. Xu served
as a director of Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd from 2007 to
2012 and was responsible for the sales and marketing and project
coordination of debt financing projects in Three Northeastern
Provinces, Guizhou Province and Shandong Province in China. He
was also responsible for the implementation and design of the lead
underwriting projects and has executed lead underwriting projects
involving urban infrastructure, transportation, electricity and energy,
coal production and other industries. From 2001 to 2003, Mr. Xu
was appointed as the program executive of the China Chamber of
International Commerce (Shandong Province) and was responsible
for liaison with foreign business partners during their business trips
in China and negotiations on business cooperation with foreign
educational institutions.
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Yu Qingrui, aged 47, is an executive director and a member of
the Executive Committee of the Company since 22 June 2016.
Mr. Yu specializes in property investment and trading business in
the People’s Republic of China. After graduating from high-school
in 1989, Mr. Yu joined the shipping and trading business in the
PRC. He was the general manager of a shipping company before
he became a private investor in 2003. In 2011, Mr. Yu joined a
marketing and management firm in Shanghai and served as their
property investment manager. On 21 July 2014, Mr. Yu was engaged
to provide advisory and consultancy services relating to property
investments and trading to Future World Financial Holdings Limited
(a company listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, stock code: 572). Currently, Mr. Yu is an
executive director of Future World Financial Holdings Limited.

Lam Hay Yin, aged 38, is an executive director and a member of
both the Executive Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company since 20 July 2016. Ms. Lam holds a bachelor degree
in accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She
also holds a master degree of business administration from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She has extensive experience in
property investment, brokerage and trading fields.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Kwok Chi Kwong, aged 55, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company since January 2014, and the chairman
of both the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee,
and a member of the Nomination Committee of the Company.
Mr. Kwok holds a master degree in business administration from
the University of Leicester. He is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practicing) registered with the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), an associate member of the
HKICPA and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Mr. Kwok has been a partner of JYC & Co
since 2005. He has gained more than 21 years of experience in
auditing, accounting and finance area.
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Chen Youchun, aged 42, is an independent non-executive director
of the Company since October 2014, and a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
of the Company. Mr. Chen holds a degree of Bachelor of Laws
from Southwest University of Political Science and Law in 2000
and the University of Northumbria in 2011 and a Master degree
in Laws from Wuhan University in 2007. Mr. Chen is a foreign
lawyer registered with The Law Society of Hong Kong. Mr. Chen has
extensive experience in corporate financing, private equity, venture
capitals, IPO and listing, and mergers and acquisitions. Mr. Chen
has been a partner of the Shenzhen office of JunZeJun Law Offices
since 2006. Mr. Chen was an independent director of Shenzhen
Century Plaza Hotel Co. Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, stock code: 000033) from November 2010 to
December 2015, and an independent director of Shenzhen Qixin
Construction Group Co. Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, stock code: 002781) since December 2015 to
September 2017.

Mr. Chen is an independent director of Hainan Honz
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, stock code: 300086). He is also an independent
non-executive director of China Tangshang Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, stock code: 674). On 16 October 2017, Mr. Chen
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited (a company listed
on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
stock code: 907).

Wu Ming, aged 46, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director and a member of the Audit Committee of the
Company since 2 October 2018. He holds a bachelor of science
with honours in business with marketing from The City University
London. Mr. Wu specializes in trading business in the People’s
Republic of China and Hong Kong and has extensive experience in
trading and management.

Biographical Details of Directors
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Ernst & Young LR BB
22/F, CITIC Tower EEBPIBREHE 15
&i 1 Tim Mei Avenue hiEKE 22 1

Central, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited
(Formerly known as “China Soft Power Technology Holdings
Limited”)

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Central
Wealth Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as “China Soft
Power Technology Holdings Limited”) (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 66 to 228, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2018, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Audlitor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

58  Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited FEZES£EZEBHR A

Tel E3E: +852 2846 9888
Fax {8 H: +852 2868 4432
ey.com

FPESEZRAERATEZERR
(ABRTHABINEEEERAF])

(RERZEAMEALZ BRLA])

=R

BMEEFTINFe6B EF228E P EE BT
EERA T(HIJ@%F%FEPEKEﬁﬂ&’EIﬁIKE
AR TERARDEKENBAR(EE®E])Z
BRENBHRE EPRER-_Z—NF+=A
=+ —HZEBEAYBRRAR HE-_E—N\F

PoASoBILEECEARER GARE
usz % BARBEDERGARLEARER U

BMBmRME ’T%EK SRR E -

.
wm

® 5

MRAE ZEEEUWBHRERCBRERES
= ([AEASHEMAE])BM 2 ESMBR
HERA([BEAVBRELENDEEMAA MK
B EEER T N\F+_A=F+—HZEKAE
BHEAAUARBEZALEFREZEETBRIR
FizgelRene WEERBEBSR TGN 2K E
REZ RS-

£54
i

oo

S
>mm

RERzE®R

BMEREBEELGAMASRMIBBEE
A ([FREFERDETET - RMIEXFE
AT AREZEECEARRS [RBENLEER
AMBHRAREZEE] — i EE— R -
RIEBEELGTMRREM I EXEAEET

A (T=F8I]) - FHRMBLY BEEE WEEIT

AP EERERET RFIEE RAMERS
ZEABRELRRACLBEEHARMNEAER
RROLERE -



Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion
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on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

BEETEER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEMWEFNMEEFARETSE

Impairment assessment of receivables from margin clients and cash clients

BURESEFPRAELEFZESENZFEFE

The Group has adopted a forward-looking “expected-loss”
impairment model to recognise the expected credit losses
of trade receivables from margin clients and cash clients in
accordance with the requirements of HKFRS 9 from 1 January
2018.

BEEER T N\F-A-BERBEEFEMBKREELE9
HARERAMELE BB E REEEREERESERP
EBEERPZESRIERAMEEBE-

As at 31 December 2018, gross trade receivables from
margin clients and cash clients, and the related impairment
allowance amounted to HK$398,812,000 and HK$6,553,000,
respectively.

R-ZB-N\E+-_A=+—B BREJFEFFLREEFP
2 B 5 MR S4B E8 AR B R (B & 18 9 Bl 73398,812,00078 7T &
6,553,000/ JT °

For assessment of the expected credit losses of trade
receivables from margin clients and cash clients as of
31 December 2018:
RARBE_Z-\FT_A=T - HRUREEE
FRAGEFZESEFBHREEBREME

For trade receivables from margin clients and cash clients
classified at stage 1, we evaluated the Group’s estimation
methodology of expected credit losses, and checked the
parameters to external data sources where available,
including the price volatility of selected underlying
collateral used in multiple scenario analysis;
HRDBERRIEENRARESEPRREETFZE
SEEF BB BEEENABEEERGET A
WS A2 BE A SN BBIBRRETRY 8%
EIF RO ATE R A& E R RO ERRIE:
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Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

BEETER

FERETEIE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANSESTNMEERERETEE

The assessment of impairment for trade receivables from
margin client and cash client involves significant management
judgements and estimates, including estimation of probability
of defaults, valuation of collateral, expected future cash flows
and future economic conditions.
BUEREEEFPIASEPZESERIBENFEIRELE
REEBHE LG SRYEOHE BERRGE BHX
KR ME RARKGBEAR R EET -

The Group assesses whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk for exposures since initial recognition by
comparing the risk of default occurring over the expected life
between the reporting date and the date of initial recognition.
BEREEBLRBEAMENKERAN BN ERSS
BAEMENRR TEENEERARGEERRE S BEEY
me

Related disclosures about trade receivables from margin
clients and cash clients, and its related impairment allowance
are included in notes 3 and 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.
BERESEFIASEFPZESERFERBEINZEY
B M aE3 &23 »

Valuation of an investment property

REVEIH1E

As at 31 December 2018, fair value of the Group’s investment
property was HK$435,000,000 which represented 15.0%
of the Group’s total assets. The estimation of fair value of
investment properties requires management’s significant
judgement.

RZB-NF+-A=+—H  EBEEEREVEZLTE
/3435,000,000/8 7T REEAEMAE5.0% 5t X E
MEZAFEFTEEEBELERHEG -

Management commissions professional valuers to appraise
the fair value of the Group’s investment properties, and
determines the fair value of these properties with reference to
the valuation carried by the professional valuers.
EEEZBIEXGEMNG EREREVEZIATFE X
SEEXHEMMETHEEERSMEZRAFE

Related disclosures about investment properties are included
in notes 3 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

REMEZ RERBEHNGE P BHRRMEIR6 -
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For trade receivables from margin clients and cash
clients classified at stage 2 and 3, in assessing the
credit loss allowances made by the Group, we checked
the valuation of the collateral and other sources of
cash flows, and developed a reasonable range of
expected cash shortfall for comparison with the Group's
assessment; and
HROBRFEBENFIEBENERFRESRER KA
SERPZESERF N EXRBELNEEERR
B RIS ERRNEENRERENEMIIR -
YEHERRSRENSERE  E SEENFME
EITHE: &

We also evaluated the related disclosures regarding the
accounting policy, the judgement and estimates involved
and the details of the expected credit losses included in
notes 3 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements.
I FHGFTS R & 5T R - H T R fE St IA KRB B
BHmRM IR AHEEREEBRFENEEANE-

Our audit procedures included reviewing the objectivity,
independence and expertise of the valuers commissioned
by the Group. We involved our valuation specialists
to assist us in reviewing the valuation methodologies
and assumptions adopted by the valuers, assessing their
related data as inputs for the valuation and comparing
them with market data of comparable properties. We
also assess the disclosures relating to the assumptions
used in determining the fair values in the consolidated
financial statements.

BANBAREFEEREN ESEMZBEAEMZTE
BT MR EERME - RO GHEZERS BB
ERBERMARARGBETERKRR FHEEHARE
ZHEBBBEYSEBEREN ELBRYEZ ISR
TEELE - BMINHA R B E SRS M B RERAB A AR
ARRBEZEEER -
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Key audit matter

BEETER

Independent Auditor’s Report
BUZBENRES

FEREETEIE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANSESTNMEERERETEE

Impairment assessment of investment in an associated company

RPE N A2 REZBEFFE

The Group has a significant investment in an associated
company, which is accounted for under the equity method.

EEER—HBEAREREARE  HVRARSEAK.

The Group’s investment in associated company is subject to
impairment assessments when there is an objective evidence

Our audit procedures to evaluate the Group’s
assessments of the impairment of its investment in an
associated company:

BfIpLATE ERBEHHERBE2ARZRERETGEDH
FEHIZF

of impairment. Management performed an impairment —  Testing management assessments about the

assessment of the investment in the associated company by
comparing i) the higher of the fair value less cost of disposal
and the value in use, against ii) the carrying amount.
BEEERBEARZREANHIRENTEE B ETR
EFfH-BEEEEBLR)AFEROEXNALEEREELZ
BmE ki) FAEHRBE QR ZREFLRERN G-

Significant judgements and estimates are involved in
determining key inputs for carrying out the impairment
assessment, including fair value of the investment, costs of
disposal of the investment, future cash flows expected to
derive from the associated company; and discount rate.
BEETHEMGAEZEGABEBY REAHE KA
BRERRENAFE HERENRAN BAHERLEE QR
BRRKEEZRE U@k

As at 31 December 2018, the management performed the
assessment on its investment in an associated company and
recognised an impairment loss of HK$51,257,000. After
the impairment, the investment in the associated company
amounted to approximately HK$225,194,000.
RZZE-N\F+_A=+—HB BEEREHEARBERARAZR
B VEH RHE I HE SRR (B B5 851,257,000 7T » IR E 1 » TR B
ERBEZ A 73225,194,000/8 7T °

Related disclosures about investment in an associated
company are included in notes 3 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RBERB 2 RERBREHN G M BHRRMEIRIG

existence of objective evidence of impairment
by reference to the available information in the
relevant markets and industries;

- Z2ZHEEMSLOTRASEMMNATEBHTHA
BB Y B B IR A R

- Verifying financial information used to determine

the fair value less cost of disposal and key
assumptions used, including forecasted future cash
flows, growth rate and discount rate, to determine
the value in use;

- REAREBEEAFERHERANUKEER LE
EEREEMANIZRR BEBARKRE
ME BRERFTBEEX

- Reviewing calculations on the fair value less cost

of disposal, the value in use of the associated
company, and the estimation of the impairment
loss; and

- EHARABZEARATERLEXNAREREE
METE - LR EEEBER &

- Performing sensitivity analyses on the key

assumptions as stated above.
- HIERFERJVETHRESF-
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B 2B E S

Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lee, Shun Yi Jasmine.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

26 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &2 —F—/\F+_-HA=+—HIFFZ
For the
year ended
31 December
2018
BZE
AL
+=A=+-H
ILFE
Notes HK$’000
B &E TR
REVENUE 'ON
Financial investments and services B E IR 17,282
Brokerage and commission income Lo kAl 150,130
Property investments MEKRE 6,650
Advisory fee income L ON 392
5 174,454
Brokerage and commission expenses &4 BERARMAEHX (4,051)
(4,051)
Gross profit EH 170,403
Other income and gains HABWA R Wz 5 5,147
Administrative expenses THHAX (152,921)
Other operating expenses HinE@R% (5,200)
Finance costs SIS E 6 (64,407)
Unrealised fair value gains on BBRBERERATENERZ
equity investments at fair value BRAKE 2 RER AT ERS
through profit or loss, net A
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale & A & RAK & 2 Wiz
equity investments
Impairment loss on available-for-sale  FIHER AR E 2 M EEE
equity investments 19
Impairment losses on other financial HiheRMEERANEEL
assets and contract assets HEEE (17,348)
Gain on revaluation of investment REME 2 Bl
properties 16 5,000
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMTER R 2 W 14 65,620
Impairment loss on investment REFE DR 2 REZREER
in an associate (51,257)
Loss on step acquisition SERKEEE 38 -
Gain on bargain purchase #EBE Ma 38 -
Share of (loss)/profit of associates DR ERE 2
(B1]R) i (13,912)
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBLAT (B1B) A 7 (58,875)
Income tax expense PG Ti A < 10 (8,186)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR/ FRRREABEREE
PERIOD ATTRIBUTABLE TO M (B1]R) EA
OWNERS OF THE PARENT (67,061)
(LOSS)/PROFIT PER SHARE BAAEEBREZFAA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EiEER (GE) A
EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE PARENT
Basic B 13 HK$(0.005) 7 7T
Diluted W8 HK$(0.005) & 7T
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For the period
from 1 April 2017
to 31 December
2017
—T—tF
MA—HBZE
—F—+tF
+ZRA=+—H
B

HK$'000
TET

185,490
38,965
3,600

228,055
(3,930

(3,930

224,125
601
(36,470)
(5,420)
(53,385)
121,623
20,620

(800)

91,033

(381)
5,370

6,459

373,375
(4,520)

368,855

HK$0.033/8 7T

HK$0.033/8 7T




Consolidated Statement of Comprehenswe Income

meETHWRER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z—%F

For the
year ended
31 December

2018

HBE

—EBE-N\E

+=-A=+—8

EEE

HK$’000

FERT
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD FEEHE (BE) ER (67,061)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME Hft2H (E#E) k%

Other comprehensive (loss)/income ARENERPEER D EE
that may be reclassified to profit or loss BazHM2HE
in subsequent periods: (EB#E) e
Available-for-sale investments: AHEERE:
Equity investments: RAIRE -
Changes in fair value, net of tax RNPEZY BRHi®
Reclassification adjustments for gains/ %Tu‘l')\ﬁﬁ/\ig ﬁﬁﬁ )
(losses) included in the consolidated w/ (E18)#
statement of profit and loss: E%ﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁ% :
— Gain on disposal —HE KR
— Impairment losses —REEE
Exchange differences: ME S Z R
Exchange differences on translation of BREBINEBERZ

foreign operations

Net other comprehensive (loss)/income ARERBERFENR S EE
that may be reclassified to profit or loss BnzH Hb2m (BE)
in subsequent periods Yo &% AR
Other comprehensive (loss)/income that TERBERARMENHAE
will not be reclassified to profit or loss BaRzHAEMEE
in subsequent periods: (B518) s
Equity investments at fair value through FREMEEWSERFE
other comprehensive income: FIBR Z IRAIRE
Changes in fair value, net of tax N EEE) BRiE (943,780)
(943,780)
Share of other comprehensive loss of DEBERR Z AR HER
an associate (108,738)
Release of fair value reserve upon partial a ’%“B/\ i N AR 2
disposal of an associate N ERBRED 407
Net other comprehensive loss that will not T ZREERBBEFHEE
be reclassified to profit or loss BRz A2 EERFH
in subsequent periods (1,052,111)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME B ATEEABEREE
FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD ATTRIBUTABLE HE2mE(5E)
TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT W4 EE (1,119,243)

—NFF+ZA=1—HIFE

For the period
from 1 April 2017
to 31 December
2017
ZE—tF
MmA—HZ=
—E—LF
+ZA=+—H
AR

HK$'000

TATT
368,855

601,106

(20,620)
800

581,286

581,286

950,141
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e IS AR R R

As at 31 December 2018 R=F—/\F+=HA=+—H

31 December

2018

—EBE-N\F
+=A=+—-H

Notes HK$'000
B 5 FET

31 December
2017
—T—+F
+=-A=+—8
HK$'000

FHT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB R 15
Investment property REMHE 16
Intangible assets BIEE 17
Investment in an associate REERBIZIRE 18
Equity investments at fair value ~ BEBEMEE KRR A TE

through other comprehensive 5B Z RAIRE

income 19
Available-for-sale equity AHEERAKRE

investments 19
Deferred tax assets BIETRIAE E 33
Deposits re 25
Total non-current assets ERBEERE
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Loan receivables from WE ¥ EE 2 BIRE R

money lending business 21
Trade receivables from BEERDIHE %&@Eﬁ@ &

business of trading and EBEEZREKE

distribution of electronic and

accessory products 22
Trade receivables from securities FHHRKEEBEXEBES 2

and futures dealing business FEWE 5 BR R 23
Trade receivables from placing ~ EEENEEEREBELZ

and asset management business ~ FEWE 5 BR K 24
Prepayments, deposits and ﬁﬁ KIE e R H A I

other receivables KIE 25
Equity investments at fair value — FEBE&HE A FEIIRZ RA

through profit or loss RE 20
Cash and bank balances B RRITHETT 26
Bank balances held on behalf REFFPHERTHER

of clients 27
Assets of a disposal group DERFBELEZ

classified as held for sale HEHARIEE 11
Total current assets mENE E A
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4,104
435,000

500
225,194

1,296,154

2,734
12,799

1,976,485

299,497

395,294

6,294

21,432

21
100,910

90,966

914,414

914,414

5,006
430,000
500

1,710,695

9,915

2,156,116

476,765

391,219

30,060

560,368
123,387

90,624

1,672,423

400,109

2,072,532




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A AR R

As at 31 December 2018 R —F—/\F+—H=+—H

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—B-N\F ZE—tF
+=—HA=+—H +—-A=+—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BT 5 FTHExT FHET
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade payables e E 5 R 28 99,486 208,078
Other payables and accruals H A e R N FEAHE A 29 35,225 22,378
Shareholder loan R R E 31 = 122,000
Other borrowings HMEE 30 472,178 525,930
Bank borrowings RITEE 30 142,298 167,763
Bank overdrafts RITBX 30 45,095 59,494
Tax payable FE IR 4,859 9,023
799,141 1,114,666
Liabilities directly associated with 2 3EA#FIEHE 2
the assets classified as held EEHEZABAE
for sale 11 = 139,314
Total current liabilities neBEESE 799,141 1,253,980
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERE 115,273 818,552
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT (S ELERRBERE
LIABILITIES 2,091,758 2,974,668
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Notes payable NS 32 86,574 86,574
Bank borrowings RITIEE 30 156,362 164,056
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIBEEE 33 = 134
Total non-current liabilities FRB B A 242,936 250,764
Net assets BESFE 1,848,822 2,723,904
EQUITY Ex

Equity attributable to owners of &2 FHH AE(L#ER
the parent

Share capital LN 34 147,167 127,167
Reserves (] 35 1,701,655 2,596,737

Total equity R 1,848,822 2,723,904

Chen Xiaodong Yu Qingrui
PBREZR REH
Director Director
EBEF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited FiZ&EZR B R A &

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &2 —F—/\F+_-HA=+—HIFFZ
For the For the period
WECN GG from 1 April 2017
31 December to 31 December
2018 2017
—E—+tF
BZE MA—AZE
—E-N\F —T—+F
+t=A=+—H +=ZA=+—8
LEE HAfA
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Liks3 FHERT TET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING K& ZFEHzREFTE
ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/profit before tax BELAT (E1R) %A (58,875) 373,375
Adjustments for: M THNIEE (ERE
Bank interest income RITH B WA 5 (12) M
Finance costs MBER 6 64,407 53,385
Depreciation e 7 2,018 1,505
Impairment loss of available-for-sale  AJ it B &R KK & 2
equity investments BB 1R 19 800
Impairment losses on other financial Hfth & & & &
assets and contract assets BREEZRMEREE =
Write off of deposits and WH IR © N H A U R IR
other receivables 7 319
Gain on disposal of items of HEME KRB K
property, plant and equipment RiWER 2 W= 7 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RWELEZ W 14 (65,620) =
Gain on disposal of HERHBEERAKREZ
available-for-sale equity Wz
investments (20,620)
Fair value gains on equity FRBEREATEIRZ
investments at fair value through BRAKEZ AFE
profit or loss, net W 25 F 58 (121,623)
Equity-settled share option SR 2 BREL
arrangements, net R 37 -
Gain on bargain purchase AEREE KA 38 (5,370)
Loss on step acquisition DR WE =R 2 B8 38 381
Loss on partial disposal of equity HEMBABE N F 2
interests in an associate P HE B 15 18 -
Loss from release of fair value HEBHHE R ER 2
reserve upon partial disposal of AT EFEREERER
an associate 18 -
Share of loss/(profit) of associates DL E AR EE
Ot 1)) 13,912 (6,459)
Gain on revaluation of investment & & ¥ 3 & flh iz
properties 16 (5,000) (91,033)
Dividend income from investment —~ ETIRAFEHFEE Z
in listed equity securities A B U A 5 (157,687)
Impairment loss on investment REERRIZREZ
in an associate BB EE 18 —
26,972



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
meEReRER
For the year ended 31 December 2018 2 —F—/\F+ —H=—+—HILFZ

For the For the period
VLIS LIl from 1 April 2017
31 December to 31 December
2018 2017
—E—+tF
BZE MA—B=E
—E-N\F —T—+tF
+=A=+—H +-—A=+—8H
IEFEE BAfE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FTHExT FHET
Decrease/(increase) in loan WEEBEEZRINER
receivables from money A (3gan)
lending business 53,494 (296,109)
Decrease/(increase) in equity FRBEREATEIEZ
investments at fair value through RARERD, (3Ehn)
profit or loss 157,684 (344,476)
Increase in trade receivables from BHELHBEEEERELE Y
securities and futures dealing JEWE 5 BRI N
business (10,626) (150,788)
Increase in trade receivables from MEREEERER 2
placing and asset management FEWE 5 BR SR IE hn
business (6,948) —
Decrease in loans to directors mM—RESETRD = 31,900
Increase in prepayments, BRFHIE R R
deposits and other receivables H th 8 U FRIE 12 N (3,389) (41,492)
(Increase)/decrease in bank balances KEXEBFEAB ZRITEF
held on behalf of clients (g RS (342) 178,202
Decrease in trade payables & E 5 BRFUR A (108,592) (85,870)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables H b &< 518 K fE 5+ & F
and accruals i, CRd) 10,696 (17,554)
Exchange realignment (EPTIERES 71) -
Cash generated from/(used in) REEBE/ (FR)R:
operations 157,132 (699,215)
Interest paid BF A (61,371) (43,764)
Tax paid ERHIE (15,163) =
Net cash flows from/(used in) KESEERNATS (TR 2
operating activities RemeFsE 80,598 (742,979)
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r—‘—|
&7 \/\ imbi%

For the year endled 31 December 2018 {2 —F—/\F+ —H=—1—HILFZ

For the

year ended
31 December
2018

BE

—E-N\F
+=B=+—H

LFE

Notes HK$’000
B 5 TER

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment

Acquisition of equity investments
at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Acquisition of available-for-sale
equity investments

Proceeds from equity investments
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Proceeds from partial disposal of
equity interests in an associate

Proceeds from disposal of
available-for-sale equity
investments

Interest received

Acquisition of assets through
acquisition of subsidiaries

Acquisition of a subsidiary

Dividend received

REFDHHRERE

BEVE BFERREEE

WisE e 2wz
RNFEIERZBEARE

WERAIHHERAKRE

EREMpEEREEATE
IR 2 AR B P 1S 5RIR

HEBE QAT BREZ
FIT 1S 5038

HEATHEERKREZ
P15 508

BEWFHE
ERWENBARMBEEE

WiE — R E QR
R &

(1,190)

(684,815)

485,310

38

Net cash flows used in investing
activities

RERDIAZAESRE
R

(200,017)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Net proceeds from placing of
new shares

Loan advance from a shareholder

METHRLRE
FL &3 (D TS 5 IB % 88

KA —BBRRZER

200,000
75,000

(109,933)
180,248

(234,000)

Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIEE S IA

Repayment of bank borrowings BERRITEE

Proceeds from other borrowings Hitv G EGHIA

Repayment of other borrowings BEREMEES

Net cash flows from financing MEEHEEZ
activities RemEFE

111,315

74 Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited FiZEEZERER A 7

For the period

from 1 April 2017
to 31 December

2017
—E—tF
MA—H=
—T—+F

+=ZA=+—8

Hif]
HK$’000
FAT

(990)

(6,292)

82,323

(253,000)
(31,917)
100,370

(109,505)

198,484
122,000
162,000
(96,056)
525,930

912,358




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
meEReRER
For the year ended 31 December 2018 2 —F—/\F+ —H=—+—HILFZ

For the For the period
VLIS LIl from 1 April 2017
31 December to 31 December
2018 2017
—E—+tF
BZE MA—HE
—E-N\F —ET—tF
+=-A=+—8 +-A=+—8
IEFEE EAFA
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FTET FHET
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN ReRASEEERZ
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (R4 /#EinE5E (8,104) 59,874
Cash and bank balances at beginning & Hi#1 2 R & RRITETF
of year/period 63,919 4,045
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS &/ /HiRXzBER
AT END OF YEAR/PERIOD Re&EEER 55,815 63,919
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH B2 RKRESESEEELERFZ
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Ay
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITET 26 100,910 123,387
Cash and cash equivalents included T ADEEAIFIELE
in the disposal group classified as HEAMZRE R
held for sale ReEEER 11 = 26
Bank overdrafts RITEX 30 (45,095) (59,494)
55,815 63,919
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Corporate and Group Information 1. ARAIREEEH
Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited, formerly known PESEERARAA (AIEFERE S
as China Soft Power Technology Holdings Limited, (the BEEEERAR) ([(KRa))ARA
“Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated REFTMRILZBERAF - RIBEARFR
in Bermuda. Pursuant to a special resolution passed at “E-NFFTAZTEHRETZRRE
the special general meeting of the Company held on FAASRBTKEELAAZIMER K
27 December 2018 and approved by the Registrars of BEZ R RIAZE R - AR A A MA [China
Companies of Hong Kong. With effect from 11 February Soft Power Technology Holdings Limited ]
2019, the name of the Company was changed from “China % 2% [ Central Wealth Group Holdings
Soft Power Technology Holdings Limited” to “Central Wealth Limited BT —-AF-_A+—HEE
Group Holdings Limited”. The Chinese translation of the o ARNAHEMBR 2R XELH [PEE
Company’s name for identification purposes was changed ENMBREBERAR | BEARTHESE
from “HEBENRZEBFRAF" to “HEEEZER ERBBRAR - ARBEELEMILRN
B AR]". The principal place of business of the Company BENEMLEHEAIRRIKE ZEH6712
is located at Unit 6706B-08A, Level 67, International 6706B-08A = °
Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong.
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. RARBEFEXBRAREER - AEBLTE
The Group is principally engaged in the securities and futures NEBFHFLHEEEXR MBRE WX
dealing business, financial investment, property investments RENMEES -
and money lending business.
Information about subsidiaries MEQEZER
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at RZBE-NF+_A=1+—B XARAE
31 December 2018 are as follows: EMBARZFBNT:
Percentage of equity
attributable
to the Company
ARRIEGRE
ZEDH

Place of Issued ordinary/

incorporation registered share Principal
Name and business capital ~ Direct Indirect activities

A K ERTEER
DR EH EREE I /R A BEE i FEXBED
Hoshing Limited* British Virgin Islands Us$1 100 - Investment holding
Hoshing Limited* RBHRARES 17T 100 - REER
139 Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Us$2 - 100  Provision of
139 RER DA BB 2ETT - 100 administrative services

ROTHRTS

Chaifa Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100  Provision of finance
BBV BERAF BE 28T - 100 services

Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited FZE£BZRERA A
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Corporate and Group Information (continued) 1. ARAREEEF (@)

Information about subsidiaries (continued) MEABZER (&)
Percentage of equity
attributable
to the Company
ARREERE
ZED
Place of Issued ordinary/
incorporation registered share Principal
Name and business capital  Direct  Indirect activities
U3 ERTEER
AEEW RBEEHE /ERBRA E# iE IREREH
Main Purpose Investments British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 - 100 Investment in and trading
Limited Hong Kong 1E7T - 100 of securities
Main Purpose Investments EBRERRES /BB REREEES
Limited
Desert Gold Limited British Virgin Islands/ UsS$1 - 100  Investment in and trading
Desert Gold Limited Hong Kong E = 100 of securities
KBRBREE/BE RERBEEES
Celestial Lodge Limited* British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100  Investment holding
Celestial Lodge Limited* EBERRES 1E7T - 100 #®EEK
Top Billion Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Money Lending
BEMBARAT ) 28T - 100 WE
Winsey Enterprises Limited* British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100  Investment holding
Winsey Enterprises Limited* KBHARES 1E7T - 100 #®EEMK
Central Wealth Securities Hong Kong HK$325,000,000 = 100  Brokerage and related
Investment Limited BB 325,000,000/ 7T - 100 services
FEEFREERAA B4 R AR BRS
Central Wealth Futures Limited Hong Kong HK$23,500,100 - 100  Brokerage and related
FEHERRAF 50 23,500,100/ 7T - 100 services

B AR RS
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Corporate and Group Information (continued) 1.

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

NAEIREBER (#)
MEBARIZER (&)

Percentage of equity

attributable
to the Company
ADFEERE
ZEA
Place of Issued ordinary/
incorporation registered share Principal
Name and business capital  Direct  Indirect activities
AL K ERTEER
AEEW RBEEWR /ERBRA B EiE IRERIH
Central Wealth Asset Hong Kong HK$9,000,000 - 100  Asset Management
Management Limited B 9,000,0007%8 7T = 100 BEERE
HEEEEEERAR
Sky Eagle Global Limited* British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100  Investment holding
Sky Eagle Global Limited* RBRARES 17T - 100 #®EER
Metro Victor Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100  Property Investment
EBERAF Bt 10,000 7T - 100 #ERE
Instant Achieve Limited* British Virgin Islands US$46,500 100 - Investment holding
EFR AR REEBARES 46,5007 100 - BEZER
i Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member * RICE B LK G 5HADF TPk &k 2 IR A

firm of the Ernst & Young global network

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited FZE£BZRERA A
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2.1. Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for listed equity investments and investment property
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2018. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

Notes to Financial Statements
B ER R MY 5

31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=-HA=+—H

2.1. R B

HEFBBRRDILRBESIMIE ([F
AEFEAE]) B BB MBERELER
(IFBMBREER]) (BEABEREY
BHREEN FEGFEA ([EBGE
Al k) BEARGHRAUREER
ARG 2 R EE AR TE AR B o I 5 B R R
TIRBELKAL R HEEEAFER
EZLETRARERKENERIN I FH
MBHRABT(ETINR BRRAHE
RN FTEBIEATEET -

REREEE
RAMBRREBARBRENE QA
(GRRIAKEDBE_FT—N\F+A
=S+t —BLEEFEZMBEHRR -MERFTS
HARRBERAREEF 2 EE (BEE
BUEER) EXAKER2EKREHRMY
AEnFEAZERIFAENLERDE
BEUREHR2RNZEZZLH (A
BYIARERAENEEREHYRBEBE
BZHRERN K DXRAXEEZEHRE
HReo
WARBERXHAEEEPRARSBIRE
HREBEIEROUEN  AEBRFG
HEORBREHRERNKEBHAA AR
ZERBR BFE:

@ BEREREHKZHEGRERBAEAZA
MRk

b) HEMENTEEZEN: &

© AEERERLRECREE-
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2.1. Basis of Preparation (continued)

80

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described above.
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(i) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited FZE£BZRERA A
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and

Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15
Amendments to HKAS 40

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers

Transfers of Investment Property

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28

Notes to Financial Statements
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and

82

Disclosures (continued)

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 4, which is not relevant
to the preparation of the Group’s financial statements, the
nature and the impact of the new and revised HKFRSs are
described below:

(@@ Amendments to HKFRS 2 address three main areas:
the effects of vesting conditions on the measurement
of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the
classification of a share-based payment transaction with
net settlement features for withholding a certain amount
in order to meet an employee’s tax obligation associated
with the share-based payment; and accounting
where a modification to the terms and conditions
of a share-based payment transaction changes its
classification from cash-settled to equity-settled. The
amendments clarify that the approach used to account
for vesting conditions when measuring equity-settled
share-based payments also applies to cash-settled
share-based payments. The amendments introduce an
exception so that a share-based payment transaction
with net share settlement features for withholding a
certain amount in order to meet the employee’s tax
obligation is classified in its entirety as an equity-settled
share-based payment transaction when certain
conditions are met. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that if the terms and conditions of a cash-settled
share-based payment transaction are modified, with
the result that it becomes an equity-settled share-based
payment transaction, the transaction is accounted for
as an equity-settled transaction from the date of the
modification. The amendments have had no impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group as
the Group does not have any cash-settled share-based
payment transactions and has no share-based payment
transactions with net settlement features for withholding
tax.

Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited FZE£BZRERA A
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (continued)

(b)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
bringing together all three aspects of the accounting for
financial instruments: classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting.

With the exception of hedge accounting, which the
Group has applied prospectively, the Group has
recognised the transition adjustments against the
applicable opening balances in equity at 1 January
2018. Therefore, the comparative information was not
restated and continues to be reported under HKAS 39.

Classification and measurement

The following information sets out the impacts of
adopting HKFRS 9 on the statement of financial position,
including the effect of replacing HKAS 39’s incurred
credit loss calculations with HKFRS 9’s expected credit
losses (“ECLs").
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and 22 S BERZEHRKE (@)
Disclosures (continued)
(b)  (continued) b) (&)
Classification and measurement (continued) PERTE (&)
A reconciliation between the carrying amounts under RZEBE-—NFE—-—HA—B BEGHE
HKAS 39 and the balances reported under HKFRS 9 as RIZE395% 18 T 1Y BR TH 1B B2 B 8 B 75 3R
at 1 January 2018 is as follows: LEBIFRIBTINMERMNEH Y
FRank:
HKAS 39 measurement HKFRS 9 measurement
EREER ERUBREEL
FE39iT R F9NTE
Re-
Category Amount ~ classification ECL Other Amount  Category
£l &8 E¥DE ROREER Hit E2] g3
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 TAL TAL FAL TAL FHEL
Financial assets tHEE
Equity investments at fair value ~ BBE M2 ENE N/A - 2,263,056 = - 2,263,056 FvoCl!
through other comprehensive A FEI%2 TER (equity)
income BARE (%)
From: Available-for-sale BETREERE (i) 1,710,695 - -
investments
From: Equity investments at fair ~ #f : BRBHEAT (ii 552,361 = =
value through profit or loss {B5I8k 2 RARE
Available-for-sale equity AL ERARE AFS® 1,710,695 (1,710,695) = = = N/A
investments TER
To: Equity investments at BN BREMZA (i) (1,710,695) = =
fair value through other Wi TEIR
comprehensive income ZRARE
Non-current deposits FRERE L&R® 9,915 = = = 9,915 ACH
Loan receivables from money ~ MEZEBEEZ i) L&R 476,765 - (477) - 476288 AC
lending business FEUEHR
Trade receivables from business  EERAHEEF L&R - - - - - AC
of trading and distribution REER*BEL
of electronic and accessory ZEWE 585
products
Trade receivables from securities  EZRALEEXHE (i) L&R 391,219 - (335) - 390,884 AC
and futures dealing business EZEWE 5EH
Financial assets included in BRFE RER L&R 27,798 = = = 27,798 AC
prepayments, deposits and HiERFED S
other receivables LEREE
Equity investments at fair value  ABEHEATAE FWPL 560368 (552,361) = = 8,007 FVPL
through profit or loss B2 RARE (mandatory)
(i)
To: Equity investments at BN BREMEA (ii) (552,361) = =
fair value through other W iR A T A5
comprehensive income ZBEARE
Cash and bank balances R RB/ITER L&R 123387 - - - 123387 AC
Bank balances held on behalf of - REZZEFHBRTHE L&R 90624 - - - 90624 AC
clients
3,390,771 - (812) - 3,389,959
Total assets BERE 4,228,648 - (757) - 4227891
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and 22 S BERZEHRKE (@)
Disclosures (continued)
(b)  (continued) by (&)
Classification and measurement (continued) PERTE (&)
HKAS 39 measurement HKFRS 9 measurement
BREHER BRUBHEEL
EXTL A FORE
Re-
Category Amount  classification ECL Other Amount Category
it
£5 ¢8 ENSE  GREEE Hth E3: g5l
Notes HK$'000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
i3 AL FAT AT FAT AT
Financial liabilities ¢RERE
Trade payables EREHER AC 208,078 - - - 208078 AC
Other payables and accruals EtENFAREFER AC 22,378 = = = 22,378 AC
Shareholder loan RREER AC 122,000 = = = 122,000 AC
Other borrowings EtfeE AC 525,930 - - = 525,930 AC
Bank borrowings BIOEE AC 331,819 = = = 331,819 AC
Bank overdrafts BITEX AC 59,494 - - - 59,494 AC
Notes payable eSS AC 86,574 = = = 86,574 AC
1,356,273 = = - 1356273
Total liabilities RfERE 1,504,744 - - - 1,504,744

FVOCI: Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

e AFS: Available-for-sale investments

L&R: Loans and receivables

AC: Financial assets or financial liabilities at amortised
cost

FVPL: Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(i)  The Group has elected the option to irrevocably
designate its previous available-for-sale equity
investments as equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income.

(i) The Group has elected the option to irrevocably
designate certain of its previous equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss as equity investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income.

(iii)  The Group has remeasured the carrying amounts of the
loan receivables from money lending business and trade
receivables from securities and futures dealing business.

(if)

(iii)

FVOCI : E R E 2 mE U EIR A F
BIEZCMEE

AFS : AT S8 &

L&R : B F M fE Y 5k8

AC 1R AD R 2 © R & EE K
cRAakE

FVPL: B BEBEEEATEIEZ S

REBRIET A E LR 2
B ERARERERBBEM
EERBREAFHEINRZBEARE

AEFEREETTHEMBESETE
AIE BB R RN TEIRZBRAR
ERERBEBEMEMKERAF
BIIRZBARRE -

AEBECHBEEBELE 2 RKE
RERESRMEEERBELZE
WE BIRFETERE -
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (continued)
(b)  (continued)

Impairment

The following table reconciles the aggregate opening
impairment allowances under HKAS 39 to the ECL
allowances under HKFRS 9. Further details are disclosed
in notes 21, 22 and 23 to the financial statements.

22 EFBEZEHREE @)

(b)

Impairment
allowances

under HKAS 39

(%)

BE
TERAREE ST ERIFE395 1 5
TR ERERERREREEVNBERS
R EORMIBEHEERERE Y
BRoE— BRI REM 21
22 K23 EE

ECL allowances
under HKFRS 9

at 31 December Re- at 1 January
2017 measurement 2018
R=2-N\%
R-E—+tF —R—BRE
+=A=+—H BRUBEE
BEEBE (L
% RISE395 2 RHEEE
B ER A EXNGE BERE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FET FTET
Loan receivables from money BERBELZ
lending business e E K - 477 477
Trade receivables from securities #% R HIEE &£
and futures dealing business EE 2 BWE KX - 335 335
Trade receivables from business E& &5 #HE T &
of trading and distribution REEREBESE
of electronic and accessory ZEWE 5 RR
products 1,175 = 1,175
1,175 812 1,987
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (continued)

(b)

(continued)

Impact on reserves and accumulated losses

The impact of transition to HKFRS 9 on reserves and

accumulated losses is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
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22 EFBEZE2HREE @)

by (#)

HREERRTTEBRZZE

BEERBMBR

& 2 QI 95k $

BERFERZEZENT

Reserves and
accumulated

losses
RERRFER
HK$'000
FET
Fair value reserve under HKFRS 9 BBE BT BRE %L
(available-for-sale investment revaluation FSR 2 N ERFEE
reserve under HKAS 39) (REBEBF B G HERIE399
A EREBHHEE)
Balance as at 31 December 2017 under HKAS 39  RIEF B ERIZE3950 2
R-F—tHF+-H=1+—~H
2 R R 1,026,030
Reversal of impairment losses under HKAS 39 for BEBB G ERIE3HR
equity investments at fair value through other HEM D BAAHEERAE
comprehensive income previously classified as REZEBEMEE RS
available-for-sale equity investments BRAFEIFRZRAIRE
B EURERR (429,777)
Reclassification of financial assets from equity FREREATEIEZ
investments at fair value through profit or loss RAKREEHDREEB
to equity investments at fair value through other H i 2 m KSR A FETER
comprehensive income ZRAKREZ eRMEE 153,403
Balance as at 1 January 2018 under HKFRS 9 REBEVBHRELERNFER
RZZF-N\F—-B—BZER 749,656
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (continued)
(b)  (continued)

Impact on reserves and accumulated losses
(continued)

22 EFBEZEHREE @)

by (#&)

HREERRTBRZZE (8

Reserves and
accumulated

losses
EIEDE S
HK$’000
FAET
Accumulated losses RitEE
Balance as at 31 December 2017 under HKAS 39 RIEFE S ER|E395: 2
R-F—t&+=-A=+—H
2 RERR (3,661,367)
Recognition of expected credit losses for loan RIFEFB MRS ERE5R
receivables from money lending business under MMEEBEEZ BIKER
HKFRS 9 RRBHEEER (477)
Recognition of expected credit losses for trade RIBBEMBRELERIFINR
receivables from securities and futures dealing MBS RPEEEEBES
business under HKFRS 9 Z FEWE 5 R iR T8 A
EEEE (335)
Reversal of impairment losses under HKAS 39 for BREBEEEGFERFE3IR
equity investments at fair value through other HEMDBARAAIHLEE
comprehensive income previously classified as BRAKRE 2B BEMEE
available-for-sale equity investments Wi X FE S IR 2 IR
BERRRERSE 429,777
Reclassification of financial assets from equity FRBERERATEIRZ
investments at fair value through profit or loss RAREEH D REEB
to equity investments at fair value through other H 2 E =R A FETER
comprehensive income CRAKREZ eRMEE (153,403)
Deferred tax in relation to the above B bt 2 RIER IR o5
Balance as at 1 January 2018 under HKFRS 9 RIBEEEMBREEL R 2
RZFT—\F—A—BZ&H (3,385,750)
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (continued)

()

HKFRS 15 and its amendments replace HKAS 11
Construction Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and related
interpretations and it applies, with limited exceptions,
to all revenue arising from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services
to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a
more structured approach for measuring and recognising
revenue. The standard also introduces extensive
qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements,
including disaggregation of total revenue, information
about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods
and key judgements and estimates. The disclosures are
included in notes 3 and 5 to the financial statements. As
a result of the application of HKFRS 15, the Group has
changed the accounting policy with respect to revenue
recognition in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the full
retrospective method of adoption. The standard has had
no impact on the timing of the revenue recognition; but
additional disclosures on the nature, amounts, timing
and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from
contracts with customers will be required.

Notes to Financial Statements
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22 EFBEZE2HREE @)

()

FEI G W E ER B 1558 KA BRI
REBEFHENFIRZESA B
BEERF 18N MAERE
B (BRAEBISMERIN ERARE
FEHEEZMBYZE -BERMBR
FREAFISHER TP A H U as ARRTE
V—EHASEN - RIEFEMBE R
HFEAFI5H KRR AIRREETE
HrmErFEREMARHMAEE
RBPERCRECRETER B
AR BRELERF 155 R AET
ERERB R HE BEREMTTR
ARSI ABZ B E M N E B EE
RE BREOFWESEEE BRETT
B TEHHACAGHNEERAER
AR B AR B B A N T I K b A
HEF - B BN B HRKRMEI N
5. MRERBEMBEREE15 A
SEERMBRRME242E B
WS R M B RTER -

A EE R EEE P RAE M RN
ERP B HmEERIE155 -z ERIA
BEHNABRAZKELEEBRTE K
ARBEFPANELEZHRERRERE
ZHE 28 BERTEEEED
BIMKEE -
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (continued)

90

(d)

Amendments to HKAS 40 clarify when an entity should
transfer property, including property under construction
or development, into or out of investment property. The
amendments state that a change in use occurs when
the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of
investment property and there is evidence of the change
in use. A mere change in management’s intentions for
the use of a property does not provide evidence of a
change in use. The amendments have had no impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 provides guidance on how to
determine the date of the transaction when applying
HKAS 21 to the situation where an entity receives
or pays advance consideration in a foreign currency
and recognises a non-monetary asset or liability. The
interpretation clarifies that the date of the transaction
for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to
use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense
or income (or part of it) is the date on which an entity
initially recognises the non-monetary asset (such as a
prepayment) or non-monetary liability (such as deferred
income) arising from the payment or receipt of the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments
or receipts in advance of recognising the related item,
the entity must determine the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.
The interpretation has had no impact on the Group’s
financial statements as the Group’s accounting policy for
the determination of the exchange rate applied for initial
recognition of non-monetary assets or non-monetary
liabilities is consistent with the guidance provided in the
interpretation.
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22 EFBEZE2HREE @)

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (continued)

()  Amendments under Annual Improvements to HKFRSs ) BEVBRELEN _Z-—MOFE_T
2014-2016 Cycle —NEFBRE 2 FREBUEEET

HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards: Deletes the
short-term exemptions for first-time adopters
because the reliefs provided in the exemptions
are no longer applicable. The amendments are not
applicable to the Group’s financial statements.

HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures: Clarifies that an entity that is a
venture capital organisation, or other qualifying
entity, may elect, at initial recognition on an
investment-by-investment basis, to measure its
investments in associates and joint ventures
at fair value through profit or loss. If an entity
that is not itself an investment entity has an
interest in an associate or joint venture that is
an investment entity, the entity may elect to
retain the fair value measurement applied by that
investment entity associate or joint venture to the
investment entity associate’s or joint venture’s
interests in subsidiaries when applying the equity
method. This election is made separately for each
investment entity associate or joint venture, at the
later of the date on which (i) the investment entity
associate or joint venture is initially recognised;
(ii) the associate or joint venture becomes an
investment entity; and (iii) the investment entity
associate or joint venture first becomes a parent.
The amendments did not have any impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

o FEMBRELEAFIREAK
BB B ER MR E IR
KRBT RN R
NRENRLTBEM - ZEFT
WA ERRAEEZ F MK -

o FABGFERIFE28HRREEL
AIREENFIZKRE BBER
REEREBIEMAIRER
MER AN R R EEF
BERERRATEIKRFER
REERRIRAERRIZKE
MZzEBENZERERERE
HoHERESWIFRERR:
BEEBRREEBERNBZE AR
KAERBTRAED XEE
ERAERER ZEREB
REEEBNBEARKE S
N E R B A B H A 5 PR
RAHNAFEE-HEBRKREE
BNBERARHEERR  EMN
T B #h ey B & B R
B OYBRRETRNBER
AIRAZERRINYMEERE : (i)
BERBAKBLERARAKRBKRE

B Ri)BRIREEBOH

ERNARIREERAERKNBE

N ZERI L BB AREE 2 B

BHRREEETMTE-

\
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2.3 Issued but not Effective Hong Kong Financial

23 ERMEEHRERZEEBME

92

Reporting Standards
The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business’

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Ventures®

HKFRS 16 Leases’

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material’
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement’

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interest in Associates and
Joint Ventures’

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments’
Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11,
2015-2017 Cycle HKAS 12 and HKAS 23!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

¥ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020

P Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

K No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption
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2.3 Issued but not Effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (continued)
Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The amendments
clarify that for an integrated set of activities and assets to be
considered a business, it must include, at a minimum, an
input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create output. A business can exist
without including all of the inputs and processes needed to
create outputs. The amendments remove the assessment of
whether market participants are capable of acquiring the
business and continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus
is on whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive
processes together significantly contribute to the ability to
create outputs. The amendments have also narrowed the
definition of outputs to focus on goods or services provided to
customers, investment income or other income from ordinary
activities. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance
to assess whether an acquired process is substantive and
introduce an optional fair value concentration test to permit a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities
and assets is not a business. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 January 2020.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business,
a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in
the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January
2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be determined
after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are
available for adoption now.
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2.3 Issued but not Effective Hong Kong Financial

94

Reporting Standards (continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int
27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
of leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and
liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two elective
recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets
and short-term leases. At the commencement date of a lease,
a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e.,
the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use
the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use
asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class of property, plant
and equipment to which the revaluation model is applied. The
lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest
on the lease liability and reduced for the lease payments.
Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest
expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense
on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to
remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain
events, such as change in the lease term and change in future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine those payments. Lessees will generally
recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease
liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor
accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged
from the accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue
to classify all leases using the same classification principle
as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between operating leases
and finance leases. HKFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors
to make more extensive disclosures than under HKAS 17.
Lessees can choose to apply the standard using either a full
retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The Group
will adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 January 2019. The Group plans
to adopt the transitional provisions in HKFRS 16 to recognise
the cumulative effect of initial adoption as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained earnings at 1 January
2019 and will not restate the comparatives. In addition, the
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2.3 Issued but not Effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (continued)

Group plans to apply the new requirements to contracts
that were previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17
and measure the lease liability at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application.
The right-of-use asset will be measured at the amount of
the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to the lease recognised in the
statement of financial position immediately before the date
of initial application. The Group plans to use the exemptions
allowed by the standard on lease contracts whose lease terms
end within 12 months as of the date of initial application. The
Group is considering to elect to use the modified retrospective
approach for the adoption of HKFRS 16 and will recognise the
cumulative effect of the initial application as an adjustment to
the opening balances at 1 January 2019 with no restatement
of the comparative information. Upon the initial adoption
of HKFRS 16, the opening balances of lease liabilities and
the corresponding right-of-use assets are estimated to be
adjusted by HK$22,708,000, net of tax, as at 1 January 2019.
The above overall financial impact is subject to change of
assumptions, judgements and estimates to be finalised in the
financial statements of 2019.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it
could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make
on the basis of those financial statements. The amendments
clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude
of information. A misstatement of information is material
if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions
made by the primary users. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2020. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.
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Reporting Standards (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion
of HKFRS 9 only includes interests in an associate or joint
venture to which the equity method is applied and does
not include long-term interests that in substance form part
of the net investment in the associate or joint venture, to
which the equity method has not been applied. Therefore,
an entity applies HKFRS 9, rather than HKAS 28, including
the impairment requirements under HKFRS 9, in accounting
for such long-term interests. HKAS 28 is then applied to the
net investment, which includes the long-term interests, only
in the context of recognising losses of an associate or joint
venture and impairment of the net investment in the associate
or joint venture. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
on 1 January 2019 and will assess its business model for such
long-term interests based on the facts and circumstances that
exist on 1 January 2019 using the transitional requirements in
the amendments. The Group also intends to apply the relief
from restating comparative information for prior periods upon
adoption of the amendments.

HK(FRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes
(current and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty
that affects the application of HKAS 12 (often referred to
as “uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation does not
apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of HKAS 12, nor
does it specifically include requirements relating to interest
and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments.
The interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an
entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii)
the assumptions an entity makes about the examination of
tax treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how an entity
determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused
tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an
entity considers changes in facts and circumstances. The
interpretation is to be applied retrospectively, either fully
retrospectively without the use of hindsight or retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of application as an adjustment to
the opening equity at the date of initial application, without
the restatement of comparative information. The Group
expects to adopt the interpretation from 1 January 2019. The
interpretation is not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3 Issued but not Effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle sets out
amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and HKAS
23. The Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1
January 2019. None of the amendments are expected to have
a significant financial impact on the Group. Details of the
amendments are as follows:

. HKFRS 3 Business Combinations: Clarifies that, when
an entity obtains control of a business that is a joint
operation, it must apply the requirements for a business
combination achieved in stages and remeasure its entire
previously held interest in the joint operation at fair
value.

J HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements: Clarifies that when an
entity that participates in (but does not have joint control
of) a joint operation obtains joint control over that joint
operation that is a business, it does not remeasure the
interest it previously held in that joint operation.

. HKAS 12 Income Taxes: Clarifies that an entity
recognises all income tax consequences of dividends
in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or
equity, depending on where the entity recognised the
originating transaction or event that generated the
distributable profits giving rise to the dividends.

J HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs: Clarifies that an entity treats
as part of general borrowings any specific borrowing
originally made to develop a qualifying asset, and that is
still outstanding, when substantially all of the activities
necessary to prepare that asset for its intended use or
sale are complete.
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Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively. In
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly
in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s investments in the associates or joint
ventures, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from
the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as
part of the Group’s investments in associates or joint ventures.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)
If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds
from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is
classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its listed equity investments at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole:

Level 1T — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, construction contract assets, financial assets,
investment properties and non-current assets/a disposal group
classified as held for sale), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher
than the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises, (only if there are
revalued assets in the financial statements) unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Business combination and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measures the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation either at fair value or at
the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed
as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Business combination and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as
a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is,
from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated
with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss
on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstance
is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(ii)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
Related parties (continued)
(b)  (continued)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over the following estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements  Over the remaining lease terms or
3 years, whichever is shorter
Motor vehicles, furniture, 3 to 5 years
fixtures and equipment

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for
a property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or
for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the
end of the reporting period.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Investment properties (continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit
or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale
Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally
through a sales transaction rather than through continuing
use. For this to be the case, the asset or disposal group must
be available for immediate sale in its present condition
subject only to terms that are usual and customary for the sale
of such assets or disposal groups and its sale must be highly
probable. All assets and liabilities of a subsidiary classified
as a disposal group are reclassified as held for sale regardless
of whether the Group retains a non-controlling interest in its
former subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than investment
properties and financial assets) classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair
values less costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets classified as held for sale are not depreciated
or amortised.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial
year end.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under operating leases are charged to the statement
of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in
the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition (applicable
from 1 January 2018)” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,
selling the financial assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both
of the following conditions are met:

. The financial asset is held within a business model with
the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows.

J The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments)

The Group measures debt investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income if both of the following
conditions are met:

. The financial asset is held within a business model with
the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling.

o The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

For debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income, foreign exchange
revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss and computed in the same
manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost.
The remaining fair value changes are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative
fair value change recognised in other comprehensive income
is recycled to the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments) (continued)

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised
as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds
as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in
which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated
upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss,
or financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at
fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing
in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of
principal and interest are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to
be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, as described above, debt instruments
may be designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value profit or loss are also recognised as other income
in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial
liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host
and accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host;
a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the
hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit
or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in
the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification
of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing
a financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The
financial asset host together with the embedded derivative is
required to be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial investments, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs
that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets,
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Notes to Financial Statements
B ER R MY 5

31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=-HA=+—H

24 FESTHHEME (@)

RENHEMBEREE (R=2—-N\F

—A—BARBE RS EAER
A BUR)

VI RE LG E

RYTHERE TREENEREBES
BRAFEINRZEREE &R ME KK
BFUARAHEESREE A0 BRANE
BREPREEREHMTAZITET A (H
ER) ERMEENFERE RQFE
MEBRNEBZEREENR ZKRATE
MR FERBEARN SR EERIN

TRMEENMA-—REEONZ A (K
AEEAEREEIXLEZEEZCEN)T
NER - —REBENEER—RMERT
SENE-EMEAXNEEZEREE

=
B H°

HiZiE
TREENHERITERESEET O

EBRBERRAFEIRZEREE

EBRBRRATVEIRZEREERRER
FEEZSRMEERNKERKRIEERE
BEREBEAFEIENEREE-SRE
ENMAEMELRENMBE MOER
FIEEBE -RIFEERBRZHRTA (F
ERBEBEFERE3NE) TEATA(R
BEYLZBRARATETR) RO BERRE

=
BE-

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 3 113



Notes to Financial Statements
I L

31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=-A=+—H

24 FESHHERE @)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with
positive net changes in fair value presented as other income
and gains and negative net changes in fair value presented as
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss. These net fair
value changes do not include any dividends or interest earned
on these financial assets, which are recognised in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition (applicable
before 1 January 2018)” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for
as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to
those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held
for trading or designated as at fair value through profit or loss.
These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in
the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification
of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising
from impairment is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss in finance costs for loans and in other expenses for
receivables.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold
in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in
market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value, with
unrealised gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive
income in the available-for-sale investment revaluation
reserve until the investment is derecognised, at which time
the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in other income, or until the investment is
determined to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or
loss is reclassified from the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve to the statement of profit or loss in other
gains or losses. Interest and dividends earned whilst holding
the available-for-sale financial investments are reported as
interest income and dividend income, respectively and are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss as other income in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition
(applicable before 1 January 2018)” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to
sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the assets
for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale
category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in
equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of
the investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the
effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined
to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When
it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset
to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss.
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral
to the contractual terms.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the
next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures
for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for
credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

For financial assets, except for receivables from margin clients
and receivables from cash clients, the Group considers that
there has been a significant increase in credit risk when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due. The
Group considers these financial assets are in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

General approach (continued)

For receivables from margin client and cash clients, the
Group considers there has been a significant increase
in credit risk when clients cannot meet the margin call
requirement and uses the loan-to-collateral value (“LTV”) to
make its assessment. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a margin client receivable to be in default
when there is a margin shortfall which indicates the Group
is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts
in full taking into account the pledged securities held by the
Group. A margin client receivable is written off when there is
no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash
flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject
to impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of ECLs
except for trade receivables and contract assets which apply
the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain
a significant financing component or when the Group
applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of
a significant financing component, the Group applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but
instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
each reporting date. The Group has applied loss rates which
are reference to the default rates from international credit
rating agencies, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors and the economic environment.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, the probability that they
will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears
or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The
present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off when
there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced
by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss — is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed
through the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their
fair value after impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to
which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable
from 1 January 2018 and HKAS 39 applicable before

1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, an amount due to the ultimate holding company,
derivative financial instruments and interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

Notes to Financial Statements
B ER R MY 5

31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=-HA=+—H

24 FESTHHEME (@)

TRAGE(BE=2-N\E—-F—HiE
ERAEBVBBEEAFTIRRAR-F
—N\F-A—BAEREEEEA
SE395% 2 EK)

VIR E
TRABVNLEERFEFESEBRSER
FEIEZEMEBE ERXREE BHX
HRIEERERE R 2 HHPTA (ERA) °

Wﬁiﬂ%1m*ﬁﬁ$@%m WEE
MAEE KA R R FEIN G B RS
x%ﬁﬁ

AEENSRBEREENESERLE
TR B REIER AR RIE - IT4E
SRITE- +§ﬁﬁ%§&ﬁﬁﬁ*

HiEit &2
TREBERESECHERAENT:

EXRER

RYTHERE AERERREERERNE
MR ZBHERATE W ATER
R UL T BR AR AN 51 B o %ﬁﬁwﬁ
BERBBERMNEEZHEBREFEE W
SR BEENEER TR -

AHE R & B AT E A A
BRI aE AREREARAX —HHL A
R AN - BEREMNEXEHTARER Y
BEM-

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 £ 123



Notes to Financial Statements
I L

31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=-A=+—H

24 FESHHERE @)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Financial guarantee contracts (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018)

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is
recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance
of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of:
(i) the ECL allowance determined in accordance with the
policy as set out in “Impairment of financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)”; and (ii)
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised.

Financial guarantee contracts (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a
liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contract at the higher of (i) the amount
of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period; and
(i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Cash and bank balances

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand and
cash at banks, which are not restricted as to use.

Bank balances held on behalf of clients

The Group has classified the clients’ monies as bank balances
held on behalf of customers under the current assets section
of the consolidated financial position and recognised a
corresponding trade payable to respective clients on grounds
that is liable for any loss or misappropriation of clients’
monies.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences,
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

] in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until
it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal
in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Commission income from securities and futures dealing

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time
when the customer has received the service from the Group,
generally when the trades are executed. Commission and
handling income on securities and futures dealing and
broking is generally due within two days after trade date.

Commission income from placing

The performance obligation is satisfied at point in time when
the customer has received the service from the Group. The
customer receives and consume the benefits provided by the
Group when the relevant services are rendered.

Advisory fee income
Revenue from advisory fee is recognised over time as the
services are provided.

Revenue from other sources
Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January
2018)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) commission and brokerage income from securities and
futures trading, on a trade date basis;

(b) commission income from securities placing, when the
relevant service has been rendered;

(c) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest rate method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset; and

(e) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.

Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the
fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair value
is determined by an external valuer using the binomial model,
further details of which are set out in note 37 to the financial
statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the
end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement
of profit or loss for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end
of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected
in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate
expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or
performance conditions.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the
date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as
if they were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Other employee benefits

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for all of its employees. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group's
employer voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the
Group when the employee leaves employment prior to the
contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss with
the exception of monetary items that are designated as part
of the hedge of the Group’s net investment of a foreign
operation. These are recognised in other comprehensive
income until the net investment is disposed of, at which time
the cumulative amount is reclassified to the statement of
profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange
differences on those monetary items are also recorded in
other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the
item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
to an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction
is the date on which the Group initially recognises the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from
the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures,
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the end of
the reporting period. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities affected in the future.

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, estimates
and assumptions, which have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Impairment assessment of available-for-sale equity
investments (policies under HKAS 39 applicable before
1 January 2018)

Before 1 January 2018, the Group classified certain assets
as available for sale and recognised movements of their fair
values in equity. When the fair value declined, management
made assumptions about the decline in value to determine
whether there was an impairment should be recognised
in profit or loss. The carrying amount of the Group’s
available-for-sale financial assets as at 31 December 2017
was HK$1,710,695,000, details of which are set out in note
19 to the financial statements.

Impairment assessment of receivables from margin
clients and cash clients

The Group calculates the ECLs of receivables from margin
clients and cash clients by estimating the probability of
decline in expected future collateral prices, with adjustment
to reflect the current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions, as appropriate.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (continued)

Impairment assessment of receivables from money
lending business and other receivables

The Group calculates the ECLs of cash client receivables
based on the loss rates which are reference to the default rates
from international credit rating agencies, with adjustment to
reflect the current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions, as appropriate.

Impairment assessment of trade receivables from the
placing and asset management business

The Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does not
track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has applied loss rates which are reference to the
default rates from international credit rating agencies, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

As part of a qualitative assessment of whether a counterparty
is in default, the Group also considers a variety of instances
that may indicate unlikeliness to pay. When certain events
occur, the Group carefully considers whether the events
should result in determining the counterparties as defaulted
and therefore assesses whether the classification as stage 3 for
ECL calculation is appropriate.

Other than the above, no credit loss allowance has been
provided for other financial assets as the related credit loss
allowance were immaterial.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (continued)

Impairment assessment of trade receivables from the
placing and asset management business (continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the credit loss allowance for each
financial asset is as follows:

FESEHE R & (@

BEREEEEXB Z2BWE SR
EACESENE )]
R-FE-—NF+_A=+—H &HZHE
BEMEEEBBRBBOT:

Credit loss

allowance

FEBERE

HK$'000

TET

Loan receivables from money lending business B R EE 2 R E R 1,774
Trade receivables from securities and &5 N EBELZ

futures dealing business FEWE 5 R 6,553
Trade receivables from placing and ERBEEERBELZ

asset management business FEWE 5 BR X 651

Other receivables E {th e W Fk B 9,181

18,159

Further details are set out in notes 21, 23, 24 and 25 to the
financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (including
investment in associates, but excluding goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested
for impairment annually and at other times when such an
indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (including
investment in associates, but excluding goodwill)
(continued)

Related discourse about the impairment on the investment
in an associate are included in note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at their fair values. The fair
value at the end of each reporting period was based on a
valuation on these properties estimated by the Directors or
conducted by an independent firm of professionally qualified
valuers using direct comparison method which involve
making assumptions, including prices realised on actual
sales of comparable properties, on certain market conditions.
Favourable or unfavourable changes to these assumptions
would result in changes in the fair values of the Group's
investment properties and the corresponding adjustments to
the gain or loss recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Purchase price allocation for a business combination
The calculation of the gain on bargain purchase required
significant judgements on the fair values of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date.
Management commissions professional valuers to appraise
the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed, and determines the gain on bargain purchase with
reference to the valuation carried by the professional valuers.

Related discourse about the gain on bargain purchase and
the business combination are included in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (continued)

Valuation of share options

As described in note 37 to the financial statements, the
Company engaged an independent firm of professionally
qualified valuer to assist in the valuation of the share options
granted during the year ended 31 December 2018. The fair
values of options granted under the share option schemes
were determined using the binomial option pricing model.
The significant inputs into the model included share price
at the grant date, risk-free interest rate, exercise price and
expected volatility of the underlying shares. When the actual
results of the inputs differ from management’s estimate,
this will have an impact on share option expenses and the
related share option reserve of the Company. 1,073,464,000
share options were granted by the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2018. The fair value of the share options
granted by the Company during the year ended 31 December
2018 was HK$44,918,000. The share option expense of
HK$44,918,000 was recognised during the year ended
31 December 2018.

Income tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
carried forward to the extent that it is probable (i.e., more
likely than not) that future taxable profits will be available
against which the unused tax losses can be utilised, based
on all available evidence. Recognition primarily involves
judgement regarding the future performance of the particular
legal entity or tax group in which the deferred tax asset has
been recognised. A variety of other factors are also evaluated
in considering whether there is convincing evidence that it
is probable that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets
will ultimately be realised, such as the existence of taxable
temporary differences, tax planning strategies and the periods
in which estimated tax losses can be utilised. The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets and related financial models
and budgets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and to the extent that there is insufficient convincing evidence
that sufficient taxable profits will be available within the
utilisation periods to allow utilisation of the tax losses carried
forward, and the asset balance will be reduced and charged
to the statement of profit or loss.
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Operating Segment Information

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed
separately according to the nature of their operations and
the products and services they provide. Each of the Group’s
operating segments represents a strategic business unit that
offers products and services which are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of the other business
segments. Summary of details of the operating segments are
as follows:

(@) the electronic and accessory products segment trades
electronic and accessory products;

(b) the financial investments and services segment
comprises financial investments and trading, debt and
equity investments and money lending business;

(c) the brokerage and commission segment comprises
provision of trading in securities and futures contracts
services;

(d) the property investments segment comprises leasing of
investment properties; and

(e) the corporate and others segment comprises corporate
income and expense items.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
loss, which is measured consistently with the Group’s profit/
loss before tax except that bank interest income, gain on
disposal of a subsidiary, impairment loss on investment in
an associate, share of (loss)/profit of associates, loss on step
acquisition, finance costs and head office and corporate
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude cash and bank balances, investment
in an associate, deferred tax assets and other unallocated
head office and corporate assets as these assets are managed
on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude notes payable, bank overdrafts,
bank borrowings, other borrowings, tax payable, deferred tax
liabilities and other unallocated head office and corporate
liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

4.
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4. Operating Segment Information (continued) 4.
Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to
conform with the current year’s presentation.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the
then prevailing market prices.

For the year ended 31 December 2018

KReETEER (@)
ETURSBOEF VI EUTAREEY

25

DEEEERBREIZ2EERRITHEH
ETF=HT2EEHET

BE_E-N\F+-A=1+-HLEE

Financial Brokerage
investments and
and services commission

B
RERBE BERES
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Segment revenue: ARUA:
External IR 17,282 150,130
Intersegment sales PERHE 7,267
157,397
Elimination i (7,267)
Total st 150,130
Segment results TEEE 56,165
Reconciliation: B
Bank interest income BRI EWA
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & —HAMER R Kz
Impairment loss on investment & EBE LA 2
in an associate REFE
Unallocated expenses AAERX
Finance costs HBER
Share of loss of an associate AMEBE DR ZER
Loss before tax RERIEE
Income tax expense R
Loss for the year TEEER
Assets and liabilities BEREE
Segment assets NEREE 1,612,101 503,780
Reconciliation: k-
Unallocated assets AOBREE
Total assets BELE
Segment liabilities NREE 117,464
Reconciliation: Hk:
Unallocated liabilities K& E
Total liabilities BEEE
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Property
investments

ESS
HK$'000
TRR

6,650

6,650

6,650
11,190

435,057

1,639

Corporate
and others

TER A
HK$'000
TR

392

392
(62,481)

10,985

13,102

Consolidated

g4
HK$/000
TR
174,454
7,267

181,721
(7,267)

174,454
7,733

12
65,620

(51,257)

(2,664)
(64,407)
(13,912)

(58,875)
(8,186)

(67,061)

2,561,923

328,976

2,890,899
134,625

907,452

1,042,077
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4. Operating Segment Information (continued) 4. REDEER
For the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 December 2017 —E—+FHA-BEZE—+tF+A
=+—HHM
Electronic Financial Brokerage
and accessory  investments and Property Corporate

products  and services  commission investments and others  Consolidated
ETR  HHRE

REEm kR%  BERBE  WERE  LERHEM )

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TET TET TR TRT

Segment revenue: kLN
External IR = 185,490 38,965 3,600 = 228,055
Intersegment sales PERHE - 804 = = 804
- 185,490 39,769 3,600 - 228,859
Elimination e - - (804) - - (804)
Total @5 = 185,490 38,965 3,600 = 228,055
Segment results PEEE (16) 319,914 23,125 92,505 (7,638) 427,890
Reconciliation: B
Bank interest income BITFIBWA 1
Unallocated expenses FOERT 1,131)
Finance costs HEER (53,385)
Profit before tax B2 4 A0 i A 373,375
Income tax expense FERRAX (4,520)
Profit for the period REARR A 368,855
Assets and liabilities BEREE
Segment assets NEEE - 2,769,117 402,976 830,184 12,307 4,014,584
Reconciliation: k-
Unallocated assets ROMEE 214,064
Total assets EELE 4,228,648
Segment liabilities NEaf 755 2,007 211,580 1,868 14,327 230,537
Reconciliation: k-
Unallocated liabilities *oEEE 1,274,207
Total liabilities BERE 1,504,744
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4. Operating Segment Information (continued)
Other segment information
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Financial
investments
and services

&R

HK$'000

THET
Depreciation ik -

Impairment losses on loan HEEBEEZER
receivables from money ERZRERRRE
lending business, net

Impairment losses on trade BERBEERRHK
receivables from securities and B4 7 EWE B
futures dealing business, net LREBEFE

Impairment losses on trade RERBEERER
receivables from placingand ~ EH 2 ENE 5K

asset management business, L REEREE
net

Impairment losses on ANFE ReR
financial assets included in HiEWRFERE 2

prepayments, deposits and TREENEFRFE
other receivables, net

Share of loss of an associate SEBERR R
Gain on revaluation of EREENE I MR
investment properties

Gain on disposal of itemson ~ HEWE HER
property, plant and equipment R B 2 K&

Capital expenditure* ERRX
g Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and
equipment.
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LESYk
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TER
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TER
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4. Operating Segment Information (continued) 4. REDFER #0

Other segment information (continued) Hib o BEHR (&)
For the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 December 2017 —E—t+FHA-BRE_ZE—+tF+H
=+—HHM
Electronic Financial Brokerage
and accessory  investments and Property Corporate
products  and services  commission  investments  and others  Consolidated
BTN HEBRE
REEMm kR% SRk NERE  CLERER Ra
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRT TRT TR TAL TAT TRT
Depreciation ik - - 154 233 1,118 1,505
Impairment losses RESRER ZRE
recognised in the B
statement of profit or loss - 800 - - - 800
Write off of deposits and ~ #M$E & & R Attt
other receivables TR - 319 - - = 319
Share of profit of associates 76 & 73 & 2 & 7 - - - - (6,459) (6,459)
Loss on step acquisition PERWEER - - - - 381 381
Gain on bargain purchase A EHEE Yz = = = = (5,370) (5,370)
Gain on revaluation of BERENE N E
investment properties - - - (91,033) = (91,033)
Fair value gains on equity ~ EBEZEATEIIER
investments at fair value ~ ZIRARE 2 ATE
through profit or loss, net Wiz F % - (121,623) - - 3 (121,623)
Gain on disposal of HEAHHERARE
available-for-sale equity 2 WE
investments - (20,620) - - - (20,620)
Capital expenditure* EARX* - - 110 - 880 990

*

equipment.

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

CBARXBREABEDE BEERE-
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Operating Segment Information (continued) 4. REDEER

Geographical information i E & H

The Group’s revenue and non-current assets are AREBRARFRDEETERBEE b
predominantly attributable to a single geographical region, B(EE) MBBENARAEBREIZEBR
Hong Kong, which is the Group’s principal place of business QPR - Bt - WA 2 MR D ERDHT -
and operations. Therefore, no analysis by geographical region

is presented.

Information about a major customer FBRXEREFZER

During the year ended 31 December 2018, operating income BE_Z-/\F+_A=+—HLFE"
or revenue from transactions with each external customer HEIIABFPETRIAELERAI Y
amounts to less than 10% of the Group’s total operating BN AEEALEEWAIKEZ210% °
income or revenue. For the period from 1 April 2017 to RZEBE—+FMNA—HE_T—+F+=
31 December 2017, operating income or revenue from A=+—BHR BEIRETFPETRS
transactions with each external customer amounts to less than FSRERASI KRR DR AEBBLK LR
10% of the Group’s total operating income or revenue. AF W EE 2 10% ©

Revenue, Other Income and Gains 5. WA -HM AR K=

Revenue represents the aggregate of the losses on disposal
of equity investments at fair value through profit or loss,
dividend income from investment in listed equity securities,
interest income from money lending business, interest income
from securities margin, commission income from securities
and futures dealing, commission from placing and property
rental income during the year ended 31 December 2018 and
period from 1 April 2017 to 31 December 2017.
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5. Revenue, Other Income and Gains (continued) 5. WA - HA R K (@)
An analysis of revenue and other income and gains is as BREBA HEARKSEZ MO :
follows:
For the period
For the from
year ended 1 April 2017 to
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—F—F
BE MA—AZE
—E2-N\F e
T=A=1+-0 |
LFE HAfA
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHER FET
Revenue WA
Revenue from contracts BEFAKBA
with customers
Commission income from securities #FHMHEEE 2 M BA
and futures dealing 12,641
Commission income from placing feEz@alA 18,748
Advisory fee income BRBEKA =
Revenue from other sources H At AORMA
Losses on disposal of equity HEFBBEREATEIERZ
investments at fair value through BRAKEZ B
profit or loss (14,357) (5,181)
Dividend income from investment FHRAESFRE 2 BRBWA
in listed equity securities 157,687
Interest income from money ME ¥ 2 T SUA*
lending business* 31,639 32,984
Interest income from securities BHRBEZ M EWA
margin* 31,378 7,576
Property rental income MEBESBA 6,650 3,600
174,454 228,055
& Interest income from money lending business and interest * MEEBZFBEWARBLRREES ZFE

income from securities margin were calculated using the

effective interest method.

WA TR BB AR -
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For the period
from

1 April 2017 to
31 December
2017
—T—+F
MA—RAZ%
—E—+F
+=A=+—8H
EAA

HK$’000
FET

433
167

601

5. Revenue, Other Income and Gains (continued) 5. WA - HM A R WK ()
For the
year ended
31 December
2018
Bz
—g-)\F
+=A=+-—H
IFE
HK$’000
FHER
Other income and gains H A WA K 2
Gain on disposal of items of property, H&¥% K5 &
plant and equipment RiBEEB 2=
Bank interest income RITA B UWA
Handling fee income FEERA
Others H A
6. Finance Costs 6. MBER
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MBERAITAT

For the

year ended
31 December
2018

BZE
—E-N\F
+=H=+-—H
LHEE

HK$'000
TERx

Interest on bank borrowings RITEEH S
Interest on other borrowings H & E 78
Interest on bank overdrafts RATHE X FB
Interest on notes payable e RIET B
Others HAt

11,749
45,474
2,779
4,395
10
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For the period
from

1 April 2017 to
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Tt
mMA—HE
—E—LF
+=-—A=+—~
HAFE
HK$'000
FHET

4,736
45,001
338
3,302
8

53,385




(Loss)/Profit before Tax
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7. BRBiA (BEB) R

The Group’s (loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBBRELA (BE) SRF mes (5
(crediting): AN)ATIEE -
For the period
For the from
year ended 1 April 2017 to
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—_T—+5F
Bz MA—RAZ&E
—E2-N\F —E—LtF
==l - — A=+—H
LFE HAfA
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT TET
Depreciation (note 15) e (MI5E15) 2,018 1,505
Employee benefit expense (including {& 8 & FIF X
directors’ remuneration (note 8)): (BREEME (FzEs) ) :
Wages and salaries ITELR#® 42,290 12,629
Equity-settled share option RIEEE  BIRERHE 5
arrangements, net 44,918 =
Retirement benefit scheme RIRARFIET &I K
contributions 1,315 277
88,523 12,906
Minimum lease payments under KREMEBE T2 HERERNK
operating leases 16,577 7,113
Auditor’s remuneration Z B AT B 3,480 2,600
Impairment losses on other financial HM&MEERGNEEZ
assets and contract asset, net BB 1R F R
Impairment losses on loan MEZEBEL 2 BKRE K
receivables from money 2R EEEFRE (Miak21)
lending business, net (note 21) =
Impairment losses on trade BELEEEEBELE Y
receivables from securities and JEUE 5 BR 3K 2 BB
futures dealing business, B8 F 58 (MI7E23)
net (note 23) =
Impairment losses on trade REREEEEXBEL
receivables from placing and Z IR E 5 R 2 RE
asset management business, 5185 B8 (F3E24)
net (note 24) =
Impairment losses on financial FENFIE Re REME
assets included in prepayments, WHRIBEBREZEMEELZ
deposits and other receivables, WEE R FE (Miah25)
net (note 25) -
Write off of deposits and WH R © N H A e W KR
other receivables - 319
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE Mz KEHEEE
plant and equipment 2 Wz (6) =
Gain on revaluation of investment BEREME 2 W
properties (5,000) (91,033)
Gain on bargain purchase AEBE WS - (5,370)
Foreign exchange differences, net BN EER - RE 393 116
Impairment loss on an investment REBLENRZRERBRE
in an associate 51,257 -
Loss on partial disposal of interests & 5 5 Bt & 2 7] 2 IRIE & 15
in an associate 472 -
Loss from release of fair value reserve & 555 5 & X 7] b5
upon partial disposal of an associate 72 B % {5 5 [l &5 18 407 =
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7. (Loss)/Profit before Tax (continued) 7.
At 31 December 2018, the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the
retirement benefit schemes in future years (Period ended
31 December 2017: Nil).

8. Directors’ Remuneration 8.
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation, is as follows:

BREA (B1E) &% @
RZE—NFE+-_A=+—8B XxEFEL
08 U 3T AR A R R R AR
BHRHEMR (BE—E—+&+ -7
=+ — R E)

EEMS

BIEETRA FERQAMEHE383(1)()
b)) RO IEARRAT (BEEEFHER)
HOIE2BWBEZFANESHE O

For the period

For the from
year ended 1 April 2017 to
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E—tF
BZE MA—B=
—E-N\E —E—+tF
TZA=1+—H [Eei=aal=
IEFEE L
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Fees e 529 383
Other emoluments of executive WITESEZHMES -
directors:
Salaries, allowances and benefits e EMEEYEF
in kind 1,265
Equity-settled share option BEEE  BIRERHE  F8
arrangements, net =
Retirement benefit scheme RKtE N ET B3k
contributions 62
1,327
1,710

During the year, certain directors were granted 635,600,000
share options, in respect of their services to the Group, under
the share option schemes of the Company, further details
of which are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.
The fair value of such options, which has been recognised
in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amounts
recognised in the statement of profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2018 were included in the above directors’
remuneration disclosures.
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8. Directors’ Remuneration (continued) 8. EEM=E m
(@) Independent non-executive directors (@ BIFEHITEE
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors RE/ NI FBILIERNTESEZ
during the year/period were as follows: B|EIT

For the period

For the from
year ended 1 April 2017 to
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—F—+F
BZE mMA—BZ
—E-N\F —T—+F
a=p: =k =l ~ — A =+—H
ILFEE HAR
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER TET
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong BEREE 150 113
Mr. Chen Youchun BREELE 240 180
Mr. Mai Qijian (resigned BHEEAE(RZT—N
on 2 October 2018) F+ A ZHEME) 100 90
Mr. Wu Ming (appointed RELEE(RZE-N\F
on 2 October 2018) TAZHEZE) 39 -
383
There were no other emoluments payable to the REAREEMENBULIENTE
independent non-executive directors during the year EZHe(BEZE-_Z—+F+H
(Period ended 31 December 2017: Nil). =+—HI-HME: &) -
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8. Directors’ Remuneration (continued) 8. EEME @
(b) Executive directors b) HITEE
Equity-
Salaries, ~ settled share Retirement
allowances option benefit
and benefits arrangements, scheme Total
Fees in kind net  contributions remuneration
REEH

B 2H ZBRE BB
e RENEN ZH FE HE 2 HeRH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL THEL THAL THEL THAL

Year ended 31 December 2018 HE-F-NF+=8

=t-RLEFE
Mr. Yu Qingrui REHLE
Ms. Lam Hay Yin L
Mr. Chen Xiaodong REER 4
Ms. Lee Chau Man Ada (resigned Fi 8§14
on 23 November 2018) (RZB-N\%F
T-AZT=BE{f)
Mr. Xu Ke (appointed 3 opia
on 27 February 2018) (RZB-N\%F

“RAZTLBREZA)

Period ended 31 December 2017 BE-E—+4%+=-A

=+—AILHE
Mr. Yu Qingrui REHTE = 90 = 4 94
Ms. Lam Hay Yin mEF Lt - 450 - 2 472
Mr. Chen Xiaodong REREE - 450 - 2 472
Ms. Lee Chau Man Ada Fieat
(appointed on (RZB—t%
18 September 2017) NATNBEZ) - 275 = 14 289
- 1,265 - 062 1,327
There was no arrangement under which a director RENREEEHENABRELM
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the e (BE_Z—+F+_H
year (Period ended 31 December 2017: Nil). =+—HI-HME: &) -
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Five Highest Paid Employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included
three (Period ended 31 December 2017: two) directors, details
of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details
of the remuneration for the year of the remaining two (Period
ended 31 December 2017: three) highest paid employees
who are not a director of the Company are as follows:

9.

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=-HA=+—H

AfuBEHHES
FRANSEFHEESE=4 (BE=
T—tF+-A=+—BILHM:WR)E
FOREZMEFHBRMN LM TS - F R
BTIRA (BE-F—LF+-A=+—
ALLER: ZR) AR EE 2 REHH
BEZBEHBENMT

For the period

Salaries, allowances and benefits o EMEEYET
in kind
Equity-settled share option SRz BIRELHE F8

arrangements, net
Retirement benefit scheme BRREFFT B R
contributions

For the from

year ended 1 April 2017 to
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
B+

Bz MA—B=
—E-)N\F —E—tF
t=A=+-0 [EEEERE:
IEFE M
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FAT
10,787 1,504

3,869 -

35 106

1,610
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9. Five Highest Paid Employees (continued) 9.

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

EFVBRSEHEMES &)
MEeNTTHBEBEFESTSETHE
8 AEMT:

Number of employees

Nil to HK$500,000

HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$6,500,000
HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000
HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000

Z 2500,00078 7T

500,001,87C 21,000,000/ 7T

1,000,001/ 7T £6,500,000/%8 7T
6,500,001,8 727,000,000/ 7T
7,000,001 7L £ 7,500,000/ 7T
7,500,001 7T 2£8,000,000/%8 7T

EBEAH
For the period
For the from
year ended 1 April 2017 to
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E—F
BZE WMA—A=E
—E-N\EFE —E—+F
t=A=+-0 [EEEERE:
IEFEE HA
1
2
3

During the year ended 31 December 2018, share options
were granted to one non-director highest paid employee in
respect of his service to the Group under the share option
schemes of the Company, further details of which are set out
in note 37 to the financial statements. The fair value of such
options, which has been recognised in the statement of profit
or loss over the vesting period, was determined at the date of
grant and the amounts recognised in the statement of profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2018 were included in
the above non-director highest paid employees’ remuneration
disclosures. No share options have been granted to employees
during the period ended 31 December 2017.
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10. Income Tax Expense
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(Period ended 31 December 2017: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the period.
Taxes on profits assessable in Mainland China in the current
year have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in
Mainland China in which the Group operates, based on
existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect

10.

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=-HA=+—H

Frie®iMmx

BENGH BEERAPHESELE 2
ST RERRE M IE16.5% (BBE T —+4F
+ - A=+—BI-HM 16.5%) KRR -
AEEZPBE R ERE S 2 HRIEE RE
WITEP -HEBEBzRERIER ZAEE
BEMAENTREARN ZIRITRERAE -

thereof.

For the period
For the from
year ended 1 April 2017 to
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E—+tF
Bz MA—H=Z=
—E-N\F —E—+tF
TZA=1—0 |k
LFEE HA
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THBIT

Current — Hong Kong B —&8
Charge for the year/period F/ BRI 11,041 4,533
Overprovision in prior years BEFEHBERER 42) _
Deferred (note 33) BT (KI5E33) (2,813) (13)
Total tax charge for the year/period & HIRBIIE L P42 %8 8,186 4,520
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10. FI8RiRE X (@)
B A D T R E A S5 M B A 7 E 3%
BEZ AR ERTEZBEAN (FR)
HAERZHERY, (Hh) BEEE
BRHE Y EWER T HENT -

10. Income Tax Expense (continued)
A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable to (loss)/
profit before tax using the statutory rates for the jurisdictions
in which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are
domiciled to the tax position at the effective tax rates is as

follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE_E-N\F+-A=1+-HLEE

Hong Kong  Mainland China Total

& Bl A it #et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

FTEx FET FEx

Loss before tax BRI B 1B (53,794) (5,081) (58,875)

Tax at the statutory tax rates BEEMEFE 2 HIE (8,876) (1,270) (10,146)

Losses attributable to an associate ~— B & A & B &5 18 2,441 2,441

Income not subject to tax XSG ON (11,192) (11,192)

Expenses not deductible for tax AT FH X 14,859 16,129

Tax losses not recognised RERHEEE 10,057 10,057

Tax losses utilised EEANIEEE (719) (719)
Temporary difference not AERERZH

recognised 1,823 1,823

Overprovision in prior years BEFEBRAER 42) 42)

Tax relief of 8.25% on first

HK$2 million assessable profit

52,000,000 7T & R 71
EwAEE8.25% 2

PR % (165) (165)
Tax at the effective rate BREBBEFEZRIE 8,186 8,186
For the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 December 2017 —T—+FWUA-BEZE—+tF+=A
=—+—HHEHE
Hong Kong ~ Mainland China Total
R B A 3t st
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FiET FET FET
Profit before tax BR 354 A& A 373,375 - 373,375
Tax at the applicable tax rates BRI E(16.5%)

(16.5%) AEZHA 61,607 - 61,607
Income not subject to tax BEFIHA (45,315) = (45,315)
Expenses not deductible AR

for tax 2,653 = 2,653
Tax losses not recognised AERRIAEE 2,141 - 2,14
Tax losses utilised EHRHERER (16,487) - (16,487)
Temporary difference not AERERHEZHE

recognised (79) - (79)
Tax at the effective rate (1.21%)  REBEHE(1.21%)

AR ZBE 4,520 - 4,520
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11.

Disposal Group Classified as Held for Sale

On 29 December 2017, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Wise Victory Group Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Future
World Financial Holdings Limited (“FWF”), pursuant to which
the Group agreed to dispose of its entire equity interest in
Goodview Assets Limited and a shareholder loan due by
the Goodview Assets Limited to the Group of approximately
HK$43.7 million for a total consideration of HK$260.0
million which shall be settled by the allotment and issue
of 1,793,103,448 FWF shares, subject to the completion of
certain conditions. Mr. Yu Qingrui and Mr. Chen Xiaodong
are common directors of the Group and FWF. The principal
activity of Goodview Assets Limited is property investment
through owning a property located at No. 1 Lincoln
Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong. Details refer to the Group’s
announcement and circular dated 29 December 2017 and
21 March 2018 respectively.

On 25 April 2018, the Group disposed of its entire interest in
Goodview Assets Limited for an aggregate of 1,793,103,448
ordinary shares allotted and issued under the FWF
Specific Mandate to Main Purpose Investments Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, at a price of HK$0.191
per share. The equity interest was subsequent accounted as an
investment in an associate as at 31 December 2018. Details
refer to the Group’s announcement dated 25 April 2018.

11.
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TEABEHEZLHEAR

RZE—+F+ A=+ B ~"EHEHE
Wise Victory Group Limited (738 Bz
HEIMKILZBRAR BRRERE
BIERARAR ([RKMHASR] ) 22E
MBARELEEHZ Bt AKER
E HE H R Goodview Assets Limited Z &
ZRA% 4E 2 Goodview Assets Limited %5 K 7K
EE 2 BREEF%43,700,0005 7T - BH
{8 /260,000,000, 7T * #% 5 8 Bc 3% 2 317
1,793,103,4480% R 2R th R & g i 5 & 7 -
HEGETHRHEEREBEFSEE - REH
SEDBERLEATNEBRERRRERE
ml 2 F R E 5 - Goodview Assets Limited 2
TEERASBBEEMNNEENENSTE
1R MEETYERE -FEBL2HELE
BERHSMAE - —+tF+ A=+ 1A
F—F-—NF=ZA-+—HZAEKRBK-

RZE-N\FWNA-+HA AEFAHE
H A Goodview Assets Limited 2 & S0# %5 -
AWERE R KT RESREFRNRERSE
[%0.19178 7T A Main Purpose Investments
Limited (AEE 2 2&MBAA)) AL 8 Kk 3%
1124 3£1,793,103,4480% L @AR - B i &
BARINEBR-ZE—N\EF+ZA=+—H
R—EEERF 2 RE -FBHEL2HAE
EASRR-—Z—N\GFOA=-THAZAE
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11. Disposal Group Classified as Held for Sale 11. 7 EABFEHEZHEAR
(continued)
The major classes of assets and liabilities of Goodview Assets R-ZTE—+tF+-H=+—HB" Goodview
Limited which classified as held for sale as at 31 December Assets Limited D AIHELHEZEERE
2017 are as follows: B2 EFEZHAMT
HK$'000
FET
Assets BE
Investment property* REMFE 400,000
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FENFIE  Re R EMEKFIA 83
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITHETRT 26
Assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale D EAFIELE Z HEEBEE 400,109
Liabilities afE
Other payables and accruals Hit eI RN EFER 201
Bank borrowings-current RITIEE —BIEA 5,351
Bank borrowings-non-current IRITEE —3EENHA 133,762
Liabilities directly associated with DEAKFLEZEEEREHEE
the assets classified as held for sale 139,314
Net assets directly associated with disposal group NEMBIEZEE 2 EEFE 260,795
y Bank loans amounting to HK$139,113,000 being part of * ERFHEEEZHEEMN —FH 2 RITE
the disposal group held for sales are not included in the 139,113,000/ LI AR FHA LK - BRIR
above table. Such bank loans are secured by mortgages over TER(DERFELE)UAEBRLR
the Group’s investment property situated in Hong Kong, BERZREDMEZRE (RBREPREE
which had a carrying value at the end of reporting period of {8 /3400,000,0007% 7T ) {E K #f B B IR 17
HK$400,000,000, being classified as held for sale. The bank BERIE— @ ABBRITR R 2 MN2% 3K
loans carry interest at lower of 1-month HIBOR plus 2% or BITHREBEMERE2.5% CREETE
HKD Prime Rate — 2.5% and will be matured in 2037. RZZB=+5FFH8-
12. Dividends 12. B2

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018 (Period ended
31 December 2017: Nil).
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13. (Loss)/Earnings per Share Attributable to

Ordinary Equity Holders of the Parent

The calculation of the basic loss per share (Period ended
31 December 2017: basic earnings per share) amount is
based on the loss for the year (Period ended 31 December
2017: profit for the period) attributable to owners of the
parent of HK$67,061,000 (Period ended 31 December 2017:
HK$368,855,000), and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue of 13,856,376,488 (Period ended
31 December 2017: 11,143,413,958).

No adjustment has been made to the basic (loss)/earnings per
share amounts presented for the year ended 31 December
2018 and period ended 31 December 2017 in respect of a
dilution as the impact of the share options outstanding had
an anti-dilutive effect on the basic (loss)/earnings per share
amounts presented.

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per
share are based on:

13.
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31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=-HA=+—H

E:’ AEBEEREEAEMLS
Bz ( EHE) B
EREABEB(BE-_ZE—tF+=A
=+—HIHH - FREAEFN)SEIR
BEARBAEARGAFEEER (B2
T—+F+-A=+—HILHM: AEEE
%) 67,061,000 L (BEZE=_E—+F+=
A=+—H1LHfH : 368,855,000/ 7T) X E
BT L MAR 2 hnkE T 5 2013,856,376,488
Bz —tF+=-A=+—H 15
R :11,143,413,9580% )51 & o

RN HARITEBRESGRER (BE)
B2/ SBEARBELE RAUEY
BE-_Z-\F+_A=1T-BLFER
HE_ZT—+tF+-A=+—RHIEHBHEZ
FRELX(BER) /BNZ2SEEN
EAHE-
FREARER(ER) /BNNDERT
SIBEREE

For the period

For the from
year ended 1 April 2017 to
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—t&F
BZE MA—AZ
—EB-N\F ZE—tF
==l - — A=+—8
ILFE HAfA
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHER FET
(Loss)/earnings (E5#]|) BF
(Loss) for the year/profit for the period 5T & & J&F A 2 #55%
attributable to owners of the parent,  (E18) /&FIFAET AR
used in the basic and diluted (loss)) ~ #EHE AEIEFRN (F18)
earnings per share calculations HA 934 A (67,061) 368,855
Number of shares
RHEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+fF
'000F M '000F A%
Shares &)
Weighted average number of ordinary st E&REARREE (F1E)
shares in issue during the year/ BFFMAE /HAB BT
period used in the basic and diluted & i@ AX AN F 19 2
(loss)/earnings per share calculations 13,856,376 11,143,414
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14. Disposal of a Subsidiary 14. HE—RBHRE QA
On 25 April 2018, the Group disposed of its entire interest RZE-—NFOA-_+LHB AKEHHI
in Goodview Assets limited, an indirectly wholly-owned EHRHE2EMNE 2R 7 Goodview Assets
subsidiary of the Group, which was previously classified as Limited 2 & ##EH HR T —tF+=
“Disposal Group of Assets held for sale” as at 31 December AR=+—RA&EAioBER[HELEZLHE
2017, for acquisition of 1,793,103,448 consideration shares BRIERE ] LAUEET,793,103,4480 R 3K tT
in FWF, which equity interest was accounted for as investment REBREBRD - EBRBEARER/SLSE
in an associate of the Group. REERFZIRE -
HK$'000
FET
Net assets disposed of: P& & EFE -
Investment property REME 400,000
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TANRRIE ke KA M EKFRIA 35
Other payables and accruals Ho A &~ SR8 K e AHE A (1,007)
Bank borrowings RITEE (137,338)
261,690
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — R B D F) 2 W 80,793
Elimination of unrealised profits and losses HIHmMBE RN AR HRZ
on transactions with the associate* REIR G F M1 (15,173)
Gain on disposal attributed to the Group BENAEEZ HERE 65,620
Satisfied by: BIAT T ER
Acquisition of consideration shares of W ARK T RERRERND
FWF (1,793,103,448@HK$0.191) (1,793,103,448 & [%0.191/8 7T ) 342,483
¥ The Group considered that the transaction resulting in loss i REERR EHEAEMBRAR ZE I
of control of subsidiary was sale or contributions of assets to IR BEAREHENEETELSTE
an associate prescribed in HKAS 28 where gains and losses AIEE285R ATATBA 2 Bt & X R) - M AR SR B &
resulting from transaction between the Group and its associate HELERNAzRHEEN N R REE/E
to be recognised only to the extent of unrelated interests in the TRBE N B R R AR B T LARERR
associate.
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. % -BERKE

Motor vehicles,

Leasehold furniture, fixtures
improvements and equipment Total

HEWE RE R
x5 RERRE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET THET THET

31 December 2018

At 1 January 2018:
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

—F-NF+=A=t-H

RZZE-N\F-A—H:

Net carrying amount

At 1 January 2018, net of
accumulated depreciation

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation provided during
the year

At 31 December 2018, net of
accumulated depreciation

At 31 December 2018:

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

B AR 6,448 4,959 11,407

2iE (3,605) (2,796) (6,401)

BREFE 2,843 2,163 5,006
RZZE—N\F—A—8"

Mk RFHTER 2,843 2,163 5,006
nNE 34 1,156 1,190
HE - (74) (74)
FRTERE

(1,245) (773) (2,018)
R-ZE—N\F

+=-A=+—R"

Mk ETER
R-ZZE—NF+=A

=r—=)8

B AR 6,482 5,980

BEFE (4,850) (3,508)

BRAEFE 1,632 2,472
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 15. Y% - BERRE ()

Motor vehicles,
Leasehold  furniture, fixtures

improvements and equipment Total
MEME TE R
& KERZE Bt
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FHAL FHAT FAT
31 December 2017 —E—tH+=ZA=1+—H
At 1 April 2017: RZZE—+FHA—R:
Cost B AR 4,074 1,854 5,928
Accumulated depreciation REHE (612) (1,685) (2,297)
Net carrying amount FEFE 3,462 169 3,631
At 1 April 2017, net of R-ZE—+FOWA—R"
accumulated depreciation Mk RFTER 3,462 169 3,631
Acquisition of subsidiaries UL BB T B 1 7 394 1,496 1,890
Additions NE 77 913 990
Depreciation provided BT ERE
during the period (1,090) (415) (1,505)
At 31 December 2017, net of RZZT—+F
accumulated depreciation +=ZA=+—8"
Mk 25T ER 2,843 2,163 5,006
At 31 December 2017: RZE—+F
+=ZA=+—8:
Cost DR 6,448 4,959 11,407
Accumulated depreciation BiE (3,605) (2,796) (6,401)
Net carrying amount REFE 2,843 2,163 5,006
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16. Investment Property
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16. WEWZE

HK$'000
FAET
Carrying amount at 1 April 2017 RZZE—tFNA—-—RAZEEA
Addition (from acquisition) ANE (RBUWE) 738,967
Net gain from a fair value adjustment NP EFHBEZ WRFRE 91,033
Transfer to disposal group classified as held for sale & ZE 5% ARFELHE 2 HEHE7 (400,000)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2017 and E/\\ —tF+-A=t—HBR
1 January 2018 —N\F—A—BZKAEE 430,000
Net gain from a fair value adjustment /ASP{EEEJ%EKZLIQ?&;\%%E 5,000
Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F+ZA=+—BZKREE 435,000

The Group held one investment property as at 31 December
2018 which is located No.2 Lincoln Road in Kowloon. The
Group held two investment properties as at 31 December
2017 which are located at No. 1 Lincoln Road and No. 2
Lincoln Road in Kowloon respectively. Property located at No.
1 Lincoln Road was held by Goodview Assets Limited which
was classified as “Disposal Group classified as held for sale”.
The equity interest of the disposal group was subsequently
disposed on 25 April 2018.

The Group’s investment property was revalued on
31 December 2018 based on valuation performed by
Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited, an independent
professionally qualified valuer. Each year, the Group's
management and the chief financial officer decide, after
approval from the audit committee, to appoint which
external valuer to be responsible for the external valuations
of the Group’s properties. Selection criteria include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. The Group’s financial
controller have discussions with the valuers on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results twice a year when the
valuation is performed for interim and annual financial
reporting.

The investment properties are leased to a third party under
operating leases, further summary details of which are
included in note 39 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the Group’s
investment property was pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group.

=

2]

- NF+-A=+—H A£EHE
MM S B2 2 —EIREWE-
E(\\_E*JCEJF A=+—H X~%EB#
BRI R NEMRSBIREMNSB2R 2

MEZREWE-URAMRSEBIR 2MER
Goodwew Assets Limited 5B h D ¥ A
(D EABIEHE 2L EAER] - B E4HR

ZBREBEEN T \FEUNA-_+THAH
%O

i
\KTI\

REBEBLEXAERMGEEMIIAFEE
AERARMETZEE ARER_-F
—NFE+-_A=+—HEBHERED=-
AEEEEEREFRMBESFRERR
BEeftRg REZEEEAKEDEI

REEZINR fﬁfﬁﬁﬂi cHEERBET IS
%DE%& EB BIUENARBEXENELEE
REge EATqu:‘HH&EfWWEE#ELTﬂﬁﬁ
R AKRECVBRESFRBERR
B AR ER A R MK

REMEBRBELEHEEH T —RFE=77"
BRI B RENI B RERM 39 -

R-B—NF+_A=+—AR-FT—+
E+t-A=t+—R AREZRENED
HARE AR B R RATRE 2 A -
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16. Investment Property (continued)
Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group’s investment property:

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2018 using:

Recurring fair value ATIIBEZERN

measurement for: ANEERE:
Property at No. 2 fRME 25 2
Lincoln Road mE

Quoted
prices in
active
markets
(Level 1)
RIEER
mZHRE

(F-B®&)
HK$’000
TET

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2017 using:

16. REWHE )
ATLEBR
TEIIRAEEMEZEYE Y ATV EHEE

A% -

RZE-NEFE+_A=+—HBZAF¥E:

BEM:

Significant
observable
inputs
(Level 2)
BEXRABE
WA SE
(B=E#&)
HK$'000
THET

Significant
unobservable
inputs

(Level 3)
BEATH
BEnAYE
(B=ZEBHR)
HK$'000
THET

435,000

At
HK$’000
TER

435,000

W-F—t+&+-A=+—AzATHEH
i

£
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
YRR BERAHE EATAHE
REE BB A B
(B—ER) (BZEHR) (B=EHR) st
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FAET FHET FAET
Recurring fair value RIS REZ &R M
measurement for: NEEFE:
Property at No. 2 IR B B2 2 %
Lincoln Road - - 430,000 430,000
Property at No. 1 MRMEBIRZDFE
Lincoln Road included ~ (B¥EREHEZ
in disposal group HEAR)
held for sale - - 400,000 400,000
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16. Investment Property (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements
B ER R MY 5

31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=-HA=+—H

16. REWHE )
ATEBR (H)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there were no
transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and
Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 (Period ended

31 December 2017: Nil).

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within

Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

REBE-_FT— \F+_A=T—HLFE"
F-EREF _ERIEALEQAFESE
EE FoERANTECAEAREL (BE

—E—HF+ZA=t+—HI-HRE &) -

HEHE:

Property at

RAFEERZE=ZBRADEZATE

Property at

No. 2 No.1
Lincoln Road Lincoln Road
URMEE LR EE
252 1552
ES LES
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Carrying amount at 1 April 2017 R-ZZE—tFHA-BZEEE - -
Additions NE 409,130 329,837
Net gain from a fair value R R HEADRA K
adjustment recognised in other WaERZ AP EFAEZ
income and gains in profit or loss W 58 20,870 70,163
430,000 400,000
Transfer to disposal group held EREFELE 2 HEAR
for sale = (400,000)
Carrying amount RZB—+F+-_A=+—H
at 31 December 2017 M—Z2—-N\F—-A—-—HZKEE
and 1 January 2018 430,000 -
Net gain from a fair value AR & A H A A K s 25 HE R
adjustment recognised in other Z RV EBEZWESFR
income and gains in profit or loss 5,000 =
Carrying amount at RZZB-NF+ZA=+—H
31 December 2018 Z PRmEfE 435,000 -
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16.

17.

Investment Property (continued) 16. REY X (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) DN ERER (&)
The fair value of the investment properties is determined using REMEZ ATFEDIZRAELRYEER
direct comparison method by reference to recent sale price HEERAERLEERS T ARERE
of comparable properties on a price per square foot basis. BETE  TXHEA A REWEETHEM
Below is a summary of the significant inputs to the valuation REXREARIE
of investment properties:
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E—N\E —T—+F
==l - — A=+—H
Price per Price per
square foot square foot
BYHRERK FFHTRER
HK$ % 7T HK$ 77T
Property at No. 2 Lincoln Road RLRAME B25% 2 W % 65,298 64,579
Property at No. 1 Lincoln Road SIRMBBIRZ W% - 58,038
A significant increase/decrease in the price per square foot REMEZBFHFRERKE LFA T
would result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value HEHERAFERE LA T
of the investment properties.
Intangible Assets 17. BLEE

The intangible asset is of indefinite useful life as it has no
expiry date and represents the Futures Exchanges Trading
Right in Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited.
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18. Investment in an Associate

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=-HA=+—H

18. REHELQTR 2 RE

31 December

31 December

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—tF

TZA=+—H [ge=n=

HK$'000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Share of net assets DIEEEFE 225,194 =
Goodwill on acquisition 1 i Br o 51,257 =
276,451 p

Provision for impairment B (51,257) -

225,194 4

The recoverable amount of the investment in an associate is
determined based on value-in-use calculation. The calculation
uses pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management of the associate. Cash flows beyond
the one-year period are projected for the next four-year period
using the estimated growth in revenue and gross profit margin.
Thereafter, the cash flows are extrapolated using the terminal
growth rate not exceeding the long-term average growth rate
for the business in which the associate operates.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculation is as
follows:

31 December 2018

Revenue growth rate 8.50%
Terminal growth rate 3.08%
Discount rate (pre tax) 9.26%

Management determined the budgeted revenue based on
their expectations of market developments with the growth
rates being estimated based on the industry forecasts and
management’s expectations. The terminal growth rate was
based on the expected inflation rate. The discount rate
reflected specific risks relating to the associate.

REE AR 2 RE AT EIR S B R
BEET-ZSHENARNRE AR
B KR DR ER B B SR -
1818 —F MRM IS & (£ AR A R EH
SR 5T 48 R 9L O 4 S8 R 1R AR -
Hie REREEMTBBY LD MG
EEBHRBTYHEE L KAERER
k;to

EREEAEMATIEHRRNT

—B2-NF+=ZA=t-—H

WA R = 8.50%
KABRE 3.08%
IR = (A 9.26%

EEEREYMSERNEHNETCERIR
AN MEBREFDERTEAANEEEN
TEHI B E o K AR R T E N BB IR
T REIN K 2 bR ELBE 2 N B A AR ER

@ o
ZoN
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18. Investment in an Associate (continued)
The market price of FWF significantly dropped from
HK$0.191/share as at 25 April 2018 to HK$0.052/share
as at 31 December 2018. As at 31 December 2018, the
estimated recoverable amounts of the investment in the
associate exceeded their carrying values and impairment of
HK$51,257,000 was made as at 31 December 2018.

18. REEE R T 2 ’RE (#)

AREREBMcMEEEE S —\FNQN
A-+HBZER0.191BTABTNEZR
—E-NFE+ZA=+—H2ZEMK0.052%
T RIBE—NE+-_A=+—0 REg
NEZEEZ At e & BEEER
BN —_ZE—N\F+_A=+—BELHR
{851,257,0005 7T, ©

The loans from an associate included in the Group’s
current liabilities totalling HK$172,000,000 are unsecured,
interest-bearing at 8% per annum and repayable on demand.

Particulars of the material associate are as follows:

Percentage of
Place of ownership
incorporation/ interest

Particulars of registration attributable

AEERPEEREREARNZIERA R
172,000,000/ 7T &% & R R |AK W - 42 F
FE8% it B RIZBFEK -

TEBRERRZFBET:

Name issued shares held and business to the Group  Principal activities
TEBED G
B 81T MR FRERER
=x BR# 2 15 BRRXBHE Botk EFEEK
FWEF*"# Ordinary shares Cayman lIslands 18.70%  Investment in and trading
AR AM R 5 gl HK$0.001 each HEHS (Note (a)) of securities, provision of
BRREE0.001E T 18.70% financing services and property
2 &R (M @) investment

¥ Listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

i Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member
firm of the Ernst & Young global network

The associate is accounted for using the equity method.
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18. Investment in an Associate (continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 25 April 2018, the Group’s equity interest in FWF was
18.78%, it was decreased to 18.70% due to the sale of
9,660,000 ordinary shares of FWF at approximately HK$0.0691
per share on 10 October 2018. Accordingly, a loss on partial
disposal of interests in an associate amounted to HK$472,000
and loss from release of fair value reserve upon partial disposal
of an associate amounted to HK$407,000 were credited to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of FWF adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements:

Notes to Financial Statements
B ER R MY 5

31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=-HA=+—H

18. REFE QT 2 ’RE ()

B3

@ RIBE-NFMNA-+HB KNEEKK
RiEREFZRIEE18.78% - R =_F— N\
F4+ A+ H AR EE9,660,0008 &K E
E#10.0691B L 2 KR R @ EBAR -
MARERAREASHZREDROE
18.70% AL - W E B D REE & A 7 2 &
25 B518472,0008 T R K E B OB E QA
B 2 A B 7 % [0 B 18407,0008 T 2
FFAZABERF -

(b)  TREMAREARRL D E AN B EMN
B REERRRGAMBRREDNESY
R IEERMBE

HK$’000
FET
Current assets REEE 469,663
Non-current assets SEMENEE 1,383,299
Current liabilities mBAE (567,576)
Net assets BEFE 1,285,386
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest REERBENR ZEREER:
in the associate:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership NEEEE LA 18.70%
Group’s share of net assets of the associate AEBO(WBHERNRCEESFE 240,367
Goodwill on acquisition (less cumulative W2 OB RFHRE)
impairment) -
Elimination of unrealised profits and losses HIFEBERARIRZ
on transaction with the associate FREIR G F K E B (15,173)
Carrying amount of the investment KREREE 225,194
Revenue WA 39,674
Loss for the year attributable to owners of FWF ARERCREEABEREEERE (79,839)
Other comprehensive loss for the year attributable R F @A R AEIEAFE
to owners of FWF HEih2mEEE (500,544)
Total comprehensive loss for the year attributable  RARERSEEF ABEREE
to owners of FWF 2HEEESE (580,383)
Dividend received Bk E -
Fair value of the Group’s investment rEBEREZAFE 112,594
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19. Equity Investments at Fair Value

Through Other Comprehensive Income/
Available-For-Sale Equity Investments

19. ZRHMEEWFR A FET
gZHQZFEﬁ/%YEHj%HH&&

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
TZA=1T—0 |
HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Equity investments at fair value ZBHEMEERE
through other comprehensive RATFEIERZ
income RAERE

Listed equity investments, FHRARKRE  RATE
at fair value

1,296,154 _

Available-for-sale equity investments ] {ft i R A 18 &

Listed equity investments, EHERARE AT E

at fair value

1,710,695

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income as the Group
considers these investments to be strategic in nature.

During the period ended 31 December 2017, there was a
further decline in the market value of a listed equity. The
directors consider that such a decline indicates that the listed
equity investment is impaired and an impairment loss of
HK$800,000 has been recognised in the statement of profit or
loss for the period.
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20. Equity Investments at Fair Value Through

21.

Profit or Loss

Notes to Financial Statements
B ER R MY 5

31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=-HA=+—H

20. BBBEH/B DI FEIIRZBAR

Listed equity investments in
Hong Kong, at fair value

FELMRAKRE BAFE

rE
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—"-N\F —FtF
TZA=1—H |pecisaals
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
21 560,368

The above equity investments at 31 December 2018 and
31 December 2017 were classified as fair value through profit
or loss as they were held for trading. The fair values of listed
equity investments are based on quoted market prices.

Loan Receivables from Money Lending
Business

FTHREARAEER - E-NEFE+_F=+—
BN -—E—+F+-A=1+—BoEAZ
BEIZAFEINER REABEEEH
e FTRAKE Z RAFETIIRIET SR
ER-K

. HEEBELE ZBURER

31 December 31 December

Loan receivables FEWE R
Provisions/impairment* BB, R E

2018 2017
—E-N\F —TLtF
IRl +— A=1—H
HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR
301,271 476,765
1,774) -
299,497 476,765

As at 31 December 2018, loan receivables represented loans
of HK$299,497,000 (31 December 2017: HK$476,765,000)
granted by the Group to a number of independent third
parties. The loans bore interest at rates ranging from 5% to
12% per annum (31 December 2017: ranging from 5% to
12% per annum) and were repayable within one year. The
grants of these loans were approved and monitored by the
Group’s management. The loan balances were not past due
for which there was no recent history of default.

The Group holds collateral or other credit enhancement
over its loan receivables balance of HK$179,485,000
(31 December 2017: Nil). The carrying amount of the loan
receivables approximates their fair values.

* The balances also include the provisions on off-balance sheet
credit exposures.

NRZE-—NF+_A=+—0 EU¥E
REAEERTZEBYUE A 2EXR
299,497,000 t (ZE—+t&F+ A
=+—H :476,765,000/& 7T ) ° B IR F 7
K5%E12% (ZF—tF+=-_A=+—8:
BEFE% B12%) st B RBR—FRE
B BRHZEEFHAEBEEEEHER
LR B AR i B - ST B S IE A RD
ﬁzo

A& BB H E W E A #2179,485,0007 7T

—E—+F+-A=t+—B:E)BEAK
Rk EMEERAER - BREZXZE
HAEEE N FERE -

* ZEBBTEREEABRINNERERR
Bt e
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21. Loan Receivables from Money Lending 21. REXRBELE 2 BRER (30
Business (continued)
Analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount is as follows: FREAEZEHOTET:

31 December 2018
—E-NF+=ZA=1+—H

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
B 21 P& ER2 P& ER3 Bt
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET TER TERT FEx
As at 1 January 2018 RZE—NF—H—H 476,765 = = 476,765
Transfer to lifetime BREEREERELZ
expected credit loss 2 HIEEEE B
not credit impaired (FEER2)
(Stage 2)
Transfer to lifetime BRZCEEREZ
expected credit loss FHEBEEER

credit impaired (Stage 3)  (P&E&3)
Other changes (including E &% (REHEE

new assets and M FTEREE)
derecognised assets) (175,387) (175,494)
As at 31 December 2018 WR-Z—\F+=-A
=+—H 300,422 301,271
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21. Loan Receivables from Money Lending 21. REXBELE 2 BRER ()
Business (continued)
Analysis of changes in the corresponding ECL allowance is as HEEMEEEERE BN T
follows:

31 December 2018
—2-N\f+-A=+-H

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

P B 1= P& B3 At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TERT THER TER

As at 1 January 2018 R-_F-\F—-A—H 477 - - 477
Transfer to lifetime BREREREEREZ
expected credit loss not 2 HIEHEEEIE

credit impaired (Stage 2)  (P&ER2) (1

Transfer to lifetime BEZEEEREZ
expected credit loss FHRBEEER

credit impaired (Stage 3) (F&ER3)

Other changes (including E %) (REHEE
new assets and R THEREE)
derecognised assets)

Change in risk parameters [Ef2 2 8% &)

As at 31 December 2018  WNZZ—\F

+-A=+—8
Arising from: BTARBEEL:
Loan receivables W E X
Loan commitments B RURIE -
849
ECL rate BHEEREX 100.00%
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22. Trade Receivables from Business of Trading 22. BERSPHETREEERE
and Distribution of Electronic and Accessory BEEZERWEZRRX
Products

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—B-N\F —EBE—+F
Rl + — A=1t—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FAET
Trade receivables arising from BEERDHEFRREEMER
the business of trading and EL 2 RWE5ERX
distribution of electronic and
accessory products 1,175
Impairment AR (1,175)
Included in the above provision for impairment of trade PRV ESERR -_E—LF+ A
receivables as at 31 December 2017 is a provision of St+—BIZREREREEERSHET
HK$1,175,000 for individually impaired trade receivables, MCEEMEBMELBANRERKE S
arising from the business of trading and distribution of BRI Z BEH1,175,0008 70 X FEWE 5 BR
electronic and accessory products, with a carrying amount R B ERIBREE /1,175,000 7T © {8 5l
before provision of HK$1,175,000. The individually impaired BMERBKWESREFEFEFRZIETF IR
trade receivables relate to customers that were in dispute MRER /KA EFPHR FERER
or were in default in interest and/or principal payments and Yo @ BB 47 & W R IE - Z F EIE 5 R UE
only a portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered. FEABEERNANFEE TUMBE T HRZE
Such trade receivables together with associated allowance are HECEBHBEE—F BEXEAREINT
written off during the year as they are past due for more than EE e

one year and are not subject to enforcement activity.
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22. Trade Receivables from Business of Trading 22. BEERSPHEFREEEMHE

and Distribution of Electronic and Accessory BEEZERWE SRR (@)
Products (continued)
Analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount is as follows: REREZEHOTNT:

31 December 2018
—E-NFE+-A=1+—H

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F BT P B2 fE B3 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TAET TET
As at 1 January 2018 R-_E-\¥—A—H - - 1,175 1,175
Written off during the year 784 /5 # 85 - - (1,175) (1,175)
As at 31 December 2018 RZZ—\F+=A
=+—H - - - -
Analysis of changes in the corresponding ECL allowance is as HEBRESEERREESONET:
follows:
31 December 2018
—“Z-N\F+ZA=+—H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F& B P B2 FE B3 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TAT TAET
As at 1 January 2018 R-—ZT—N\E—HF—H = = 1,175 1,175
Written off during the year 784 /& # 85 - - (1,175) (1,175)
As at 31 December 2018 R=Z—\F+=A
=+—H - N -
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23. Trade Receivables from Securities and Futures 23. X5 R EESEKEL 2 E

Dealing Business WE Z R
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—2-N\F —T—tF
a=p: =R =l ~ — A =+—FH
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Trade receivables arising from BEARNHEEERBELZ
the securities and futures dealing FEWE 5 BR K
business
— Clearing houses —REE T 2,833 11,803
— Cash clients -HERF 18,819 39,622
— Margin clients —-RBLEP 379,993 331,670
— Brokers — &4 202 8,124
401,847 391,219
Impairment BB (6,553) -
395,294 391,219
Trade receivables from cash clients, clearing houses and BELMAEEEEBEE KR EER
brokers arising from the securities and futures dealing business HEMIBRLEZEGESNRNEERRRE
are repayable on demand subsequent to the settlement date. REE - LW ESERZEEEES
The normal settlement terms of the said trade receivables TREAXGAHEMBE -REUREZR
are, in general, within 2 days after the trade date. The Group PRE AEERHRITNTEEBERE
allows a credit period mutually agreed with the contracting 55

parties for receivables from margin clients.

Except for receivables from margin clients, the Group does not BREKRRZESEPHIEIN NEB L ER
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these ZEEBFAEMERRSIEMEER
balances. The Group is allowed to dispose of the securities or E - AEEHERFFFERNAEEZ
futures deposited by the customers with the Group to settle BHYHE A E ()8 HARIE -

any overdue amount.
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23. Trade Receivables from Securities and Futures

Dealing Business (continued)

Trade receivables are unsecured, interest free and repayable
on the settlement date of the relevant trades, except for
the receivables from margin clients of HK$379,993,000
(31 December 2017: HK$331,670,000) which bears interest
at a range of 7% to 12.25% per annum (31 December 2017:
range of 9.25% to 12.25% per annum) and are secured
by investments held by margin clients of approximately
HK$705,157,000 (31 December 2017: HK$2,782,100,000)
as at 31 December 2018. The carrying amount of the trade
receivables approximates their fair values.

Included in the trade receivables as at 31 December 2018
are amounts due from Mr. Xu Ke, Mr. Yu Qingrui, Mr. Wu
Ming and Mr. Chen Xiaodong, being the directors of the
Company, of HK$39,403,000, HK$2,932,000, HK$327,000
and HK$300,000 respectively arising from securities dealing
transactions, which bears interest at commercial rate and are
secured by respective underlying investments.

Included in the trade receivables as at 31 December 2017
are amounts due from Mr. Yu Qingrui, Mr. Chen Xiaodong,
Ms. Lam Hay Yin, being the directors of the Company,
of HK$10,190,000, HK$3,208,000 and HK$8,920,000
respectively arising from securities dealing transactions,
which bears interest at commercial rate and are secured by
respective underlying investments.

The Company maintains accounts with the clearing houses
through which it conducts securities and futures trading
transactions and settlement on a net basis.

No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the
directors, the ageing analysis does not give additional value in
view of the business nature.

Notes to Financial Statements
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23. ERRUPEEERBELEZE

WE SR (&)
EWESERAERR -TFTERERE
BMESEERAEE HEURESEEFRZ
FXIE379,993,0008 L (T —tF+ =
A=4+—H8:331,670,0007% 7T ) B8 4 -
RZE-NFE+_A=+—H BHEX
HIZFFRENTF7%F12.25% (ZF—+
F+-_A=Z+—B:FMNENT9.25% =
12.25%) st B0 WA RBEBEFETHKRE
4)705,157,0008 t (ZE—+F+ A
=+—H:2,782,100,0005 7T ) {E & 18 - fiE
WE SRR ZEEEEEAFEBE-

RZE-—NEFE+_A=+—"HB EBKRES
RERBERZFFEERIMELE ZEBIA
RAEERWEE REHTE RBEE
T R e 3R 4 4 2 SRIE 5 51139,403,00078 7T
2,932,0007% 7T * 327,0007% 7T %300,000/%
TLREEMNERGFE - YHSE ZAERE
{EH AR -

R-ZE—+tE+-_F=+—H EKZEH
RRBEEAFLFEERSMEEZ EK
ARREEREFHEE RERELER
MBS 9 22 & 2 FIB 5 B110,190,0007% 7T
3,208,000 7T 128,920,000 Tt % & 3% A
KB WHE A 2 ABIREEER-

ARBANBEERRERP  NEETES
FIBEER S WHFHALESE -

VEBREREDT DEERRENER
HE RO T2 RERIMEE-
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31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=A=+—H

23. Trade Receivables from Securities and Futures 23. X5 R EESEKEL 2 E
WE SR (80

Dealing Business (continued)
Analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount is as follows:

Stage 1

=y

HK$'000

TERT

As at 1 January 2018 RZZ-N\F—H—H 391,219
Transfer to lifetime expected EEEREFERMEZ
credit loss not credit THRGEERE

impaired (Stage 2) (& ER2) (170,662)

Transfer to lifetime expected EH#HEZEEERE L
credit loss credit impaired 2 HIBHIEEERE

(Stage 3) (F&ER3) (224,104
Other changes (including ~ Eth &8 (BENEEKR

new assets and BRILEREE)

derecognised assets) 151,605
As at 31 December 2018 HR=ZT—N\F+=A

=+—H 148,058

Arising from: BTIISHES:

Clearing houses ERT 2,833

Cash clients REeERP 5,511

Margin clients RELEF 139,512

Brokers S 202

148,058

178 Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited # 3£ & E 12 i 5 R 2 7

B 1 0

oMM

31 December 2018

—E-N\F+
Stage 2
P 2
HK$'000
TR

170,662

(CXYR)]

166,239

9,805
156,434

166,239

=A=t+-8

Stage 3
P F23
HK$'000
TER

224,104

(136,554)

87,550

Total
#et
HK$’000
FHT
391,219

10,628

401,847

2,833
18,819
379,993
202

401,847




23. Trade Receivables from Securities and Futures

Dealing Business (continued)

Analysis of changes in the corresponding ECL allowance is as

follows:

As at 1 January 2018 RZZ-NF—H—H

Transfer to lifetime expected BEEREFEMEZ
credit loss not credit THRGEEER
impaired (Stage 2) (BER2)

Transfer to lifetime expected EH#EZBEEERE L
credit loss credit impaired 2 HEHEEERE

(Stage 3) (FEEr3)
Other changes (including ~ EtE®) (REHEEK
new assets and RIEEREE)

derecognised assets)
Change in risk parameters B2 82 &)

As at 31 December 2018 RZE—-—NF+=A

Stage 1
g
HK$'000
TET
335

(156)

(184)

=+—H
Arising from: RE:
Clearing houses* EE
Cash clients BegP
Margin clients RETEP
Brokers* S
ECL rate RHEEREX
Cash clients BegP
Margin clients RESEP
* Other than the margin client and cash client receivables,

no credit loss allowance has been provided for other
trade receivable as the related credit loss allowances were

immaterial.

Notes to Financial Statements
2B e g N

31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=-HA=+—H

23. ERRUPEEERBELEZE

WE SR (@)
MEBREEEERE S EHOMTAT

31 December 2018
—®-\%t+t=A=t+-H
Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
P& Ex2 P& Ex3 Total
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TER TR
= = 335

(15,825) (16,088)
21,230 22,306

5,589 6,553

e BRRESEPMASE P BIFIAN B
EHEORKE S RIGHREEBRRE
REARBBEEBEEREBEBETEAN-
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31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=A=+—H

24. Trade Receivables from Placing and Asset
Management Business

24 HEREEEERBELEZE
W E Z MR K

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—2-N\F —T—tF
TZA=1+—H |pecisaaals
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET

Trade receivables arising from RENEBEEEERELLZ
the placing and asset management  JEUE 5 B8R 5K
business
— Corporate clients —ERFP
— Investment funds —REES
Impairment AR

Trade receivables from corporate clients and investment
funds which are past due but not credit-impaired represent
receivables arising from placing and asset management
business which have not yet been settled by clients after the
Group’s normal credit period. Except for the impairment loss
provided, the outstanding trade receivables from corporate
clients and investment funds as at 31 December 2018 were
considered not to be credit impaired as the credit rating and
reputation of the trade counterparty are sound.

180 Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited #3E & E 12 i 5 R A 7
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24. Trade Receivables from Placing and Asset

25.

Management Business (continued)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2018

Notes to Financial Statements

BB ot

31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=-HA=+—H

24@§&§EME¥ﬁEEZE

l&%% /E\'EZI'A
*ﬁf‘fﬁzli%@%ﬁﬁﬁéﬁfﬁﬁﬁ?riﬂ’w@ﬂkﬁ%

ERHEERREMFIIDT

R=®-NF+=A=+-8

Less than

Current

1 month

8 OR-fEA

Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) SRE&E (TAT) 392
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) BHEEEE (FAT) 2
ECL rate HBHEEEEX 51%

Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables

6,553
649
9.90%

Prepayments and other receivables*
Deposits paid

TE A BRR B E A R I *
BEffES

Impairment

RS

Less: Non-current portion

W IER B AR

Current portion

AR 1

& Included in the prepayments and other receivables are interest
receivables arising from the money lending business and loan
to a third party arising from trading of equity investments
with gross amount of HK$16,545,000 (31 December 2017:
HK$21,289,000) and HK$9,065,000 (31 December 2017: Nil)
respectively. The corresponding ECL amount are HK$116,000
(31 December 2017: Nil) and HK$9,065,000 (31 December

2017: Nil) respectively.

Past due
bt
1to3 Over

months 3 months Total
-Z=f4A BB=fA @t
- - 6,945
- - 651
- - 9.37%

25. EARE REREMEVRFIE

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+tF

+ZA=1+—H ==

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

29,435 29,227

13,977 10,748

43,412 39,975

9,181) —

34,231 39,975

(12,799) (9,915)

30,060
ENFREREMERAREBERSHNE
HWEEZEWFE &%“%-?ﬁ@ﬁﬁ | &
16,545,000 L (= —tEF += A

=+ —H:21,289,0007 7T ) 9,065,000
BL(ZE— t¢+ A= + &)z
BAKZEEEZE = H AR -HEBHE
BEEESES B A116,00087T ( —T—+
FH+-A=+—H:4#)%9,065,000/% T
E—+F+-_fA=+—H:#&)-
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31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=A=+—H

25. Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables 25. JE{T:IE - 2 & & Hfth FE KB

(continued) (&)

None of the prepayments and deposits is either past due or MEENRBERZEEBHARXDHE -
impaired.

The remaining balance of other receivables was neither past Ho A e WK TR 2 82 T A R 30 SR J8 B SORUE
due nor impaired and relates to a number of independent BRSSP INEROCH I BIE AR

parties for whom there was no recent history of default.

The carrying amounts of deposits and other receivables RekHEMEWRBz REHERE QA FE
approximate their fair values. GEESK
Analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount is as follows: FREAEZEHOIWT:

31 December 2018
—E-N\F+=ZA=t+—H

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
(P& BR1) (P& ER2) (P& £%3) st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET TR FTHT TR
As at 1 January 2018 R-ZZE-N\F—A—H 21,289 - - 21,289
Transfer to lifetime BEZEREEREZ
expected credit loss FHEBEEER
not credit impaired (B Er2)
(Stage 2) (10,340) 10,340
Transfer to lifetime BREZEEEREZ
expected credit loss FHRBEEER
credit impaired (Stage 3)  (P&ER3) (10,484) 10,484
Other changes (including E &%) (BEHEER
new assets and BRIFEREE)
derecognised assets) (1,407)
As at 31 December 2018 RZT—N\F+=H
== 9,077
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25.

26.

Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables
(continued)

Analysis of changes in the corresponding ECL allowance is as
follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
B ER R MY 5

31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=-HA=+—H

25. ANRE EEREMERKE
()
HEEREEHEREZEBATET -

31 December 2018
—E-N\F+=ZHA=1+—H

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
(B ER1) (F& £x2) (P& Ex3) Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THERT FET TR

As at 1 January 2018 RZE—-NF—HF—H

Transfer to lifetime expected BEEREFERMEZ
credit loss not credit THRBEEEBR
impaired (Stage 2) (BE82)

Transfer to lifetime expected EH#EZEEEREL
credit loss credit impaired 2 HIEHEEEE

(Stage 3) (FEER3)
Other changes (including ~ EtE®) (REHEEK
new assets and RIEEREE)

derecognised assets)
Change in risk parameters B2 2 E &)

As at 31 December 2018 RZE—-—NF+=A
=t—8
ECL rate BHEEEIEX

Cash and Bank Balances

As at 31 December 2018, cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
HK$16,766,000 (31 December 2017: HK$5,187,000).
The RMB are not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. The
carrying amounts of the cash and bank balances approximate
their fair values.

1,025

(1,039) 1,039

(1,376) (1,310)
9,414 10,491

9,077 9,181
100.00% 35.85%

26 RERBITHEF
RZZE—N\F+_A=Z+—H KAEE
ARB(TAR®]DFAEZHE e RIRITE
57 516,766,0008 L ( —ZE—tF+ = A
=+—H%:5,187,000/& 7T) - A REEAT]
BRI AEEMERE RN BiEPE R
ZHNEERIEOIARGERE SENRMNES
BRET AEEREFESBEREETI
EEK BT BARBEBAHEMERK.

FRI|IOTZRESBES A RITERA KR
FERNEBRIAE - RITEFFRALEEL
HEAOTEREAFE ZRT - RE RIRTT
BEZREEEEQFERS-
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31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=A=+—H

27.

28.

Bank Balances Held on Behalf of Clients

As at 31 December 2018, the Group maintained client trust
monies via Central Wealth Securities Investment Limited
(“CWSI”) and Central Wealth Futures Limited (“CWF”) which
were not held for settlement of HK$90,966,000 (31 December
2017: HK$90,624,000) in segregated bank accounts in
accordance with the provision of Hong Kong Securities and
Futures (Client Money) Rules.

The Group has classified the client trust monies as cash
held on behalf of clients in current assets section of the
consolidated statement of financial position and recognised
the corresponding trade payables to the respective clients in
current liabilities section of the statement of financial position.
The Group is allowed to retain some or all of the interest
derived from the clients’ monies. The Group is not allowed
to use the clients’ monies to settle its own obligations. The
carrying amounts of the bank balances held on behalf of
clients approximate their fair values.

Trade Payables

27. RREFBAZRITER

R-ZE—N\F+-_A=+—"H A&EEHE
BREZHFREEGRAR ([FEES]) R
RERERRAR ([RFEHERESE
FBHEEBE (FPHIE) R BHEXRB IR
TRPFEEVIRELEE 2 RP 5 RE
90,966,000 T ( —E—+F+_-_A=+—
H 90,624,000/ 7T) °

AEBEBEFERREADBEREE MR
ARARBDEERMD IRREFPHAZR
2 YRENEEF ZHEREMNE KRN
RVBIRRKRARE BB DR NE
BRERESDAZMEETL KB ZH
B-AKBETSERAEPRALNERY
ZEB - RREFPHAZRTEFREAE
HERNFEREE-

28. BNEZ KRN

31 December

31 December

Trade payables arising from
the business of trading and
distribution of electronic and
accessory products

BEEROHETFREEERER
EEZRNE SRR

Trade payables arising from

the securities and futures dealing FERTE 5 R
business

— Clearing houses N

— Cash clients -REeEEP

— Margin clients -REZEP

EFMMEEEEBEL Y

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —T—+F
TZA=1—0 |yt
HK$’000 HK$’000

TR FET

502

55,235

152,341

208,078
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28. Trade Payables (continued)

29.

Trade payables arising from securities dealing business bear
interest at 0.01% per annum and repayable on the settlement
day of the relevant trades. The carrying amount of trade
payables approximates their fair values.

Trade payables arising from futures dealing business are
non-interest bearing and repayable on the settlement day of
the relevant trades. The carrying amount of trade payables
approximates their fair values.

Included in the trade payables as at 31 December 2018 are
amounts due to Ms. Lam Hay Yin and Mr. Chen Xiaodong,
being the directors of the Company, of HK$29,952 and
HK$2,330 respectively arising from securities dealing
transactions, which are unsecured, bears interest at 0.01% per
annum and repayable on the settlement day of the relevant
trades.

Included in the trade payables as at 31 December 2017
are amounts due to Ms. Lam Hay Yin, Mr. Mai Qijian and
Mr. Chen Xiaodong, being the directors of the Company, of
HK$39, HK$90,033 and HK$942 respectively arising from
securities dealing transactions, which are unsecured, bears
interest at 0.01% per annum and repayable on the settlement
day of the relevant trades.

No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the
directors, the ageing analysis does not give additional value in
view of the business nature.

Other Payables and Accruals
The Group’s payables and accruals are non-interest-bearing
and are normally settled within three months. The carrying
amount of financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals approximates their fair values.

28.

29.

Notes to Financial Statements
B ER R MY 5

31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=-HA=+—H

EBAE SR (%)
BAEBEGEL Y ENESERIRES
0.01% 5 ERENEEE S EEAEE-fE
NESEREREEEATERS

Al

o

HEEBEXBELZRNEZRRATAHE
RENEHESEEREE BNESR
RZEEEREEQAFERSE-

RZE-—NEFE+_A=+—"HB ENES
EREEEBEAFBEBERIMEEZEMNAR
RAEEWNE 2 L KRB R T A 2 38
5 529,952 7T 2,330 0 AEEE
BFERNEOI%ETE  WERBERSH&EE
HER -

R_E—+FE+_A=Z+—H ENESH
RREEEEFEERIMEE ZENAR
NAlBEMB I+ BHEHEILERRE
WA E 2B RI39%E T 90,0338 7T &
942870 - BEEM  IZFENEK.0O1%ETE
WERBHEXZEEBEN-

VTEBEEREDIT HEFRBRERER
WE - RS T T SRHBIMEE

Hit BN FKBAREEA

A E Y R R B B A ATE R
— BN =1 A PEN - KA B B R B
HEAREZoMEMZBEERLAT
-
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31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=A=+—H

30. Interest-Bearing Bank and Other Borrowings  30. st 2SRITRHEMEE

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
“B-N\Ft=-A=1-A “E-tETZA=1-R
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
BEBRAE (%) L TELT EGHESS gl FEL
Current B
Bank overdrafts - secured  $R{TE % —HEIE 49t05.25  on demand 45,095 501053  ondemand 59,494
4.9%5.25 REXR 508523 REX
Bank loans — secured RITER-HHA 2.2103.7 2019 (KZBJIM 321036 2018 160,000
22837 ZB-NF 32836 —T—)\F
Current portion of long term & EIR{TE A& H 3.2t03.6 2019 7,798 IEVNACKE 2018 7,763
bank loans - secured -BEH 32%36 Z—B-h# 27835 —E-N\E
142,298 167,763
Other loans - unsecured ~ EtEFH—EEKH 8.0  ondemand 172,000 80  ondemand 117,000
8.0 RER 8.0 REX
Other loans - secured HepEF-FHA 7.3 t0 13.1 2019 300,178 [VASCRAN 2018 408,930
732131 ZEB-h%F 732110 ZE-N\F
472,178 525,930
659,571 753,187
Non-current FENH
Bank loans - secured BOEH-BHA 3.2t03.6 2020 - 2037 156,362 271035 2019-2037 164,056

322836 Z—B-EfF 27835 —E-NE
ECECtE E-T=4F

815,933 917,243
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31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=-HA=+—H

30. Interest-Bearing Bank and Other Borrowings  30. st RSBRITREMEE (4

(continued)

Notes: Bt o
(@) The Group’s overdraft facilities amounting to HK$175,000,000 (@ AEBZBEZEEAE175,000,000%8 7T (=

(31 December 2017: HK$175,000,000), of which Z—tF+ - A=+—H:175000,000/&

HK$45,095,000 (31 December 2017: HK$59,494,000) had 7)) R E B REE A HE 45,095,000

been utilised as at the end of the reporting period. BAr(ZE—+tF+=ZA=+—8:

59,494,000/ 7T )
(b)  The Group’s bank overdraft and certain of the Group’s bank b) ERFABEASEBSRTEIRAEEET
borrowings included above are secured by: RITREE Ty AT 5 = IR R 4R -

i. mortgages over the Group’s investment property situated i. REBLURBEEBZREMELZ
in Hong Kong, which had an aggregate carrying value BE PBREPRZEEDEER
at the end of the reporting period of HK$435,000,000 435,000,000 T (ZE—+F+=
(31 December 2017: HK$430,000,000). H=+—H:430,000,000/&7T) °

ii. listed securities pledged to the Group by certain i. ETREFEEFPEBTAEEZ L
margin clients with an aggregate amount of MRS MR AL /197,595,000
approximately HK$197,595,000 (31 December 2017: BT(ZE—tF+A=+—8:
HK$218,088,000). 218,088,000 7T) °

(c) Certain of the Group’s other loans are secured by listed (c) MOAEBEMERARNEEFEN LT
securities held by the Group with market values as below: BHREER HEOAT:

At 31 December 2018 R=ZZB-NF+=ZA=+—H

Stock code Accounting classification HK$’000

BB K55 2508 FTHET

1141 Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income 1,276,397

FEREMEEARSRATEIEZBEANRE

1,276,397
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+tF+=-A=+—8H
Stock code Accounting classification HK$'000
PR A7 557 oM THET
1141 Available-for-sale equity investments 547,778
At HERERKRE
1141 Equity investments at fair value through profit or loss 1,377,966

BRESRAFEIRZBRAKRE

1,925,744
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31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=-A=+—H

30.

31.

32.

Interest-Bearing Bank and Other Borrowings

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(d)  Other loans — unsecured are repayable on demand to Globally
Finance Limited, a subsidiary of FWF, an associate of the
Group.

(e)  Current portion of bank loans and other borrowings are
maturing within one year. The carrying amounts of these loans
approximate to their fair values due to the short term maturities
floating interest rates.

() ~ Mortgaged bank loans bear floating rates with reference to
HIBOR and Prime Rate. The carrying amounts of these loans
approximate their fair values.

Shareholder Loan

The shareholder loan is unsecured, non-interest-bearing and
repayable on demand. The loan was fully settled in January
2018.

Notes Payable

30.

31.

32.

STERTREMEBE (5
MsE: (8)

(d)  EAEGR—E AR A N 2R Eza%ﬂiikfi
ReB(AEEBZHBMERR) ZMBR
HRMBEERAT

@ IRITERREMEENHLD N —
H-mARZEES Bm;éﬁ)ﬂ$?r%
HRE - MEREESEATFERS

2l

FRA
HE%E

() RBBTERZREFBRITAEXFERK
EBENEFE IR -ZEFERZREES
HAFERE-

BRE ™
BREEHAMER 2B RREREE B
BERER -2 —/\F— A ERHEE

Notes payable NS

BAEE
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E-)N\#F —E—+F
t=A=+-0 [EEEEREE
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FAET
86,574 86,574

The Group issued notes (the “2016 Notes”) with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$92,100,000, before related expenses
of HK$5,526,000, to an independent individual. The 2016
Notes bear interest at a rate of 4% per annum and will mature
in January 2024. The interest will be repayable by the Group
annually on the anniversary of the issue date of the respective
notes and up to the maturity date.
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33. Deferred Tax

Notes to Financial Statements
2B e g N

31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=-HA=+—H

33. IEEFE

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the BEBEEEREERF MRz EEHM

year/period are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

T
EEHRESE

31 December 2018
—E-\ft=ZA=+-H

Depreciation Impairment

allowance of other

in excess of financial and

related contract

depreciation assets
ERBEEB Hth & @K
BRFE BHEERE

At 31 December 2017

Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9

HK$’000 HK$’000
FRET FTRET
RZE—+F+=A
=+—H 134
RINE B TS 2R
FORFE

At 1 January 2018 (restated)

Deferred tax credited to
the statement of profit or loss
during the year (note 10)

RZE—-NF—HA—H
(&)

FRFABRERZELR A
(FF5E10)

Gross deferred tax liabilities
at 31 December 2018

—E2-NF+ZA=+—H
ZIELCFIBE ERE

Total
#et
HK$’000
TER

134
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BT R I ot

31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=A=+—H

33. Deferred Tax (continued) 33. IR IE (@)
Deferred tax assets EEBRBEEE

31 December 2018
- N\F+=A=+-8

Impairment of

other assets

Share-based financial and
compensation contract Total
2 BREERE st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TR TET
At 31 December 2017 RZB—+F+_H
=+—H
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 RNBARI B RE LR
R TE
At 1 January 2018 (restated) RZZE-N\F—H—H
(fe5E51)
Deferred tax credited to FRFABRRZ
the statement of profit or loss EIEHIR (FHEE10)
during the year (note 10)
Gross deferred tax assets at “E-N\F+-A=+—H
31 December 2018 ZERMBEERE
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and HEFEHNME ETEEHBEERE
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial BERMBRAREBEHE - U TREAEEER
position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax JERTRE R Z B E DT

balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

HK$'000

FET

Deferred tax assets EEHIBEEE 2,819
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIBEE (85)
2,734
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31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=-HA=+—H

33. IEZERIE (®)
EEREEE

33. Deferred Tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities

31 December 2017
—E—tFT-A=t-H

Depreciation Impairment
allowance of other
in excess of financial
related and contract
depreciation assets Total
HERERER Hit e /&
BRAME BHEERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
At 1 January 2017 R-ZTE—+F—H—H - - -
Acquisition of a subsidiary W B 8 2 ) 147 - 147
Deferred tax credited to NG AR R 2 BIERIA
the statement of profit or loss (HzE10)
during the period (note 10) (13) = (13)
Gross deferred tax liabilities R-Z—+F+_A
recognised in the consolidated =t—HZEEM%
statement of financial position MR R RIE
at 31 December 2017 MIEBBERER 134 - 134

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$1,337,734,000 (31 December 2017: HK$1,272,591,000)
that are available for offsetting against future taxable profits
of the companies in which the losses arose. As these losses
have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for
some time and it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses can
be utilised, deferred tax assets have been recognised to the
extent of the deferred tax liabilities arising from taxable
temporary differences from unrealised investment loss of
HK$909,459,000 (31 December 2017: unrealised investments
gains of HK$702,909,000) recognised by the Group as at
31 December 2018. For presentation purpose, such deferred
tax assets and liabilities have been offset in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

KREBEREBELE 2 BB B
1,337,734,0008 L (ZE—t&+ = A
=+—H":1,272,591,0007% 7t ) » A] {£ 3K
HIREIE 2 A A 2 KRR ER TR F - B RHT
BRAAFKE BREHNELAHEEBEBAER
BN K A] BE A TERR B0 A m) (K 8 B IR S
B WAEEBR -_E—-N\E+_A=+—
HERMKREAEZRREBBZERRER
EREE ZIEERIE & E909,459,00078 7T
—E—+tFF+ A=+ —H: RERKE
g #5702,909,00078 70 ) HERIEER THEEE ©
MEVME ERELHBEBEERAGED
REFE IR AR RIS -
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34. Share Capital 34. BRZ&
Shares i gl
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —T—+F
TZA=1+—H [yen=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Authorised: VAR
80,000,000,000 (31 December 80,000,000,0000%
2017: 80,000,000,000) ordinary —E—tF+A=+—8:
shares of HK$0.01 each 80,000,000,000/% ) & i E &
0.018 L2 LMk 800,000 800,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRER:
14,716,650,461 (31 December 14,716,650,461/%
2017: 12,716,650,461) ordinary —E—tF+A=1+—8:
shares of HK$0.01 each 12,716,650,4611% ) =% EE
0.018 7T 2 LR 147,167 127,167

A summary of movements of the Company’s issued shares
capital and share premium account is as follows:

BEEARB D BITRARBRDEERZ &
YT

Issued Share
Number of share premium
shares in issue capital account Total
ERITRGYE BRTRA B4R ER Fob
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
[i0g=3 THT FTHET THT
At 1 April 2017 RZZ—+50A
— 8,965,128,980 89,651 4,070,821 4,160,472
Issue of new shares, EGtil)
net of expenses (MR ER) (i 3,751,521,481 37,516 420,668 458,184
At 31 December 2017 and R=ZE—+ %+ A
1 January 2018 =t-Ak
—T-NE—A
7B 12,716,650,461 127,167 4,491,489 4,618,656
Issue of new shares BITHRG (ii) 2,000,000,000 20,000 180,000 200,000
At 31 December 2018 ~ RZZE—N\F+=A
=—f 14,716,650,461 147,167 4,671,489 4,818,656
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34. Share Capital (continued)
Shares (continued)

Notes:

(M)

(ii)

During the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 December 2017, the
Group issued shares in respect to the following transactions:

a. On 8 May 2017, the Company placed a total
of 1,300,040,000 shares at HK$0.155 per share
representing 14.50% of its total issued capital at that
time. The net proceeds from the placing of approximately
HK$198,484,000 was used as 50% for financial
investments and trading, 30% for money lending
business and 20% for working capital.

b. On 27 July 2017, the Company and FWF entered into
a share swap agreement, under which the Company
subscribed for 470,000,000 FWF shares at HK$0.11
per share for a total consideration of HK$51,700,000
and FWF subscribed for 470,000,000 shares of the
Company at HK$0.11 per share for a total consideration
of HK$51,700,000. 470,000,000 shares of the Company
were allotted and issued to FWF on 4 August 2017.

c. On 8 September 2017, the Group completed the
acquisition of 66% equity interest of Instant Achieve
for a total consideration of HK$16,000,000, settled by
the allotment and issue of 148,148,148 shares of the
Company at approximately HK$0.108 per share.

d. On 8 September 2017, the Group repaid the amount due
to Globally Finance Limited of HK$90,000,000, settled
by the allotment and issue of 833,333,333 shares of the
Company at HK$0.108 per share.

e. On 13 September 2017, the Group acquired the
equity interest of Goodview Assets Limited for a
consideration of HK$150,000,000, settled by cash
amounting to HK$48,000,000 and by the allotment
and issue of 1,000,000,000 shares of the Company at
the issue price of HK$0.102 for a total consideration of
HK$102,000,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group placed a
total of 2,000,000,000 shares at HK$0.1 per share representing
15.73% of its total issued capital at that time. The proceeds
from the placing of approximately HK$200,000,000 was used
for the repayment of loan.
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34. A (@)
B3 (%)

BiEE

(M

(i)

—E—+FMOA-BE-ZE—+F+=A
=+ B#E AEER TN B ETR
17

a. N—_ZE—+tFRHRANB"
AR FR0.155%8 T &
1,300,040,000R% % {7 * 18 & 7
2 B EPE BEITIRAN14.50% © it
Fr 18 3R IBF 549198,484,000/%8 T &
F50% BIEMBHIRE R E & - 30%
ARREEBN20%BIELEES -

mmmﬁ
N SH

b. RZZE—+tFtA=+tH XA
RIER KR SRR
E&t'ﬁﬁaﬂﬁﬁﬁo,n;‘%ﬁ%
§8470,000,0000% K 2k t 2 € @b A%
% 8K {8551,700,0008 7T M
AR RS BIZFRI1BTRE
470,000,000 XA R R 1n - B R E
£51,700,0005% 7T ° 470,000,0000%
ARBBRHER_ZE—tFN\AMD
Afis MBEITTARRERSH-

c. RZZE—tFNANB AEERE
U BE B ZE 2 66% M E - R E A
16,000,000 7T * Jh & B 1% & IR 49
0.1087% JT Aic 2 & 86 97148,148,148
AR BRI AR BT -

d. RZE—ttFNANB AEHE
BERMNERMBERA A HE
90,000,000/ L' B B F K
0.1087% 7T fic % % 17833,333,333
NG S R ER D

e. RIZZE—t+tFNA+=0 F5£E
U5 B Goodview Assets Limited A% #E
{8 A150,000,0007 7T * Jh AR &
48,000,000/ 7T A & #2877 {80.102
78 U B2 B & #5171,000,000,0000% 2
A a1 (48418102,000,0007 7T)
B

REBEEZZFT—N\F+ZA=+—HLHF
B AEBERESRBRHOIBTEEAS R
2,000,000,000% f& 0+ {5 & BB 1T
B A 4B H15.73% ° @E%Fﬂ%#&lﬁm
200,000,000/8 L E AR EEE K-

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 3 193



Notes to Financial Statements
IR M5

31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=-A=+—H

34. Share Capital (continued)

35.

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share
options issued under the scheme are included in note 37 to
the financial statements.

Reserves

The contributed surplus of the Group arose as a result of the
Group reorganisation upon listing of the Company’s shares
in 1994, and represented the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of the former holding company of the
Group prior to the Group reorganisation and the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor.

In addition, pursuant to special and ordinary resolutions
passed at the special general meeting held on 22 September
2000, the issued and fully paid share capital of the Company
was reduced by HK$448,992,000 through a reduction in the
nominal value of the share capital of the Company. The credit
so arising was transferred to the contributed surplus.

On 28 July 2005, a capital reorganisation scheme was
approved by the shareholders under a special resolution,
pursuant to which, every 10 shares of HK$0.01 each in
the issued share capital of the Company were consolidated
into one consolidated share of HK$0.10 and every issued
consolidated share was reduced in nominal amount by
cancelling HK$0.09 of the capital paid up for each issued
consolidated share so as to form (after the share consolidation)
one reorganised share of HK$0.01. The credit so arising was
transferred to the contributed surplus.
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35.

36.

Reserves (continued)

On 26 March 2013, a capital reorganisation scheme was
approved by the shareholders under a special resolution,
pursuant to which, every 5 shares of HK$0.01 each in the
issued share capital of the Company were consolidated
into one consolidated share of HK$0.05 and every issued
consolidated share was reduced in nominal amount by
cancelling HK$0.04 of the capital paid up for each issued
consolidated share so as to form (after the share consolidation)
one reorganised share of HK$0.01. The credit so arising was
transferred to the contributed surplus.

On 27 February 2015, a capital reorganisation was approved
by the shareholders under a special resolution, pursuant
to which, every 10 shares of HK$0.01 each in the issued
share capital of the Company were consolidated into one
consolidated share of HK$0.10 and every issued consolidated
share was reduced in nominal amount by cancelling HK$0.09
of the capital paid up for each issued consolidated share so
as to form (after the share consolidation) one reorganised
share of HK$0.01. The credit so arising was transferred to the
contributed surplus.

The equity component of convertible bonds arose from the
convertible bonds with the maturity date of 15 November
2010 issued by the Company in 2007, which had been fully
redeemed by the Company upon maturity.

Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash

Flows

(@ Major non-cash transactions

(i) On 25 April 2018, the Group disposed of its entire

equity interest of Goodview Assets Limited for a
total consideration of HK$342,483,000, settled by
the acquisition of 1,793,103,448 consideration
shares of FWF at HK$0.191 per share. This
transaction has no cash flow impact during the
year ended 31 December 2018.

(i) On 9 May 2017, stock dividends were received
from the investments in CMBC Capital with total
market value of HK$57.3 million. This item has no
cash flow impact during the period from 1 April
2017 to 31 December 2017.

35.

36.
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R-ZT—=F=F =+ B BAEH:
BRI — B Bk s SRR R L A - R
KRAFBBEITRA R F5SFREE.01HE
T2 E A —REE.E L ZA 6
B MERCBRTAMRND2HESS
A C BT MHRD0.048 T 2 B K
NFUABR B EE (RIRHAEGE)—
B EEC.OEB T2 & BBAR D -EEE 2
EREREEHNES-

R-E—FRAF_A-_++tB BEAEHAR
B—BEERRBRERELIE B AR
AEETRATFI0REREE.OIE T
2B A A —REE0.108 T 24 Bk
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RERERERHE
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i) R-ZZE—NFWA-_+HAB"
K E B H % Goodview Assets
Limited 2 S8R #E B RE A
342,483,000 70 JhiE BIE =
f%0.1917%8 7T Uk B8 R 2Rt R 5 B
1,793,103,448 R BRADE LT ©
HEZ—NF+A=+—
BIEFE REXSUEHES
MEELYE-

i) RZEFE—tF A A
BRRBREAKLERBEM
57,300,000 Lo N =& — £ F
MA—HZZZ—+tF+=A
=+—HERE - IBE B W EEIR
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36. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows (continued)
Major non-cash transactions (continued)

(@)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

The Company and FWF entered into a share swap
agreement, under which the Company subscribed
for 470,000,000 FWF shares at HK$0.11 per
share for a total consideration of HK$51,700,000
and FWF subscribed for 470,000,000 shares of
the Company at HK$0.11 per share for a total
consideration of HK$51,700,000. 470,000,000
shares of the Company were allotted and issued
to FWF on 4 August 2017. These transactions
have been completed on 7 August 2017 and have
no net cash flow impact during the period from
1 April 2017 to 31 December 2017.

On 8 September 2017, the Group completed
the acquisition of 66% equity interest of Instant
Achieve Limited (“Instant Achieve”) for a total
consideration of HK$16,000,000, settled by the
allotment and issue of 148,148,148 shares of
the Company. This transaction has no cash flow
impact during the period from 1 April 2017 to
31 December 2017.

On 8 September 2017, the Group repaid the
amount due to Globally Finance Limited of
HK$90,000,000, settled by the allotment and
issue of 833,333,333 shares of the Company. This
transaction has no cash flow impact during the
period from 1 April 2017 to 31 December 2017.

On 13 September 2017, the Group acquired
the equity interest of Goodview Assets Limited
for a consideration of HK$150,000,000, settled
by cash amounting to HK$48,000,000 and by
the allotment and issue of 1,000,000,000 shares
of the Company. The allotment and issue of
1,000,000,000 shares of the Company has no cash
flow impact during the period from 1 April 2017
to 31 December 2017.
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36. MEBRERERME @)
BEAKBELRS (&)

(@)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)
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36. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows (continued)

(b)

Notes to Financial Statements
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36. MEBEERERMET (&)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing by BETHFELAGZHIEK
activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s TRAVAEBEREETHAELEAE
liabilities from financing activities, including both cash 2288 BREReNIIERSEH -/
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing éxﬁ@)ﬁﬁ%iﬁiﬁﬁfﬁimiﬁﬁﬁ
activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or “BReREBENAEELRERERN
future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s EXDHAREERHELEZEHEERE
consolidated cash flow statement as cash flows from Z2B8fE-
financing activities.
For the year ended 31 December 2018 S —N\FTZA=1+—HIEF
E
Total liabilities
Shareholder Other Bank Notes ~ from financing
loan borrowings borrowings payables activities
BEEHL
REER LR RITIRE EREE BEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAEL THEL THT TER THL
Asat!fanvary 2018 R=Z—-\E-B—H 122,000 525,930 331,819 86574 1066323
Changes from financing ~ BER2MEE
cash flows:
Proceeds from new MEEEHEMER
unsecured other loans F55A = 55,000 = = 55,000
Proceeds from new secured #EREFLMER
other loans FigFE = 125,248 - - 125,248
Proceeds from new secured #1748 Tﬁﬁfﬁﬁgﬁ
bank loans FrigsE - - 75,000 - 75,000
Repayment of secured bank BEBERFTER
loans - - (109,933) - (109,933)
Repayment of unsecured ~ EEEEREMER
other loans = (234,000 = = (234,000
Total changes from RESCNELDER
financing cash flows = (53,752) (34,933) = (88,685)
Other changes Hip
Disposal of a subsidiary & —BHEAR = = 1,774 = 1,774
Repayment of a BERRRER
shareholder loan (122,000) = = = (122,000
Total other changes Et2Hen (122,000) - 1,774 - (120,226)
As at 31 December 2018 R=ZE—-N\E+=H
=t-H - 472,178 298,660 86,574 857,412
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36. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash

Flows (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities (continued)

36. IMEBRERERMET (@)

(b) BMETBRELEREZHIR (A

Total liabilities
Shareholder Other Bank Notes ~ from financing
loan borrowings borrowings payables activities
MEEDL
BRRER Efa & RITIEE ENER RfERRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEL TET TAER THT TER
For the period from “E-tfMA-RE
1 April 2017 to ZE-tF
31 December 2017 TZA=t+-RHB
As at 1 April 2017 RZZ-t5MA—-H - - = 86,574 86,574
Changes from financing ~ BEREMEE
cash flows:
Proceeds from new MEEEREMEN
unsecured other loans A 122,000 525,930 162,000 - 809,930
Repayment of secured bank BB ERHTEH
loans - - (96,056) - (96,056)
Total changes from REREREFHAE
financing cash flows 122,000 525,930 65,944 - 713,874
Other changes Hth -
Addition from acquisition ~ EUKFEN B2 RMAE
of subsidiaries = = 404,988 = 404,988
Transfer to disposal group  BREERHELE 2 HE
held for sale ERl - - (139,113) - (139,113)
Total other changes Hin 2 gam = = 265,875 = 265,875
As at31 December 2017  RZE—tF+=A
=+—H 122,000 525,930 331,819 86,574 1,066,323
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37. Share Option Schemes

The Company operates share option schemes for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants of the share option schemes include the
Company’s directors, including independent non-executive
directors, other employees of the Group or any invested
entity, suppliers of goods or services to the Group or any
invested entity, customers of the Group or any invested entity,
shareholders of the Group or any invested entity, holders of
securities of the Group or any invested entity and persons
or entities that provide research, development or other
technological support to the Group or any invested entity. A
share option scheme became effective on 27 August 2003
and expired on 26 August 2013 (the “2003 Scheme”). A new
share option scheme was adopted and became effective on
27 September 2013 (the “2013 Scheme”). Unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, the 2013 Scheme will remain in force
for 10 years from the effective date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options granted and to be granted under the
2003 Scheme and the 2013 Scheme (collectively, the “Share
Option Schemes”) is an amount equivalent to 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the dates of approval
of the Share Option Schemes unless approval for refreshing
the 10% limit from the Company’s shareholders has been
obtained. The maximum number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the share options granted to each
eligible participant in the Share Option Schemes (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue. Any further grant of share options in excess
of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

Under the Share Option Schemes, share options granted to
a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or to any of their associates are subject to approval
in advance by the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any grant of share options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, which would result
in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue
and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price
of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of
HK$5,000,000 is subject to shareholders’ approval in advance
in a general meeting.
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37. Share Option Schemes (continued) 37. R ET & (@)

The offer of a grant of share options under the Share Option
Schemes may be accepted within 28 days from the date of
offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in
total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determined by the directors, save that such period
shall not be more than 10 years from the dates of adoption
of the Share Option Schemes subject to the provisions for
early termination set out in the Share Option Schemes. Unless
otherwise determined by the directors at their sole discretion,
there is no requirement of a minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of share options granted under the Share
Option Schemes is determined by the directors, but shall
not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the
share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price
of the Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share of the Company on the date of offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, 1,073,464,000
share options were granted under the 2013 Scheme to eligible
participants and remained outstanding as at 31 December
2018 to subscribe for a total of approximately 1,073,464,000
shares. The outstanding options granted under the 2013
Scheme shall continue to be valid and are subject to the
provisions of the 2003 Scheme and Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, 896,000,000 share
options were granted under the 2013 Scheme to eligible
participants and remained outstanding as at 31 December
2018 and 31 December 2017 to subscribe for a total of
approximately 896,000,000 shares. The outstanding options
granted under the 2013 Scheme shall continue to be valid and
are subject to the provisions of the 2003 Scheme and Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules.
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37. Share Option Schemes (continued) 37.
The following share options were outstanding during the year
ended 31 December 2018 and period from 1 April 2017 to
31 December 2017:
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BRETE (5

NTEBRERBE-_T—N\E+=A
S+—BIEER-—"T—+EME—HBE
—E— &+ - A=+ — AN KT

2013 Scheme

T -=F5E
Weighted
average
exercise price Number
per share of options
Fh Nt
FHITEE BREsE
HK$ ‘000
BT T
At 1 April 2017 RZT—+tFHA—H 0.181 896,000
Granted during the period A& - -
At 31 December 2017 and RZE—tF+A=+—HEK
1 January 2018 —E-NF—-HA—H 0.181 896,000
Granted during the year FREL 0.117 1,073,464
At 31 December 2018 R=ZF—-\E+=-A=+—H 0.146 1,969,464

The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other
similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

The exercise period of the share options that were outstanding
as at 31 December 2018 are from 20 February 2017 to
19 February 2019 and 18 April 2018 to 10 April 2020.

B R 2 77 {8 (5 9 L AR - BT AL AR K
ARD R 2 H AR B

RZE-N\FE+_A=+—8B HR1THE
BREZTEHA-_T—tF-_A=+H
E-F-NF-A+NABRZ-F-\FHE
A+N\BE-_Z-_ZTFMWA+He
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37. BREFTE @)

37. Share Option Schemes (continued)

The fair values of the equity-settled share options granted
during the year ended 31 December 2018 and 31 March
2017 were estimated by Ascent Partners Valuation Service
Limited, an independent firm of professionally qualified
valuer, using the binomial option pricing model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. The fair value of the equity-settled share
options granted during the year ended 31 December 2018
was HK$44,918,000 and during year ended 31 March 2017
was HK$60,600,000. The Group recognised a share option
expense of HK$44,918,000 and HK$60,600,000 during the
year ended 31 December 2018 and during the year ended
31 March 2017. The following table lists the inputs to the
model used:

HE_Z—N\FF+-_A=+—HEKZZ
—tFZAZ+HULEFERIRELE
CHEBREI A ATERBYEESERMGAE
T AFEZAEGR AR ZEX R
EERR - ZEF D ERE 2GR R AEH%
G- B#HE - N\FE+_A=+—
BIEFFEREIREEE CBRE AFE
#44,918,0008 7L MEBE_T—+F = H
=—+—HLEFE A8 AE60,600,0007% T ° A&
SEREE-_T-N\F+A=+—H81
FEREBEE-Z—tF=-RA=+—AHLF
E 5 B R 7R B IR A 244,918,000 7T &
60,600,000/8 7T T 3% 51| i ¥y A 5% 15 7 F7 R
2B

18 April 20 February

2018 2017

—s-—ns [ SN

Share options granted R LB A+NRH —AZ=+H

Dividend yield (%) A& B a2 (%) N/A T3 A N/A i A

Expected volatility (%) FEFT IR 18 (%) 78.18 119.42

Historical volatility (%) JEE 5 K% 18 (%) 78.18 119.42

Risk-free interest rate (%) B A R (%) 1.400 1.047

Expected life of options (year) TAETIERREFHA (F) 2 2
Share price at grant date REREBBRE (B 8K)

(HK$ per share) 0.181

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may
also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
1,969,464,000 (31 December 2017: 896,000,000) share
options outstanding under the Share Option Schemes, which
represented approximately 13% (31 December 2017: 7%) of
the Company’s shares in issue as at that date. The exercise
in full of the share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 1,969,464,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional
share capital of HK$19,695,000 and share premium of
HK$268,076,000 (before issue expenses).

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of
grant until the commencement of the exercise period.
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38. Business Combination

On 7 April 2017, the Group acquired a 34% equity interest
in Instant Achieve for a cash consideration of HK$7,000,000
and which was accounted for as an associate of the Group
prior to its acquisition of a further 66% equity interest therein
on 8 September 2017 (the “Acquisition Date”). The purchase
consideration of the 66% equity interest in Instant Achieve
was in the form of share issue of 148,148,148 ordinary
shares of the Company approximately at HK$0.108 per share.
The acquisition was made as part of the Group’s strategy
to expand on the business opportunities created by the
Shanghai-HK Stock Connect, the Shenzhen-HK Stock Connect
and the HK-China Bond Connect. As a result, the Group’s
equity interest in Instant Achieve increased to 100% and
Instant Achieve and its wholly owned subsidiaries, CWSI and
CWEF (collectively referred to as the “Instant Achieve Group”),
became the wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group after the
acquisition.

Loss on step acquisition amounting to HK$381,000, being the
difference between the fair value of the Group’s 34% equity
interests in Instant Achieve immediately at the Acquisition
Date of HK$13,077,000 and the carrying value of the Group’s
interest in an associate immediately before the Acquisition
Date of HK$13,458,000 was recognised in the Group’s
consolidated statement of profit or loss in accordance with
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations.
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38. ¥ &6

R-ZZE—+tFNALH AEENUEREEK
87,000,000/ 7T Ug B BN 22 2 34% A% #E - I
R=ZZE—+tFhANRA ([WEBH])E—
U BE BN 2 66% I% HE A #8 B A BRI A A
EE-EENT - REe6% BRIEZEE
REAZLGESRB70.108F T BEITARQ
A)148,148,148 LM 2 R EITHARE
M- WEEEDAIEEAEEERESE -
ABBRPAESFBTRZEAEMET
At RIE EIER - AEER B E 2 i
EIMNE100% A RENERE2ENB A G
EREFRFPERE (FABAEINEEE]D
MAERAEEzZ2EWBAR -

P& ER U B =18 2 E518381,0007% 7T (B Uk
BHHEHAREBNAEZ34% BRIEZ A
Y {E13,077,000/% Ju 1 22 £ U B B HA A A
Bz — M E QR ZERMEE13,458,000
B EZB)BREDTEUBRELERLFES
REBEHRAEBLGEBRRPHER-
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38. Business Combination (continued)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Instant

38. ¥4 6t (@)

flizgREa s EEBEREERSZ

Achieve Group as at the Acquisition Date were as follows: NEEMNT :
HK$'000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment M - B KRR 1,616
Intangible assets B EE 500
Deposits re 2,023
Trade receivables from securities and BARMMEEEEREE
futures dealing business FEWE 5 R 240,431
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TRfTFIE - ke A M EK I 2,250
Bank balances held on behalf of clients* REFBEZRITHE T 268,826
Cash and bank balances Be MBRTERF 10,836
Deferred tax liabilities ELEIBEE (147)
Trade payables BANESER (293,446)
Other payables and accruals Hib BN FIANEEE B (3,198)
Due to Globally Finance Limited** JE -t REFHS A PR & &) 2 FRIA** (90,000)
Due to Top Billion Finance Limited FER BB BB IR A R Z ;RIA (17,000)
Bank borrowings RITIEE (48,000)
Bank overdrafts RITEX (35,753)
Tax payables B IR (4,497)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BERAFEFEZABNEEFERTE 34,447
Gain on bargain purchase ZEBENRR (5,370)
Total consideration HRE 29,077
Satisfied by: AT HAZAT
Issuance of consideration shares BITREMRD (148,148,148
(148,148,148 @HK$0.108) FA%0.108% L) 16,000
Acquisition date fair value of 34% of equity BESE34% RIE WEB AR TE
interest in Instant Achieve Group 13,077
29,077
Analysis of net cash outflow in respect of EBaMZBReREFEIN:
business combination:
Consideration paid by cash NBEXNRE (7,000)
Less: cash and bank balances acquired B BB e RIRITETT 10,836
Add: bank overdrafts n:RITE X (35,753)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalent RekReZEEB 2 RLFHE (31,917)

¢ Balances represent client trust monies in relation to the
securities and futures dealing business which was not
considered as cash and cash equivalent of the Group upon the
acquisition.

**  The amount due to Globally Finance Limited was subsequently

settled by the allotment and issue of shares of the Company.
Details of the transactions are included in the note 34(i)(d).
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38.

39.

Business Combination (continued)

The gain on bargain purchase is attributable to the Group’s
bargaining power and ability in negotiating the agreed terms
of the transaction with the vendor.

Since the acquisition, Instant Achieve Group contributed
HK$38,965,000 to the Group’s consolidated revenue and a
profit of HK$18,639,000 to the Group’s consolidated profit
for the period ended 31 December 2017.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of
the period, Instant Achieve Group could contribute
HK$64,276,000 to the Group’s consolidated revenue and a
profit of HK$26,698,000 to the Group’s consolidated profit
for the period ended 31 December 2017.

Operating Lease Arrangements

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (notes 11 and 16
to the consolidated financial statements) under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms of 1 year. The
terms of the leases generally also require the tenants to pay
security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with
its tenants falling due as follows:

38.

39.
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EF 32 E )

BEEENE I RAAEENEE T HE
R 52 BEIERE BB
BB RBEE-T—+tF+=A

=+—H JLHHF? BEEERAEBZE
g 25 B 138,965,000 7T W IR E B4 E
st K B Bt F1118,639,0008 7T ©

MEHRBMET RBEE_FE—tF
T+ A=+ —BHLEE NEEERASE
B4R A WS B R64,276,0008 7T - W A1 AN &
Bl4r 4 a8 Bl 726,698,000 7T ©

KREHEZH

EBEHBA

AEEBEEERE ??#Hﬁﬂﬁ&éf%%
(REAYVBREAM T R6) HmEMYD
AH—F -HEKRT—ME ZJiTH}f'S'Zﬁ
RFEES WREERKIBITTRRESTE

RZF-NFE+-_A=1+—B AKER
BEARRGEEEMEER T 5 R < . Kl
PZARSEREFIBLRENT :

31 December

31 December

2018 2017

—EB-N\F —F—F

=Nl -l - — A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

TER FET

Within one year —F R 1,350 5,400
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E-FEZERF (BEEEMF) =
After five years hF& =
5,400
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39. Operating Lease Arrangements (continued)
As lessee
The Group leases certain of its properties under operating
lease arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for
terms ranging from one to three years (31 December 2017:
one to three years).

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling
due as follows:

39. KEHELZH (@)
ERABA
AEERBECLAERHREHETWE-
SEMERNAR S (=8 +4&
t-A=t—R:—z2=%)-

R-ZE—N\F+_A=+—H8B AE£EER
BEAROEEEeHER THNHMIIE 2 &
REERBEMTEREDT

31 December

31 December

—FR

Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive

hfFR

After five years

F_FEFLF (BREEMF)

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —T—+F
p=-ER =l - — A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THET

16,398 15,898

6,328 21,593

22,726 37,491

40. Commitments
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in
note 39 above, the Group did not have any significant capital
commitments at the end of the reporting period.
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41. BEAELRE
% AN B 7 SR EL BB 15 PR S I 7 R 5
o AEBRAEEAUTRETH

41. Related Party Transactions
(@ In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in ()
these financial statements, the Group had the following

transactions with certain related parties during the year:

BALTZRS:

For the period

For the from
year ended 1 April 2017 to
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
ZE—tF
B=E MmA—HZ=
—E2-N\F ZE—tF
==l —— A=+—8
LEEE HAA]
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Liks3 THET TET
Interest income from loans KEMEBEFERZ
to directors FE U A (i) 2,452
Interest income on margin REEFETESR
financing from directors EBERGZRECHE
arising from securities Z M BHA
dealing transactions (ii) 691
Commission income received — WERE Fi#1TEFH
from directors arising from BERXZHZ2ME WA
securities dealing transactions (ii) 6

Interest expenses on loans
from an associate

Interest income of an associate
received from a director

XE—HBERRERZ

MBFX
B—REFKEZ—HE
S NCI AL FSE PN

(iii)

(iv)
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41. Related Part JI Transactions (continued)
(a) (continued)

Note:

(i) Interest income was charged on loans to directors at a
rate ranged from 5% to 12% per annum on the principal
amount.

(i) Commission income and interest income on margin
financing received from directors which arose from
securities dealing transactions were charged based on
mutually agreed terms with reference to the prices and
conditions similar to those offered to other customers of
the Group.

(iii)  Interest expenses on loans from an associate were
charged at a rate of 8% per annum on the principal
amount.

(iv)  Interest income of an associate received from Ocean
Wave Motion Pictures (International) Limited, 50%
owned by Mr. Chen Xiaodong, an executive director of
the Company, was charged at a rate of 12% per annum
on the outstanding amount of advancement.

The related party transactions above also constituted
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

The Group considers the directors of the Company to be
the key management personnel, whose compensation
has been disclosed in note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties:

Details of the balances with the Company’s directors
as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 are
included in note 18, 23, 28 and 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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42. Financial Instruments by Category
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42. 7 EE€®MIA

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial EReRMIANBESHRZERENT:
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:

31 December 2018
Financial assets

Equity investments at FRAMEERER
fair value through other (AR Z A
comprehensive income &

Equity investments BERBRRATE
at fair value through SRR RAIRE

profit or loss

Loan receivables from E&E%%EEZEEW

money lending business &K

Trade receivables from BERBEEREER
securities and futures EXZEEKE S
dealing business AR

Trade receivables HERBEEERER
from placing and asset EXZEKES
management business N

Financial assets included ~ FENZUE 24 R E M
in prepayments, deposits ~ JEFHIBB & 2
and other receivables CREE

Cash and bank balances B & MBITE£RF

Bank balances held on REEFPHEBRT
behalf of clients ®17

—E-N\Ft+=A=+-8H
SHAE

Equity

investments

at fair value

through other

Held for Loans and  comprehensive
trading receivables income Total

EBEMEE

KRN TVE
BEEE BEXREUNRE JRzZBRARE Bt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TET TER

1,296,154 1,296,154

21

299,497 299,497

395,294 395,294

6,294 6,294

33,100 33,100

100,910 100,910

90,966 - 90,966
926,061 1,296,154 2,222,236
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42. Financial Instruments by Category (continued) 42. 7 EERI A ()

Financial

liabilities

Financial

liabilities at

amortised

cost

R 55 R A B AR

ZEMmEE

HK$’000

THERT

Trade payables e E FERRK 99,486
Financial liabilities included H At & 5RIA K JEET B B

in other payables and accruals BEZEMEBE 34,624

Notes payable AL 86,574

Other borrowings Hibg& 472,178

Bank borrowings RITEE 298,660

Bank overdrafts RITBEX 45,095

1,036,617
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42. Financial Instruments by Category (continued) 42. 7 EERIAE ()
31 December 2017 —E—tF+-HA=+—H

Financial assets TREE
Available-
for-sale
Held for Loans and financial
trading receivables assets Total
=04 AtHE
FHIEEE FEW IR TREE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FAT FExT
Available-for-sale A HEREAEE
equity investments - - 1,710,695 1,710,695
Equity investments FBRBRERTETIR
at fair value through ZBRARRE
profit or loss 560,368 = - 560,368
Loan receivables MEEBEEL
from money FEWE %
lending business = 476,765 = 476,765
Trade receivables ELHELHEEEEH
from securities and EEZEWE SHER
futures dealing business - 391,219 - 391,219
Financial assets included FTATEfFRIE e K&
in prepayments, HAthfEU B 2 & B
deposits and BE
other receivables = 27,798 = 27,798
Cash and bank balances IR MIBTTETF - 123,387 - 123,387
Bank balances heldon  REFHFE ZRITHER
behalf of clients = 90,624 = 90,624
560,368 1,109,793 1,710,695 3,380,856
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42,

43.

212

Financial Instruments by Category (continued) 42. 7 EERIA ()
Financial liabilities THEAR
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
R SHAK A
JIfRz &M BE
HK$'000
FAET
Trade payables T E SRR 208,078
Financial liabilities included in other payables SPARMERNFIEREGTERZ
and accruals cRbEaE 22,378
Notes payable ANE 86,574
Shareholder loan R E R 122,000
Other borrowings HEE 525,930
Bank borrowings RITEE 331,819
Bank overdrafts RITBEX 59,494
1,356,273
Offsetting of Financial Instruments 43. HEEMIT A

The Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off
receivable and payable with Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited (“HKSCC”) and Hong Kong Futures
Exchange Clearing Corporation Limited (“HKCC”); and the
Group intends to settle on a net basis as trade receivables
from or trade payables to HKSCC and HKCC.

In presenting the amounts due from/to the clearing houses,
the Group has offset the gross amount of the trade receivables
from and the gross amount of the trade payables to the
clearing houses. The amounts offset and the net balances are
shown as follows:

—E-NF+A=+—H
FEWEEFT 2 B 5 RN

31 December 2018

Amount of trade receivables
from the clearing houses

Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited FiZ&EZR B R A &

Gross amount

HK$'000
TER

246,576

AEBEREA QXA NITRNBHERR
ENEEPREERRAB ([EBEE])
LRBEEHNEEEMARAR (HEEER
A ZRE: MAREFIRFRSEERK
IENEBEERMNERLERRZEIR

=
DA °

REF|IEW TENEEMRER A&E
EBEKEER 2 E SRR GBI EEN
HEMZESRRBBE -CERESENLF
BEIRMT

Net amount
R
HK$’000
THET

Amount offset
EEHEHE
HK$’000
THERT

B

(243,743)
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43. HEHEESM I E (@)

43. Offsetting of Financial Instruments (continued)

Gross amount
i
HK$'000
TERT

31 December 2018

Amount of trade payables to
the clearing houses

—E-NF+-B=+—H
RNEZEERMZEFERER
(249,931)

Gross amount
e
HK$’000
TET

31 December 2017

Amount of trade receivables
from the clearing houses

S
IR E T2 B B
500,404

Gross amount
wE
HK$'000
TERT

31 December 2017

Amount of trade payables to
the clearing houses

“FtF+ZA=t—H
R B2 8B 5 ER
(488,601)

Amount offset Net amount

EEHEE R
HK$’000
TER

HK$’'000
TER

243,743

Amount offset Net amount
BEESHE =il
HK$'000 HK$’000
FTHER TER

(488,601)

Amount offset Net amount
BHEHEESHE B
HK$'000 HK$’000
FTHER FTHER

488,601
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44. Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments 44. €@ T A AT EER

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and bank balances, loan receivables from money lending
business, trade receivables from securities and futures
dealing business, trade receivables from placing and asset
management business, trade payables, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
and shareholder loan approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group's finance department is responsible for determining
the policies and procedures for the fair value measurement
of financial instruments. The finance manager reports
directly to the financial controller and the audit committee.
At each reporting date, the finance department analyses
the movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation.

The valuation is reviewed and approved by the financial
controller. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the audit committee twice a year for interim and annual
financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The fair value of the notes payable has been calculated
by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities, which approximate to their
carrying amounts.

The fair values of listed equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income and equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss are based on quoted market
prices.
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44. Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments 44. @R T A AFEER (@)

(continued)

Fair value hierarchy DN ERER

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRITAEBERTEANAFEAERE
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: I

Assets measured at fair value: R FEFENEE -

As at 31 December 2018 R=-2-N&+=-A=+—-A8

Fair value measurement using

ERUTHEfEZATETE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets input inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
RERT S EXTHE EBEAFTEE
HE BAHE BARE
(F—ER) (BE=E#&K) (B=EHR) At
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FTHERT TERT THERT
Equity investments FREM R E RS
at fair value through BATEINERZ
other comprehensive BRERE
income 1,296,154 1,296,154
Equity investments FRBHEEATE
at fair value through SIER 2 AR E
profit or loss 21 21

1,296,175 1,296,175
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44. Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments
(continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
As at 31 December 2017

Quoted prices

in active

ETEY

(Level 1)

RER TS

HE

(E—ER)

HK$'000

TERT
Available-for-sale At EREKRE

equity investments 1,710,695
Equity investments BRBHREATE
at fair value through SR RAIRE

profit or loss 560,368

2,271,063

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 (31 December
2017: Nil).

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at
fair value as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017.
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44. TR T ERAFEEHK @)

DR EER (&)
R-FB—tH+-_A=1t—8

Fair value measurement using

ERUTEE fiffz A FEE

Significant Significant

observable unobservable

input inputs

(Level 2) (Level 3)

EATEE EATTHE

WAHE BARE
(F=E&R) (F=BHR) Bt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRER TET TER

1,710,695

560,368

2,271,063

FRVELE-BREF _EREHAF
BEEER(—T—tHF+-_A=+—8:
&) -

REBER T N\F+-_A=+t—HBEZ=
T—tHF+ A=t -BABEIMARAIF
EffEzemAaG-



45. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise equity
investments and cash and bank balances. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade receivables from securities and futures
dealing business, trade receivables from placing and asset
management business, loan receivables from money lending
business, trade payables, notes payable, other borrowings,
bank borrowings and shareholder loan. Details of the major
financial instruments and the Group’s accounting policies
in relation to them are disclosed in note 2.4 to the financial
statements.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk and equity price risk. The board of directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from dealings in securities which are
settled in currencies other than the Company’s functional
currency and holding of bank balances in foreign currency.
As at 31 December 2018, cash and bank balances of
RMB16,076,000 (31 December 2017: RMB4,381,000) and
US$4,346,000 (31 December 2017: US$270,000) were held
by the Group. As the HK$ is pegged to the US$, the Group
considers the risk of movements in exchange rates between
the HK$ and the US$ to be insignificant.
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5. BEREEEEREER

FEBCZFESMTIABERETKEEUR
ReMBTEF LFERTATRERE
REAEEZzZ2EERES ASEHEEH
ARz EMEERAE WEFEME
BEEXBELZRKREZIRAR BRERE
EERXBELECREESRR HEX
BEEZREER BRNEZER BHE
B EMERE RTBEERERER -T2
TRTARAEEHZER T A Z AR
ST HRFER P B BRI T2 455 -

AEBZERTAMELEZEZAR RN
¥Rk MEER EERR RBESE
pREAERRER EE@CRIMAE
tERER 2 ERERR  WHALLT -

S & By

AEFASZRGEERKR - SRERAKRKE
AR RBINEEEB AN BB LEE 7B 5
RGUBAINERBF ZRITEF - R
—NE+ZA=1+—B rA&£EFEEES
NERTTH1F AREE16,076,000T (—F—+
F+-—A=+—8: AR%4,381,0007C) &
4,346,000k L ( —E—tF+-_A=+—
B :270,000%7T) - ARE T EE T ENE
AREBREETAETZEREHEBE
1 o
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45. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 45. MR EE B ERBUEK (@)
Policies (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued) ShEE B (M)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of TRIAEMBEMBEETITE Nk
the reporting period to reasonably possible changes in the EMRARBEXR GBI REHEHAR
RMB exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, AIGREA (BR) (&M EEARA A #ER
of the Company’s (loss)/profit before tax and the Company’s TEIHRE -
equity.
(Decrease)/ Increase/
increase in (decrease) Increase/
exchange in (loss)/profit (decrease)
rate before tax in equity*

BRBLAT (B8)
Ex(TK) / R ’zmEgm,/

t# (B) (RD) *
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% FET FET

31 December 2018 —E-NF+-A=+—H

If the Hong Kong dollar weakens — filli& T X A REE &
against the RMB

If the Hong Kong dollar WETHAREE
strengthens against the RMB

31 December 2017 —E—+F+-A=+—H

If the Hong Kong dollar weakens — fii#& i AR#KE &

against the RMB (5) 259 =
If the Hong Kong dollar WETHARKIE

strengthens against the RMB 5 (259) -
¥ Excluding accumulated losses & TEIEREE
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45. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)
Interest rate risk
The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s borrowings
with a floating interest rate.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant and before any impact on tax, of the
Company’s (loss)/profit before tax (through the impact on
floating rate borrowings) and the Company’s equity.

31 December 2018
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45. BIERAMEE R EREBE (&)

) = [ By
ARBRTIGHNEEFHMAT 2 ARER
HARNAIRZBHERGF R ZIEEER-

TRF\ETA M B T2 R
EARBEZERN MNEXAEAEEHHA
DABBA (BR) ad CREET G
E2RE)RARRRE LV ECHRE -

31 December 2017

“E-\Ft-A=1-H “F-t¥ft-A=t-H

(Increase)/ (Decrease)/
Increase/  decrease in (Increase)/ Increase/ increase in - (Decrease)/
(VTR RSO SV (decrease) in-+ profit before — increase in
basis points tax basis points tax equity
BHAER 2%/ BEHET Ea
ExsEn/  (&m / gm/s R/ (R /
(RD) "y O: 2 B #
HK$/000 HK$'000* HK$'000 HK$'000*
THET FH FEL T
Hong Kong dollar BT (4,076) 100 (1,916) =
Hong Kong dollar BT 4,076 (100) 1,916 -

* Exclude accumulated losses e TBRERFEE

The Company’s policy to manage its cash flow interest rate
risk is to minimise the Company’s interest-bearing borrowings
which bear interest at floating rates.

AARERERSHENEBBR 2 RAE
EZEWDS AR ARIHHEL S 2L
g
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45. BB EMREEEHERBE (&)

45. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Company’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored
by the risk management department on an ongoing basis
and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. The
Company has no significant concentration risk in view of the
fact that the Company’s trade receivables from securities and
futures dealing business and trade receivables from placing
and asset management business relates to a large number of
diversified customers.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables from securities and
futures dealing business and trade receivables from placing
and asset management business are disclosed in note 23 and
24 to the financial statements.

The credit risk of the Company’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and bank balances and trade and other
receivables, arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.
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45.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 December
2018

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification as at 31 December 2018. The
amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial
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45. B EREE B EREX (&)

EERE (&)
R-BE-NF+ZA=+—H&EER
RFEARE

FRAFR-E-NE+-A=+—BX
EREENEET 2 EREERAE Y&
BEERR K EBREAMER (BRIE
BREMIKARAN G2 AR - B
REGABBIAR-FMEI 2 BALR
AE2REAERBARRANRELE

assets and the exposure to credit risk for the financial EEN
guarantee contracts.
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 A FH
BEER PHRAEERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F-E& FRE SRR Bk @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThR TER TER TER THR
Cash and margin client ReRRESEPRKFE
receivables
— LTV at 100% or above -EFHEELE
R100% A £ - - 5,589 - 5,589
~ LTV between 90% and 100%  —E X EEL X
1790% £100% - 729 - - 729
~ LTV between 80% to 90% -BRHEELE
180% £90% - 17 - - 17
~ LTV less than 80% —ERHEELEDNE0% 118 - - - 118
118 846 5,589 - 0,553
Loan receivables, corporate ERER EREEEP
client receivables, TR BUIRERSR
investment funds receivables H it YR
and other receivables
— Not yet past due —HABH 1,029 = 861 2 1,892
— Less than 30 days past due —BHH30R - - - 649 649
-30 days to 90 days past due ~ —#EEi30H £90H - - - - -
— More than 90 days past due ~ —#1 32390 - - 9,065 - 9,065
1,029 - 9,926 651 11,606
1,147 846 15,515 651 18,159
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45. BERABREEEERBE (&)

45. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial
assets (e.g., trade receivables from securities and futures
dealing business, trade receivables from placing and asset
management business and loan receivables from money
lending business) and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of the
Group’s available cash and its listed equity investments.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

31 December 2018

On demand

or within

1 year

RER

R—FR

HK$'000

TERT

Trade payables e E 5 RN 99,486
Financial liabilities FH AN E A FROR 2

included in other EEtERZ

payables and accruals ERAR 34,624

Notes payable RS 3,684

Other borrowings Hifg & 475,720

Bank borrowings RITEE 147,386

Bank overdrafts RITEX 45,095

805,995
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RBESRRE

AEENALEERDESCHE T AER
BEeNRzZER HLATAZESHTA
keMEE(PINMBHFRMEEEXEKE
EZRBESER BEREEERER
EXCREESIRARMERBELZE
WER)ZHHMBERFEAREEMBZR

by ~i—§
@/ﬁg"

AEEZBERERERBERAKE A
AREERELTRARE REESHE
[ESE IR LI

AEERBEATNARNBANRONTERE
BERREMRZ BB RAT :

—E2-N\F+ZA=+-—H

1to5 Over 5
years years Total

—ZHE RENE st
HK$’000 HK$/000 HK$’000
FHxT FTHRT FTHT
= = 99,486

= = 34,624
106,937 - 110,621
= = 475,720
51,191 145,684 344,261
= = 45,095

158,128 145,684 1,109,807
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45. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 45. B RABERE B FEREX (@)
Policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
31 December 2017

RBESERE (&)
—E—+F+ZHA=+—H

On demand
or within 1to5 Over 5
1 year years years Total
mERY
R—%R —E0hfF RENE st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET TET TET THET
Trade payables ERNEHER 208,078 - - 208,078
Financial liabilities S A EL At B R IE B
included in other EETERZ
payables and accruals & @BAE 22,378 — = 22,378
Notes payable R RE 3,684 18,420 92,201 114,305
Shareholder loan BRER 122,000 - - 122,000
Other borrowings HifgE 544,623 = = 544,623
Bank borrowings RITIEE 174,067 51,904 157,673 383,644
Bank overdrafts |ITEX 59,494 - - 59,494
1,134,324 70,324 249,874 1,454,522
Equity price risk IR A fE 4% L B

BAERREREERERE S ZEEHRE

TRABFLAFETHRZEAR - R _-F
—NF+ZA=+—R FrEEEAXEH
BREBBRERATEINKRZRAKRE (K
F20) BB EM 2 E KRR A FEDRK
ZBRARE (M3E19) Z @RI R AR E mE
EZBEAEERRR - NEBZ EMRER
BRBHFRX P LT W RS BRIAM
HHE[E-

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the value of
individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity price risk
arising from individual equity investments classified as equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss (note 20) and
equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income (note 19) as at 31 December 2018. The Group's listed
investments are listed on the Hong Kong stock exchanges and
are valued at quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period.
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45. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 45. MR EE B ERBUEK (@)
Policies (continued)

Equity price risk (continued) RSB E b (&)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5% TREAFMREBEBEMRZEEE RAR
change in the fair values of the equity investments, with all B2 RNTES% EE MG Kt Z e RHT
other variables held constant and before any impact on tax, BUMRBREZERTZEREZGURE 5t
based on their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting KoMz HEBHMEPERFZRAT
period. For the purpose of this analysis, for the equity EBIRZBRAREZ X EHRA/E R FE
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income BB ERPIEZRBREZTARY
the impact is deemed to be on the fair value reserve and no EEBRIAE-

account is given for factors such as impairment which might
impact on the statement of profit or loss.

Carrying Change
amount in the
of equity Group's (loss)/ Change in the
investments  profit before tax ~ Group's equity*

AEBERBLAT
(B8) / r£EE
RAERERAEE gl -3 ) EDBH*
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT TR THT
31 December 2018 —“2-\¥+=A=+-H
Investments listed in: RTIZRBEZRE:
Hong Kong - Equity investments &/ —#BE M2 E K
at fair value through BRFEIRRAKRE
other comprehensive income 1,296,154
Hong Kong - Equity investments ~ &#& —#BEHE A TE
at fair value through SRR 2 RARE
profit or loss
4 Excluding accumulated losses * TRIEREE
31 December 2017 —2—+F+-A=+—H
Investments listed in: RTZEZRE:
Hong Kong - Available-for-sale ~ &&— A& 1,710,695 - 85,535
Hong Kong — Held-for-trading ER—REER 560,368 28,018 -
4 Excluding accumulated losses & TR EE
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45. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the year ended 31 December 2018 and period from
1 April 2017 to 31 December 2017.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity
ratio calculated as total debt divided by total equity. The
debt-to-equity ratios as at the end of the reporting periods
were as follows:
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45. B EKREEBZEREE (&)

EXRERE

AEEEAER T ERRRAREARE
ENELERERRENERNLR UX
REFXBI RERERZAEE-

AEEEEEEARE  WARELEMRNR
MBI RAEEEZ BB SEmEL -
AREEAEFHERN TRRAOKRE AR
RIEEERNNBITHE NERFIHBAEE
ARB-RBE_T-N\F+_A=1—
BEFEN_Z—tFHA—HEZT
—tEF+ A=+ -RHHE AEEER
EAMBR BRIEFIBELEED-

AEBNBERE#ERDL X (RERERR
IR BT E) c EREEHEER N
SHRZEREERLRNT

31 December

31 December

2018 2017

—E-N\fF —T—+F

TZA=1+—H0 [EeEEa=

HK$’000 HK$'000

TExT FAT

Notes payable Nt RiE 86,574 86,574
Shareholder loan &N -EN = 122,000
Other borrowings HEMmEE 472,178 525,930
Bank borrowings IRITIEE 298,660 331,819
Bank overdrafts RITHEX 45,095 59,494
Total debt BIEMEER 902,507 1,125,817
Total equity gt 1,848,822 2,723,904
Debt-to-equity ratio [ECEEap: Fatarpd 48.8% 41.3%

The increase in debt-to-equity ratio as at 31 December 2018
was mainly due to the decline in the market values of listed
equity investments of approximately HK$1,296,175,000
(31 December 2017: HK$2,271,063,000).

R-E—NEFE+_A=+—HEEHE
WL RENTDEEHER ETMRAKREZT
B T B&%1,296,175,0008 T (Z T —+F
+=A=+—H:2,271,063,000/%& 7T ) °
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46. Statement of Financial Position of the 46. AR B 2 B AR R &
Company
Information about the statement of financial position of the R|EBRR RRARMBRRAEKZEH A

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

7

31 December
2018
—E-N\HF
+=A=+-—-~H
HK$’000

TH&T

1,827
267,433
7,759

277,019

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME BB M&RE
Investments in subsidiaries RBRARZIEE
Deposits ®Be

Total non-current assets FERBEELE
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE

Due from subsidiaries JE s Bf &8~ B FRIAR

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

BNFIR  RE R E AR KRR

1,548,107

892
724

1,549,723

Cash and bank balances HWe RIRTTHET
Total current assets MEEERLE
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE

Other payables and accruals

H s 5RIE R At B

12,217
195,075

172,000

379,292

1,170,431

1,447,450

86,574

1,360,876

147,167
1,213,709

Due to subsidiaries FEASHBfY /B A B FRIR

Shareholder loan EERE R

Other borrowings Hibfg g

Total current liabilities mEBERRE

NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHERRBESE
LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FRBEE

Notes payable AN

Net assets BEFE

EQUITY s

Share capital [N

Reserves 15

Total equity EmER

1,360,876
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31 December
2017
—T—+F
+=-—A=+—~
HK$'000

FHET

3,246
109,459
7,763

120,468

2,905,011

1,161
17,409

2,923,581

14,251
30,251
122,000
351,000

517,502

2,406,079

2,526,547

86,574

2,439,973

127,167
2,312,806

2,439,973
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46. Statement of Financial Position of the 46. A1 T Z MR ARR T (80
Company (continued)

Note: BT

ARBFEFHHENT

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

Equity
component
Share Share of
premium  Contributed Capital option  convertible Accumulated
account surplus reserve reserve bonds losses Total

TR ES
Bk  EARER  EAGRE BRERE 2EEd6  2HER @it
HKS'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TETL TR TAL T TAL THL TET

At31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 RZE—LE=A=+-H

“Z—+FNA-A 4,070,621 675,671 556 60,600 47,257 (3,770,193) 1,084,712
Profit and total comprehensive BN R ENEEE
income for the period - - - - - 807,426 807,426
Issue of new shares, BOFRG NBERE
net of expenses 420,668 = = = = = 420,668
At31 December 2017 RZB—tE+2R
=1+-A 4,491,489 675,671 556 60,600 47,257 (2,962,767) 2,312,806
Profit and total comprehensive FEERENRZANRREE
income for the year = = s = - (1,321,015 (1,321,015)
Equity-settled share option REGE 2 RRER S
arrangements, net /ﬁﬁ = S = 44918 S = 44,918
Issue of new shares, BOFRG MBEXE
net of expenses 177,000 - - - - - 177,000
At 31 December 2018 RZB-\F+2A
=t—-H 4,668,489 675,671 556 105,518 47,257 (4,283,782) 1,213,709

The loss of HK$1,321,015,000 for the year ended 31 December HE-_ZT-\F+-_A=+—HLFEZEHE

2018 included write-back of due from subsidiaries of the Company
HK$62,000.

The profit of HK$807,426,000 for the period from 1 April 2017 to
31 December 2017 included write-back of due from subsidiaries of
the Company of HK$812,653,000.

The contributed surplus of the Company arose as a result of the
capital reorganisation referred to in note 35 and represented the
excess of the then combined net assets of the subsidiaries acquired
over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
therefor.

In addition, the capital reorganisation described in note 35
also resulted in an aggregate credit balance of approximately
HK$631,982,000 (31 December 2017: HK$631,982,000) being
transferred to the Company’s contributed surplus.
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47.

48.

49.

Events after the Reporting Period

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the special general
meeting of the Company held on 27 December 2018 and
certified by the Registrar of Companies of Hong Kong, the
name of the Company was changed from “China Soft Power
Technology Holdings Limited” to “Central Wealth Group
Holdings Limited”. The Secondary name in Chinese of the
Company was changed from “HENE W EEBRFR AR
to “HEKEERBERAR"

Comparative Figures

During 2017, the board of directors of the Company resolved
to change the financial year end date of the Company from
31 March to 31 December effective from 31 December 2017
in order to align the financial year end date of the subsidiaries,
Instant Achieve and its wholly owned subsidiaries, CWSI
and CWF. The consolidated financial statements present
for the prior period therefore covered a nine-month period
from 1 April 2017 to 31 December 2017. The corresponding
comparative amounts presented for the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity, consolidated statement of cash flows and related
notes, which are prepared for the year from 1 January 2018
to 31 December 2018, may not be comparable with amounts
shown for the prior period.

Approval of the Financial Statements
The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 26 March 2019.
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